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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Hibiscus Way

802 West Bay Road
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KY1-1205

Cayman Islands

Principal Place of Business and
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Tianan Chegongmiao Industrial Park
Futian District

Shenzhen, China

Place of Business In Hong Kong
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Greenfield Tower
Concordia Plaza
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Tsim Sha Tsui East
Kowloon, Hong Kong
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

FFEEBRE

Results 4
Year en d
oy
2022 2021
—E-C-F CZEB-—#
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETR
Revenue e 1,450,377 2,000,104
Cost of sales HEKAR (1,246,747)  (1,827,867)
Gross profit E7 203,630 721287 fy
Profit/(loss) before tax BB AER/ (B8) 9,825 (15,859)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/ (B8) 6,361 (18,059)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: W& AN B
w5/ (B8) : ,
— Owners of the Company S NCIE YU 6,506 (17,754
- Non-controlling interests — IR (145) (305
6,361 (18,05 I
Assets and Liabilities R I
2022
—E-CE
RMB’000
AR®TR
Total assets EERE 1,460,989
Total liabilties B fEmE (1,140,280)
320,709
Equity attrioutable to: A& B -
— Owners of the Company —KRREAA 320,222
- Non-controling interests — IR AR 487
320,709

Notes:

e

(@  The financial figures for each of the four years ended 31 December 2022/
as at the respective year-end were extracted from the consolidated financial
statements in the annual reports of 2022, 2021 and 2020.

(b)  The financial figures for the year ended 31 December 2018/as at the
respective year-end were extracted from the prospectus dated 30 October
2019 (the “Prospectus”).

The summary above does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.




CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERW|E

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Sprocomm Intelligence Limited (the “Company”), | present the
audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022
to the shareholders of the Company.

Business Review

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group, as one
of the leading ODM mobile phone suppliers based in China,
continued to focus on the research and development, designing,
manufacturing and sale of mobile phones, PCBAs for mobile
phones and |oT related products, targeting emerging markets.

In March 2022, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
experienced another outbreak of novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”)
and the PRC Government swiftly responded by implementing
various emergency public health measures. These public
health measures caused disruptions to the business activities
and economy of the PRC. Leveraging on the experience from
previous COVID-19 outbreaks, the Group had implemented
effective strategies to reduce the impact from the public health
measures on its business operations and financial performance.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately RMB1,450.4 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 27.5% as compared to last year.
On the other hand, the Group’s gross profit margin significantly
improved from approximately 8.6% for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately 14.0% for the year ended
31 December 2022, mainly resulted from the decrease in the
costs of major raw materials. The significant improvement in
the gross profit margin fully offset the adverse impact from the
decrease in revenue and the Group recorded a profit after tax of
approximately RMB6.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 as compared to a loss of approximately RMB18.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFEHE

Highlights of the audited results of the Group for the year ended N5 &
31 December 2022, as compared to 2021, are shown in the L

following table:

R I

2022

—E=-=
(Audited)
(BE®)

Revenue (RMB’000)

Net profit/(loss) for the year (RMB’000)

Earnings/(loss) per share
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents)

W (AREFT) B 1,450,377

FRMEN, (OFER)
(ARETT)

gRAEH(BE)
—EAXREE(ARED)




CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESE

Outlook and Strategy

Going forward, China’s ODM mobile phone market will be filled
with challenges and opportunities. While the global economy
still requires some time to recover, the Group will take this
opportunity to solidify its leading market position. Further, the
Directors consider that the rapid roll-out of 5G telecommunication
network in different parts of the world will drive the demand for
smartphones and loT products.

In order to capture the potential market opportunities and
maximise the interests of the Company and its shareholders, the
Group will adopt a prudent approach to develop its business,
enhance its research and development capability, enrich its
product portfolio and increase its sales and marketing effort to
diversify its geographical locations.

Gratitude

On behalf of the Company, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our valued shareholders, customers, suppliers, banks
and to our management and employees for their continuous
trust and support to the Group. The coming year will be full of
opportunities and challenges and we will strive our best to create
greater value for our shareholders and investors.

By order of the Board
Mr. Li Chengjun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB RO

Business Overview

The Group is an ODM mobile phone supplier based in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), primarily engaged in
research and development, designing, manufacturing and sale
of mobile phones, PCBAs for mobile phones and loT related
products, targeting emerging markets.

The Group’s products are sold worldwide with strategic focus
on emerging markets which have high population and growing
demands on mobile phones. Revenue generated from PRC and
other emerging markets accounted for 95.8% of the Group’s total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Group’s
customers include various top local branded mobile phone
suppliers, telecommunication operators and trading companies
in the PRC, India, other Asian countries and other parts of the
world.

In March 2022, the PRC experienced another outbreak of novel
coronavirus (“COVID-19”) and the PRC Government swiftly
responded by implementing various emergency public health
measures. These public health measures caused disruptions to
the business activities and economy of the PRC. Leveraging on
the experience from previous COVID-19 outbreaks, the Group
had implemented effective strategies to reduce the impact
from the public health measures on its business operations and
financial performance.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately RMB1,450.4 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 27.5% as compared to last year.
On the other hand, the Group’s gross profit margin significantly
improved from approximately 8.6% for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately 14.0% for the year ended
31 December 2022, mainly resulted from the decrease in the
costs of major raw materials. The significant improvement in
the gross profit margin fully offset the adverse impact from the
decrease in revenue and the Group recorded a profit after tax of
approximately RMB6.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 as compared to a loss of approximately RMB18.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

Financial Review

Revenue

Revenue by product categories

The Group’ s product portfolio includes smartphones, feature
phones, PCBAs for mobile phones and IoT related products. The
Group mainly derives its revenue from the sales of smartphones
and loT products. Set out below is a breakdown of the Group’s
total revenue by product categories and the revenue generated
from each product category as a percentage of total revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:

Bt 7 B B8

W £

BEMBERE SR
AEEMNERASBIEDETFH B Fif -
FHROERIEERAE LY EHEBEER -
AEENREEBREHEEEEFTH R DB
HEMR - TRINEE_T_—_FR-ZFT=—
FH+_A=Z+-BULEFERESERNES®
BREREERBHNEANBSERAER R
WA D

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

2022 2021
—E-CF B

% of total % of total
RMB’000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
ARETT HAKRZEN% ARETIT HAKEN%

Mobile phones FH
— Smartphones — BT 701,408 48.4 949,276 475
— Feature phones —INBER) F 4 328,346 22.6 279,893 14.0
Sub-total: INEE 1,029,754 71.0 1,229,169 61.5
PCBAs 1) 28 B& th 4 5% 28,758 2.0 19,728 1.0
loT related products Y A AE A E 296,514 20.4 591,308 29.6
Others (Note) HAth (B75E) 95,351 6.6 159,899 7.9
Total =1 1,450,377 100.0 2,000,104 100.0

Note: Others mainly include revenue from the sales of mobile device components
used for after sales-services and the provision of research and development
and technical services for mobile phones, PCBAs and cloud related products.

The Group’s total revenue decreased by 27.5% to RMB1,450.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from RMB2,000.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, primarily attributed
to the decrease in sales of smartphones to India and sales of loT
related products to the PRC, but partially offset by increase in
sales to customers from the Republic of Korea and the United
States of America.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENRE DT

Revenue from mobile phones decreased by 16.2% to
RMB1,029.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from
RMB1,229.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
primarily attributed to the decrease in sales of smartphones to
India and the People’s Republic of Bangladesh.

Revenue from PCBAs increased by 45.8% to RMB28.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 from RMB19.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021, as customers placed more
orders for PCBAs to suit their own needs.

Revenue from loT related products decreased by 49.9% to
RMB296.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from
RMB591.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
primarily attributed to the decrease in sales orders from a major
customer in the PRC.

KB F
=rr—18
16.2% 2 &
EBAR
EHIIETUN
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

Revenue by geographical regions

The Group’s products are sold worldwide with strategic focus
on emerging markets which have high population and growing
demands on mobile phones. Set out below is a breakdown of the
Group’s total revenue by geographical region and the revenue
generated from each region as a percentage of total revenue for

R IRA B S D e
AEBREEREEER UHKARNRZE
FRF KT ENE R ETISERRIEEE, o
TRISBEHE-E-_—_FR-ZT-_—F+=
A=+—BPLEFERMES SR KE RS
HEEEANKSEREELRENE DL

the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:

Year ended 31

December

BE+T-A=+—HLEFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
% of total % of total
RMB’000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
ARETT HAKREN% ARETIT HAKZEN%
Emerging Asia 5 MM 37 8 B =}
India e 757,814 52.2 962,219 48.1
The PRC s 509,101 35.1 791,076 39.5
People’s Republic of IR A R AN
Bangladesh 95,368 6.6 199,241 10.0
Republic of Korea 5 26,802 1.9 - -
Sub-total: INEE 1,389,085 95.8 1,952,536 97.6
Other regions Hithith &
Algeria o] &8 K2 A1) 30 27,917 1.9 25,132 1.3
United States of America ZEF|B & B E 20,377 1.4 -
Others Hib 12,998 0.9 22,436 1.1
Sub-total: NEt 61,292 4.2 47,568 2.4
Total &5 1,450,377 100.0 2,000,104 100.0
Revenue from India decreased by 21.2% to RMB757.8 milion HRBEHENKZHEE T -_—F+=-A

for the year ended 31 December 2022 from RMB962.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021, primarily attributed to the

decrease in demand for smartphones.

Revenue from the PRC decreased by 35.6% to RMB509.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from RMB791.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, primarily attributed
to decrease in sales orders for loT related products from a major

customer in the PRC.

12

Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2022

=t+t—RLEFENARKI22HE TR D

12%EHE—T -_—F+=
EHOARB7578EE&E T TEhR

CESTOE

KB B K S

35.6%EHZE

A=+—B1tF
BRETFH

THREE T - —F+=A
—t+—HEFEMNAREIIIABE LA

—E-—E+-A=+—HILE

EHARKES001IBAETL  TEHNKE —F

TREEIERPHNYBEAEEREE

STER -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEETWR D

Revenue from People’'s Republic of Bangladesh decreased by
52.1% to RMB95.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
from RMB199.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
primarily attributed to decrease in sales orders for smartphones
from a major customer.

Revenue from the Republic of Korea increased to RMB26.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from nil for the year
ended 31 December 2021, primarily attributed to the increase
in the Group’s marketing effort to expand its sales geographical
locations.

Revenue from the United States of America increased to
RMB20.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from nil
for the year ended 31 December 2021, primarily attributed to
the increase in the Group’s marketing effort to expand its sales
geographical locations.

Revenue from Algeria increased by 11.1% to RMB27.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 from RMB25.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021, primarily attributed to the
increase in demand for smartphones.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit increased by 18.2% to RMB203.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 from RMB172.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021. Gross profit margin increased to
14.0% for the year ended 31 December 2022 from 8.6% for the
year ended 31 December 2021. The increase in gross profit and
gross profit margin was primarily attributed to the decrease in the
costs of major raw materials.

Other gains and income

Other gains and income mainly include comprises government
subsidies and amortisation of government subsidies, bank
interest income, exchange gain and sundry income. The Group’s
other gains and income increased by 17.4% to RMB52.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 from RMB44.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021, primarily attributed to
the increase in bank interest income by RMB6.4 million and
exchange gain by RMB15.9 million.

REANMNARENBENKEZHBEEZS
——F+ZA=+—HLEFEMARY199.2
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S+ —HBEFENARBBIABTET =2
HRRE—RBEERPHNERFRIEETE
/@@9\"

KERBRENEEHEBEZE T —F+=
AZ+—RALEENTENERE_T_—
FT_A=+—HLEFENARB268EE
T EB2HRAKRENKEHNE - EBAHH
SR -

REEMNBABRENREHBEE S =—F
+TZ A=+ HLEFEMNZTENEHE=Z

— = &+ = A= o R ER PN 2ela
BEL TEHRAEEMALHENE » EX
HEEEME o

REMBRMNENKREABE_T - —F
Tt A=+ BLEEEMARKE2B1BET
EMMA%EBE_T_—_F+_H=1t—H
LEFENARK27IOBEETL  TEHNE R
FHFRIE M

EFREFN=E

EfBEBE—_T - —F+=A=+T—HIHF
EMARBI7T22EE TEN182%EHE
—E - —F = H= el S
2036EHBIL EMERBE_T=_—F+=
A=+—HIFEN86% tAEZEHEE =
——HF+-_A=+—BLEFER14.0% - EF
NEMEEMEZZRHREZEM BRI KA
Tk o

Hih s kWA

b U 28 R WA E BB TE BURT 8 B K R TS
BhEE S - SRATAI BUR A - BE 3 Ur ek N 5 IE U
A REBEMEBERMABEE_S =
F+Z A=+ HILEFENARKIUMATS
TTEN174% ERE_ZE T+ f=F—
BLEFEMARKES2HEE L £ 2 ANIE
TRIB U A I AR 6.4 8 & 7t MIE 7 Uk as
HIMARKI59BETT

ZZTZZFFH® Sprocomm Inteligence Limited 1 3



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR D

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly represent transportation
and custom declaration expenses, salaries and employee benefits
of our sales and marketing staff, business-related travelling and
entertainment expenses. Selling and distribution expenses for the
year ended 31 December 2022 decreased by 5.9% to RMB38.8
million from RMB41.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2021, primarily attributed to the decrease in transportation and
custom declaration expenses resulting from the drop in sales.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly represent salaries and benefits
of our administrative and management staff, depreciation,
amortisation of intangible assets, general office expenses, legal
and professional fees, rental expenses, insurance expenses,
bank charges, exchange losses and other miscellaneous
administrative expenses. Administrative expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2022 remained relatively stable at RMB64.9
million as compared with RMB65.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses for the year ended 31
December 2022 increased by 4.3% to RMB124.1 million from
RMB119.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
primarily attributed to the salary increment of the Group’s
research and development staff.

Finance costs

Finance costs mainly represent interests on discounted
bills, interest portion of lease liabilities, bank borrowings and
factoring loans. The Group’s finance costs for the year ended 31
December 2022 increased by 182.3% to RMB18.3 million from
RMB6.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, primarily
attributed to increase in interest on discounted bills financing and
factoring loans.

Income tax expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s income
tax expenses amounted to RMB3.5 million as compared with
RMBZ2.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
increase in income tax expenses was primarily attributed to the
increase in assessable profits for the year ended 31 December
2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEETWR D

Net profit/(loss) for the year

As a result of the above factors, the Group recorded a net profit
of RMB6.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
a net loss of RMB18.1 million).

Dividend
The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

Trade and bills receivables

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s trade and bills receivables
amounted to RMB191.7 million (31 December 2021: RMB226.0
million). The Group generally grants credit period ranging from
30 to 90 days to its customers and allows its PRC customers to
settle their purchases by way of bills with maturity period ranging
from three to six months.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group carefully assesses the
background information and credit worthiness of its customers
before it decides to grant them credit periods. Further, the Group
also closely monitors the payment record of its customers and
regularly reviews the credit terms granted to them. The Group’s
credit assessment is based on various factors, including but not
limited to the financial strength, size of the business and payment
history of customers and length of their business relationship with
the Group.

The Group’s average trade and bills receivables turnover days for
the year ended 31 December 2022 were 52.6 days (2021: 51.6
days), which were within the range of credit periods normally
offered by the Group to its customers. The shortened average
trade and bills receivables turnover days were primarily attributed
to the decrease in trade and bills receivables. Based on the
dates of the relevant sales invoices, 95.6% of the Group’s trade
and bills receivables aged within 90 days and the Group did not
notice any substantial long outstanding balances.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DN

Trade and bills payables

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s trade and bills payables
amounted to RMB940.6 million (31 December 2021: RMB524.1
million). Suppliers generally grant the Group credit period ranging
from 30 to 60 days, with certain suppliers require the Group
to make advance payment before product delivery. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that
all payables are settled within the credit timeframe. Certain
suppliers allow the Group to settle its purchases by way of bank
acceptance bills and the Group may also endorse certain bills
receivables to its suppliers in order to settle the trade payable
due to them.

The Group’s average trade and bills payables turnover days for
the year ended 31 December 2022 were 214.4 days (2021:
111.4 days). The lengthened average trade and bills payables
turnover days were primarily attributed to the increase in trade
and bills payables.

Capital structure, liquidity, financial
resources and gearing

The Company’s shares were successfully listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on 13 November 2019. There
has been no change in the capital structure of the Group since
then. The Group mainly funds its business and working capital
requirements by using a balanced mix of internal resources,
borrowings and funds from the global offering.

The funding mix will be adjusted depending on the costs of
funding and the actual needs of the Group. For the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group recorded a positive cash flow
from operating activities of RMB555.9 million (Year ended 31
December 2021: positive cash flow of RMB21.4 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEETWR D

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net current assets
of RMB225.7 million (31 December 2021: RMB218.7 million),
cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB36.6 million (31
December 2021: RMB82.9 million), pledged bank deposits
of RMB764.4 million (31 December 2021: RMB219.2 million)
and borrowings amounted to RMB51.8 million (31 December
2021: RMB58.2 million). The Group’s cash and cash equivalents
and bank borrowings as at 31 December 2022 were mainly
denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had borrowings of
RMB10.0 million (31 December 2021: RMB19.8 million) subject
to fixed interest rates and borrowings of RMB41.8 million (31
December 2021: RMB38.4 million) subject to variable interest
rates. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a current ratio of
1.2 times (31 December 2021: 1.3 times) and gearing ratio of 0.2
(calculated by dividing total debt by total equity) (31 December
2021: 0.2).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s unutilised borrowing
facilities amounted to RMB110.4 million (31 December 2021:
RMB120.9 million).

Capital expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group incurred cash
flows on capital expenditures for the purchase of properties,
plant and equipment in the amount of RMB8.5 million (2021:
RMB3.1 million); and intangible assets in the amount of RMBO0.8
million (2021: RMB4.0 million), respectively.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had capital commitments of
RMB1.7 million in relation to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment (31 December 2021: nil).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities or guarantees (31 December 2021: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

Pledge of assets and restricted deposit

As at 31 December 2022, the Group pledged trade and bills
receivables with carrying amount of RMB24.0 million (31
December 2021: RMB38.9 million), bank deposits with carrying
amount of RMB764.4 million (31 December 2021: RMB219.2
million) and land and building with carrying amount of RMB50.6
million (31 December 2021: RMB53.7 million) to secure its
borrowings and banking facilities.

Material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

Significant investments held by the group

Saved as disclosed herein, the Group did not make any other
significant investments during the year ended 31 December
2022.

Future plans for material investments and
capital assets

On 26 November 2020, Sprocomm Intelligence Limited
(“Sprocomm Intelligence”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an investment agreement with the
Management Committee of New Lingang Area of PRC (Shanghai)
Pilot Free Trade Zone* (F B (L/8) B E SHBEEBEH
FRE®ZE 8 ) (the “Lingang Committee”), pursuant to
which, among others, (i) Sprocomm Intelligence agreed to set
up a smart device R&D headquarters at New Lingang Area with
an investment of fixed assets of not less than RMB120 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$142 million); and (i) Lingang
Committee agreed to provide various kinds of support and
subsidy to Sprocomm Intelligence. As at 31 December 2021,
the aforesaid investment was still in a preliminary planning stage.
For the details of this investment agreement, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 26 November 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEETWR D

In the first quarter of 2022, the public bidding for the relevant
land parcel took place. The Group and the Lingang Committee
entered into a land use right transfer agreement, pursuant to
which the Lingang Committee agreed to transfer the land use
right for the land parcel situated at Nanhui New Town, Pudong
New Area (a site area of 6,373.3 square metres) to the Group at
a consideration of approximately RMB14.3 million. It is expected
that the land use right permit for this land parcel will be received
in 2023.

Saved as disclosed herein, the Group did not have any future
plans for material investments and capital assets during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Foreign exchange risks

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group derived
64.9% (2021: 60.5%) of its total revenue from export sales
and these export sales were principally denominated in USD.
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had USD-denominated
monetary assets with carrying amount of RMB128.7 million (31
December 2021: RMB141.2 million) and USD-denominated
monetary liabilities of RMB33.9 million (31 December 2021:
RMB49 million). The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from its export sales, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies. Any appreciation of RMB
against USD will have a negative impact on the Group’s profit
margin. Management of the Group regularly reviews the impact
of exchange risk exposure on the Group’s financial performance
and may use foreign exchange hedging instruments to reduce
the Group’s exchange risk exposure if appropriate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR D

Employees, remuneration policy and
training

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 890 employees (31
December 2021: 1,022 employees), whose remunerations and
benefits are determined based on market rates, government
policies and individual performance. For the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group’s total staff costs (including
directors’ emoluments, salaries, allowances and other benefits
and contributions to retirement benefits scheme) amounted
to RMB141.5 million (2021: RMB137.7 million). To provide
incentives or rewards to its employees, the Company adopted
a share option scheme, particulars of which are set out in the
section headed “Share option scheme” in this annual report.
The Group provides comprehensive training and development
opportunities to its employees on a regular basis. The trainings
are arranged according to needs of employees, which are
identified annually by individual departments.

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the
PRC are required to participate in a state-managed retirement
benefit scheme (the “Defined Contribution Scheme”) operated
by the PRC government. The Group is required to contribute
a certain percentage of basic payroll costs to the Defined
Contribution Scheme.

The Group’s contributions to the Defined Contribution Scheme
vest fully and immediately with the employees. Accordingly, (i)
for the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no forfeiture
of contributions under the Defined Contribution Scheme; and
(i) there were no forfeited contributions available for the Group
to reduce its existing level of contributions to the Defined
Contribution Scheme as at 31 December 2022. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Defined Contribution Scheme.

Event after the reporting period

Saved as disclosed herein, the Group does not have any
important events after the year ended 31 December 2022 and up
to the date of this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEASEHN

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Chengjun (Z & &), aged 50, is an executive Director,
the chief executive officer and the chairman of the Board
and is mainly responsible for corporate strategic planning,
overseeing the overall operations, day-to-day management
and business development of the Group. Mr. Li established
Shenzhen Sprocomm Telecommunication Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (R YIKE B =R B R A F]) (“Shenzhen Sprocomm’”),
the main operating subsidiary of the Group, with Mr. Xiong
Bin on 16 September 2009. He is also currently the director
of the Company’s subsidiaries, namely Shenzhen Sprocomm,
Sprocomm Intelligence (HK) Holdings Limited (/& & & #E 12 A%
AR A7), Sprocomm Technologies Co., Ltd. (K & # {2 Bl &
£ R 2 &), Sprocomm Technologies Co., Ltd. (K & & {5 &
B (F#) BB 2 7l), Guizhou Sprocomm Telecommunication
Technology Co., Ltd.* (B /MK & @ = RHE B R A &), Chengdu
Sprocomm Cloud Technology Co., Ltd.* (B & A E ZERIF AR
‘A 7)), Guizhou Mars Exploration Technology Co., Ltd.* (& /!
KEFREHEA BR2A7A), Grace Kirin Limited (£ BB R 2 7)),
Xiaohe Growth Shenzhen Technology Co., Ltd.* (/NRAK & Z= I
BB R A 7)) and Shenzhen Fengma New Energy Technology
Co., Ltd.* (Y@ G ¥ ee IR B BB R A 7). Mr. Li is a director
of Leap Elite Limited, a controlling Shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Li has more than 20 years of relevant experience in the
mobile communications industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Li held a senior management position in the wireless network
department and terminal department of Shenzhen Huawei
Technologies Co., Ltd* (& JI1 2 & £ 17 B BR A 7)), a company
principally engaged in the telecommunication equipment
business from April 1997 to February 2007, where he was mainly
responsible for the research and development of communication
terminal and sales and marketing. From August 2007 to June
2009, Mr. Li served as the chief executive officer of the business
operation headquarters of SIM Technology Group Limited (&&f
Bl &= E AR A7) (stock code of Stock Exchange: 02000)
(“SIM Technology”), a company whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange and is principally engaged in the manufacturing,
design and development and sale of liquid crystal display
modules, mobile handset solutions, and wireless communication
module solutions, where he was mainly responsible for
overseeing its PRC operation and management. Mr. Li graduated
from Beihang University (1t AL ZE MR A ER) in July 1994 with a
bachelor degree majoring in electrical technology, and then,
graduated with a master degree of engineering in March 1997.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEASEHN

Mr. XIONG Bin (B&#2), aged 45, is an executive Director and
vice chairman of the Board and is mainly responsible for
overseeing the sales and marketing of the Group. Mr. Xiong is
one of the founders of Shenzhen Sprocomm on 16 September
2009. He is also currently the director and vice general manager
of Shenzhen Sprocomm, the director of Windhorse Technologies
INC. (2B &R 5 # e R B A BR A 7)) and the supervisor of
Shanghai Sprocommm Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd.*
(EB K BBEREARRXAF), Guizhou Sprocomm
Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd.* (& M K & #{= & &%
AR A A]), Guizhou Mars Exploration Technology Co., Ltd.* (&
Mok 2R ZE R A BB A A]), Shenzhen Fengma New Energy
Technology Co., Ltd.* CRIINE 5 ¥ e R BB R A 5)) and
Luzhou Sprocomm Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd.* (/&
MAREBEREARAG) (formerly known as Luzhou Sipukang
Technology Co., Ltd.* (EM B & EEHL A R 2 7). Mr. Xiong is
a director of Beyond Innovation Limited, a controlling Shareholder
of the Company. Mr. Xiong has over 15 years of relevant
experience in the mobile communications industry. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Xiong served in Amoi Electronics Co., Ltd.
(E#E TN BB A A) (“Amoi Electronics”) from July 1999
to May 2008, where he first served as the vice general manager
of finance department responsible for handling the export
business and finance work of the overseas subsidiaries and later
as the vice general manager of the overseas sales department
responsible for overseas sales of smartphone products. Amoi
Electronics is principally engaged in research, manufacturing and
sales of smartphone and other electronic products. From May
2008 to August 2009, Mr. Xiong served as the general manager
of the overseas sales department of SIM Technology, where he
was mainly responsible for marketing and sales of the overseas
smartphone ODM business. Mr. Xiong graduated from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology (3£ # 3£ T K £) in June
1999 and obtained a bachelor degree of economics majoring in
taxation. Mr. Xiong also obtained the qualification of Certified
Public Accountant (non-practising) in the PRC in December
2004.

* For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR M ‘
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Mr. GUO Qinglin (3B B #k), aged 40, is an executive Director
and is mainly responsible for managing the operation of supply
chain and sales activities of the Group. He is also currently the
director of the supply chain operation centre of Shenzhen
Sprocomm and a supervisor of Shenzhen Sprocomm. Mr. Guo
has approximately 13 years of relevant experience in the mobile
communications industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Guo
served as a manager in the overseas sales department of Amoi
Electronics from September 2005 to December 2008, where he
was mainly responsible for developing overseas customers,
maintaining the customer relationship and sales of the company’s
main products. From April 2009 to December 2009, Mr. Guo
served as sales director in the overseas sales department of
Nanjing Wanlida Technology Co., Ltd.* (FiE & FMERIFL AR A
A]), a company principally engaged in the production of
computers, mobile phones and projectors, where he was mainly
responsible for developing overseas customers, maintaining the
customer relationship and sales of the company’s main products.
Mr. Guo graduated from Jimei University* (£ % K £) in July
2005 and obtained a bachelor degree of economics majoring in
international economy and trading.

* For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEASEHN

Mr. WEN Chuanchuan (i&)I1JI1), aged 37, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company with effect from 1 June 2021.
Prior to Mr. Wen’s appointment as an executive Director, he is a
member of the senior management of the Company. Since 21
September 2016, Mr. Wen has been serving as the director of
the manufacturing centre of Shenzhen Sprocomm
Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd.* (R Il K & i 15 B &2
B BR A F]), a company established under the laws of the PRC
and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
has been responsible for supervising the operation of the
production plants of the Group. He is also currently (i) the director
and general manager of Luzhou Sprocomm Telecommunication
Technology Co., Ltd.* (& /I K & & {5 B B R 2 7)), formerly
known as Luzhou Sipukang Technology Co., Ltd.* (J& /N & & 5
B AR A 7)), a company established under the laws of the
PRC and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;
and (i) the general manager of Chengdu Sprocomm Cloud
Technology Co., Ltd.* (A& K & ZRHHE B R A 7]), a company
established under the laws of the PRC and an indirect non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Wen worked as an assistant engineer of Huawei
Machine Company Limited* (¥ & # 25 & R 2 A1), a company
principally engaged in research, development, manufacturing and
sales of communication products from July 2011 to October
2014, where he was mainly responsible for reviewing the
manufacturing plan and leading trial verification for new
smartphone products. Mr. Wen served as a director of the
assembly plant of Shenzhen Andao Yunke Company Limited* ()%
I BERE D B R R E]), a company principally engaged in
development and manufacturing of smart terminals, capacitive
touch screens, machine assembly, metal and glass components
and mobile phone accessories from November 2014 to
September 2016, where he was responsible for the
establishment of machine assembly department and assisting in
the operation of the company’s departments and subsidiaries.

Mr. Wen graduated from the Northwest A&F University (75 1t &
MEH K E) with a bachelor’'s degree of management majoring
in electronic commerce in the PRC in July 2008. In June 2011,
Mr. Wen graduated from the Xi’an Jiaotong University* (78 &2 22
K EB%E 1 2[7) and obtained a master’s degree of engineering
majoring in industrial engineering.

* For identification purpose only
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Wai Man JP (3£ A R), aged 53, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 18 October 2019.
Mr. Hung is a Deputy to the 13th National People’s Congress,
the Principal Liaison Officer for Hong Kong, Shenzhen Qianhai
Authority, and Adjunct Professor of the Belt and Road Research
Institute of Hainan University.

Mr. Hung is a seasoned ICT professional and angel investor. He
has worked in the computer industry for over 30 years. A well-
known figure in the industry, Mr. Hung has extensive experience
in management consulting, project management and outsourcing
services. Mr. Hung is a Chartered Information Technology
Professional and a fellow of the British Computer Society, the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors, the Hong Kong Computer
Society and the Internet Professional Association. He has been
appointed as one of the Global Council Members by the World
Summit Awards.

Mr. Hung is currently Executive Chairman of Chinese Big Data
Society, Hong Kong and Macao, Chairman of Hong Kong
Road Safety Association, Chairman Emeritus of the Y.Elites
Association, President Emeritus of Internet Professional
Association, Vice Chairman of the Monte Jade Science and
Technology Association of Hong Kong, Secretary General
of Hong Kong-ASEAN Economic Cooperation Foundation
and Council Member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior
Executives Association etc. In 2012 to 2014, he had served as
an associate member of the Central Policy Unit of the HKSAR
Government. In 2008, Mr. Hung was selected as one of the Ten
Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong. He was a Standing
Committee Member of the 11th All China Youth Federation. In
2015, he was appointed as a Justice of the Peace by the Hong
Kong SAR Government. In 2016, he was given the Asia Social
Innovation Leadership Award by CMO Asia.
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Mr. Hung graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Higher Diploma in Maths, Statistics and Computing. He
then obtained a BA (Hons) from the University of Bolton, MBA
from the University of Hull and MA in Public and Comparative
History from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He also
obtained a LLM and LLD from the Renmin University of China, a
Master of Business Administration (Executive) from City University
of Hong Kong and PhD in Business Administration from Bulacan
State University, the Philippines.

Mr. Hung is currently an independent non-executive director of
LH Group Limited (stock code: 01978) and Sino Hotels (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 01221), the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. WONG Kwan Kit (£ EZ), aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 October 2019. Mr.
Wong has over 20 years of experience in accounting and financial
management, mergers and acquisitions gained from certain
finance related positions of companies listed in Hong Kong. Mr.
Wong is currently an independent non-executive director of Man
Sang International Limited (stock code: 00938) and Culturecom
Holdings Limited (stock code: 00343), both of companies are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. LU Brian Yong Chen (& 7k 2R), aged 59, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 18 October
2019. Mr. Lu has served as an independent non-executive
Director of InvesTech Holdings Limited (stock code: 1087), a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange and
is principally engaged in designs, development and provision
of communication system and manufacture and sale of signal
transmission and connectivity products from June 2015 to
January 2023. Mr. Lu has over 22 years of management
experience in Fortune 100 companies in Australia, Hong
Kong and the PRC, assisting in their business transformation
and growth. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lu served as a
manager, design/architecture of IBM Australia Limited, a
company principally engaged in manufacturing and selling
computer hardware and software and providing relevant services
from May 1995 to April 2001, where he was responsible for
managing network architecture. From April 2001 to June 2012,
Mr. Lu then served as a client unit executive in the IBM global
technology services department of IBM China/Hong Kong
Limited, a company principally engaged in manufacturing and
selling computer hardware and software and providing relevant
services, where he was responsible for the department’s strategic
planning and execution. Mr. Lu was an industry consultant of
IBM (China) Company Limited, a company principally engaged in
manufacturing and selling computer hardware and software and
providing relevant services from June 2012 to June 2015.

Mr. Lu graduated from South China University of Technology
(2293 T K2 with a bachelor degree majoring in engineering
in Computer Science in July 1986 and from the University of
New South Wales, Australia with a master degree of information
science in October 1994.
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Ms. TSENG Chin | (& & ), aged 54, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 18 October 2019.
Ms. Tseng is a member of the 14th National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and a
television programme host of Phoenix TV. Ms. Tseng is a veteran
financial programme host with over 27 years of experience
in Hong Kong, including hosting and presenting of television
programmes. Ms. Tseng has been serving as a television
programme host in Phoenix Satellite Television Company
Limited (Bl /2 % 1% A R A &), which is an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of Phoenix Satellite Television Holdings Limited
(currently known as Phoenix Media Investment (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 2008), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, where she is responsible for hosting and
presenting television programmes and broadcasts relating to
the PRC and international economy and finance. She has also
been a standing committee member of Ifeng Finance Institute
(BB 48 B £ 51 78 B ), a non-profit making research institute
focusing on providing financial information via expert interview,
conference reports, research reports, financial and wealth
management forums since November 2016. She is the founding
vice president of GBA Carbon Neutrality Association and also
an honorary advisor to the Hong Kong Science & Technology
Youth Federation. She has been a life associate member of the
Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association
since January 2017. Ms. Tseng graduated from Fu Jen Catholic
University (K 3£ ##8 1= K& formerly known as k37 8§ {~ K &)
with a bachelor degree of arts majoring in mass communication
in June 1991.
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Senior Management

Mr. LIU Shangheng (%l 4 1€), aged 39, has been serving as
the financial controller of Shenzhen Sprocomm since December
2011. He is also a director of Shanghai Hemiao Chuangxian
Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd.* (/8K H &l % & sE &l 5 A IR
/2 A]) and Shanghai Hexiangrun Intelligent Building Technology
Co., Ltd* (E/BERF HEREFRRERAAF).

Mr. Liu has over 10 years of experience in financial work and
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu held office
relating to cost accounting in Qingdao Haixin Communication
Technology Company Limited* (5§ & /85 BERITEBRAF), a
company principally engaged in research, development,
manufacturing and sales of mobile communication terminal
products from August 2006 to October 2008, where he was
mainly responsible for production cost accounting, cost analysis
and control related work. Mr. Liu then served as a director of
finance in Shenzhen Xiongtao Power Supply Technology
Company Limited* (FII T HEERE ZRMHDERQF), a
company principally engaged in research, manufacturing and
sales of battery from November 2008 to October 2011, where he
was mainly responsible for cost accounting and preparing the
financial statements and analysis.

Mr. Liu graduated from the Zhongnan University of Economics

and Law (A B BF 48 BUA K 22) in June 2006 and obtained two
bachelor degrees majoring in accounting and economics.

* For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERHRE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures with a view
to being a transparent and responsible organisation which is
open and accountable to the shareholders of the Company. The
Board strives to adhere to the principles of corporate governance
and has adopted sound corporate governance practices to
meet the legal and commercial standards, focusing on areas
such as internal control, fair disclosure and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company to ensure the transparency and
accountability of all operations of the Company. The Company
believes that effective corporate governance is an essential
factor to create more value for the shareholders of the Company.
The Board will continue to review and improve the corporate
governance practices of the Group from time to time to ensure
that the Group is led by an effective Board in order to optimise
return.

Corporate culture and strategy

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries include research and
development, design, manufacture and sale of mobile phones,
PCBAs for mobile phones and loT related products. The Group
is committed to provide high quality and reliable products and
services, and to create values to the stakeholders through
sustainable growth and continuous development.

The Board fosters a corporate culture by setting out the following
values to guide the conduct and behaviours of employees and
to ensure that the Company’s vision, mission and business
strategies are aligned to this corporate culture:

—_

Integrity — we strive to do what is right;
2. Excellence — we aim to deliver excellence;
3. Collaboration — we are always better together;

4.  Accountability — we are accountable for delivering on our
commitments;

5. Empathy — we care about our stakeholders — employees,
customers, supply chain and the community; and

6. Sustainability — we are committed to a sustainable future.
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The Group will continue to review and adjust its business
strategies and keep track of the changing market conditions to
ensure prompt and proactive measures will be taken to respond
to the changes and meet the market needs to support the
continuous business development of the Group.

Adoption and compliance of corporate
governance practices

The Company has adopted a set of corporate governance
practices which aligns with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) since 13 November 2019. Except
for code provision C.2.1, the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the CG Code for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code states that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Under the current
organisation structure of the Company, Mr. Li Chengjun is the
Group’s chief executive officer, and he also performs as the
chairman of the Board as he has considerable experience in
the mobile communication industry. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both the chairman of our Board and the chief
executive officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and enables more
effective and efficient overall strategic planning of the Group.
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Although Mr. Li Chengjun performs both the roles of chairman
of the board and chief executive officer, the division of
responsibilities between the chairman of the board and chief
executive officer is clearly established. In general, the chairman
of the board is responsible for supervising the functions and
performance of the Board, while the chief executive officer is
responsible for the management of the Group’s businesses. The
two roles are performed by Mr. Li Chengjun distinctly. Further,
the current structure does not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and management of the Company
given the appropriate delegation of the power of the Board
and the effective functions of the independent non-executive
Directors.

The Stock Exchange published its conclusions on the
consultation paper entitled “Review of the Corporate Governance
Code and Related Listing Rules” in December 2021. The revised
Listing Rules and new CG Code have come into effect on 1
January 2022, and the requirements under the new CG Code will
be applied to corporate governance reports for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2022. The Company has
complied with these new requirements.

Model code for securities transactions
by directors of listed issuers (the “Model
Code”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed
that, following specific enquiry by the Company, they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
for the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report.

Chairman and chief executive officer

CG Code provisions C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The Company does not
segregate the roles of chairman and chief executive officer and
Mr. Li Chengjun currently holds both of the chairman and chief
executive officer positions, as explained in the paragraph headed
“Adoption and compliance of corporate governance practices”
above in this Corporate Governance Report.
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Independent non-executive directors

The independent non-executive Directors are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience
in the fields of accounting, finance, business and corporate
governance. Their skills, expertise and number in the Board
ensure that strong independent views and judgement are
brought in the Board’s deliberations and that such views and
judgement carry weight in the Board’s decision-making process.
Their presence and participation also enable the Board to
maintain high standards of compliance in financial and other
mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of the Company and its
shareholders. The Company annually assesses the independence
of each independent non- executive Director during their terms
of appointment. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a written confirmation of their independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all
the independent non-executive Directors are independent from 1
January 2022 to the date of this report.
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The Board

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors. The Board’s composition
as at 31 December 2022 is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Exg

EEeRANELHNTEE L EBIIFNTT
EFHAK R_TE-_—_F+=-_A=+—H" &

EmAREINIT

BITES

Date of joining

Name Age Gender the Group Roles and responsibilities
HE FiR 1 Bl NAZAEBE B H BERBE
Mr. Li Chengjun 50 Male 16 September 2009 Corporate strategic planning, overseeing
THRELE £ ZEEAFNATRA the overall operations, day-to-day
management and business development
of the Group
REENARIRIKEHRE  BEEEES
B ARBEREREBER
Mr. Xiong Bin 45 Male 16 September 2009 Overseeing the sales and marketing of
AR SR A e ZEEAFNAATRA the Group
EEAEEMNIHE NTISHER
Mr. Wen Chuanchuan 37 Male 1 June 2021 Overseeing the production of the Group
B 54 Es —EZ—FXHA—H EEAREENEE
Mr. Guo Qinglin 40 Male 18 January 2010 Managing the operation of supply chain
FLEME A E —ZE-ZTF—-HA+N\AH and sales activities of the Group
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Date of joining

BAFHTES

Name Age Gender the Group Roles and responsibilities

#®E Fir 4 5l IMAREBH B BERBE

Mr. Hung Wai Man 53 Male 18 October 2019 Supervising and providing independent

HEAEREA e ZZF—-hF+A+AB judgement to the Board
EERAEEGIRMEIE A

Mr. Wong Kwan Kit 50 Male 18 October 2019 Supervising and providing independent

BEEREE ES —ZE—-NF+A+/\H  judgement to the Board
EELRAREFGRMIBE A

Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen 59 Male 18 October 2019 Supervising and providing independent

=K BR S A 5 —E—NF+A+/\H  judgement to the Board
EERREFGRMIBE L HIE

Ms. Tseng Chin | 54 Female 18 October 2019 Supervising and providing independent

BERLT Z —ZE—nF+A+/\B  judgement to the Board

For the biographical details of and relationships among the
members of the Board, please refer to the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report.

The Directors believe that the composition of the Board reflects
the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business development of the Group and for
effective leadership as the executive Directors possess extensive
experience in managing the Group’s business operations; and
professional knowledge in the telecommunication and internet
industry, while the four independent non-executive Directors
possess professional knowledge and broad experience in
accounting, finance, business and corporate governance. The
Directors are of the opinion that the current Board structure
can ensure the independence and objectivity of the Board and
provide a system of checks and balances to safeguard the
interests of the Company and its shareholders.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company. It also oversees the Group’s business, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board shall take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company and its shareholders.
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Board independence

The Group has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board and such mechanisms
will be reviewed annually by the Board. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the following mechanisms at the Board meeting:

1. Four out of the eight Directors are independent non-
executive directors, which exceeds the requirement of
the Listing Rules that at least one-third of the Board are
independent non-executive directors;

2. The Nomination Committee will assess the independence
of a candidate who is nominated to be a new independent
non-executive director before appointment and the
continued independence of the current long-serving
independent non-executive director (if any) on an annual
basis;

3. All independent non-executive Directors are required to
submit a written confirmation to the Company annually
to confirm the independence of each of them and their
immediate family members, and their compliance with the
requirements as set out in the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules;

4. Al Directors are entitled to retain independent professional
advisors as and when it is required;

5. All Directors are encouraged to express freely their
independent views and constructive challenges during the
Board/Committee meetings;

6. No equity-based remuneration with performance-related
elements will be granted to independent non-executive
Directors;

7. A Director (including independent non-executive Director)
who has a material interest in a contract, transaction or
arrangement shall not vote or be counted in the quorum on
any Board resolution approving the same; and

8. The chairman of the Board meets with independent non-

executive Directors annually without the presence of the
Executive Directors.
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Appointment, re-election and removal of
directors

Each of the executive Directors, expect Mr. Wen Chuanchuan
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years commencing on 13 November 2019, until
terminated by enter party giving not less than three months’
notice in writing to the other. Mr. Wen Chuanchuan was
appointed as an executive Director on 1 June 2021 and he has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of
three years commencing on 1 June 2021, until terminated by
either party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing
to the other. Each of the independent non-executive Directors
has entered into an appointment letter with the Company for a
term of three years commencing on 13 November 2019. Each
of the independent non-executive Directors has renewed the
appointment letter with the Company on 13 November 2022
and such appointment will be terminated by either party giving
not less than three months’ notice in writing to the other; and in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”) and the Listing Rules.

According to article 109(a) of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting one third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation, provided that every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible
for re-election. The Company at the general meeting at which a
Director retires may fill the vacated office.

According to article 113 of the Articles, the Board shall have
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
Director, provided that the number of Directors so appointed
shall not exceed the maximum number determined from time
to time by the shareholders in general meeting. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Any Director appointed under this article shall not be taken into
account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation at an annual general meeting.
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According to 109(a) of the Articles, Mr. Li Chengjun, Mr. Wong
Kwan Kit and Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen will retire by rotation and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

Board diversity policy

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 12 November 2019, which sets out the
objective and approach to achieve and maintain diversity on
the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.
The Board Diversity Policy provides that the Company should
endeavor to ensure that the Board members have the appropriate
balance of skills, experience, and diversity of perspectives that
are required to support the execution of its business strategy.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria and the
attributes that they will bring to the Board to complement and
enrich the competencies, experience and diversity of the Board.
Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, a number of factors will
be taken into account in determining the board composition to
achieve board diversity, including but not limited to professional
experience, skills, knowledge, age, gender, education, cultural
background and length of service.

The Nomination Committee reviews the Board Diversity Policy
from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness, such
as assessing annually on the board’s diversity profile and
gender balance. The Nomination Committee would discuss any
revisions to the Board Diversity Policy that may be required and
recommend any such revisions and the appointment of suitable
candidates to the Board for consideration and approval.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of
the Board with reference to the Board Diversity Policy in order
to comply with the CG Code. The Company considers that
the current composition of the Board, one out of its eight
members being women, has achieved Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including gender,
nationality, professional background and skills. The current
Directors have extensive experience in mobile communications
industry and professional knowledge of corporate advisory,
business development and accounting.
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Nomination policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the criteria, process and procedures for
the Nomination Committee to recommend suitable candidates for
directorship with a view to ensuring that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business.

Selection criteria
The Nomination Committee will propose a candidate for
nomination or a Director for re-election based on the followings:

—  the Board Diversity Policy and the requirements under the
Listing Rules;

—  the expected contribution the candidate would add to the
Board and to ensure the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business;

—  the candidate or the re-elected Director is able to commit
and devote sufficient time and attention to the Company’s
affairs;

—  the level of independence from the Company, and potential
or actual conflicts of interest of the candidate or the re-
elected Director; and

—  other relevant factors considered by Nomination Committee
on a case-by-case basis.

The aforesaid factors are for reference only, and not meant to
be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the
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Nomination process

The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring that the
selection criteria are being applied consistently and fairly in the
nomination process and confirming the same to the Board when
making its recommendation on appointment.

A. Procedures for appointment of new Director
Subject to the provisions in the Articles, if the Board
recognises the need to appoint a new Director, the following
procedures should be adopted:

—  the Nomination Committee identifies candidates in
accordance with the selection criteria set out in the
Nomination Policy and with the assistance from the
Group’s human resources department and external
agencies (if necessary);

—  the Nomination Committee evaluates the candidates
and recommends to the Board the appointment of the
appropriate candidate for directorship; and

— the Board decides the appointment based upon the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee.

B. Procedures for re-election of Director at general
meeting
Procedures for re-election of Director at general meeting are
set out as follows:

— the Nomination Committee reviews the overall
contribution to the Company of the retiring Director;

- the Nomination Committee also reviews and
determines whether the retiring Director continues to
meet the selection criteria set out in the Nomination
Policy; and

—  the Nomination Committee shall recommend to the
Board which shall then make recommendation to
shareholders in respect of the proposed re-election of
Director at the general meeting.
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C. Procedures for nomination by shareholders
Procedures for nomination by shareholders are set out as
follows:

— the Company’s website sets out the procedures for
shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director; and

—  for any person that is nominated by a shareholder for
election as a Director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee shall evaluate
such candidate based on the selection criteria
set out in the Nomination Policy and to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship
and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee
shall recommend to the Board which shall then make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed election of Director at the general meeting.

Monitoring and reporting

The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the Corporate
Governance section of the Company’s Annual Report, how
the Policy is being applied in recommending candidates for
directorship and retiring Directors for re-election during the year.

Review of the Nomination Policy
The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy
periodically in line with the Company’s strategy and recommend
any proposed changes to the Board for approval.

C.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination
Committee conducted the followings:

—  reviewed and confirmed the structure, size and composition
of the Board and the split between number of executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors
remained appropriate for the Board to perform its duties;

— reviewed and confirmed the Board has a diverse mix of
skills, knowledge, experience and gender;

—  reviewed the Board Diversity Policy; and

- formulated the Nomination Policy and made a
recommendation to the Board for adoption.

Proceedings of board meetings and board
committee meetings

The Board may meet for the dispatch of business, adjourn and
otherwise regulate its meeting and proceedings as it thinks fit
and may determine the quorum necessary for the transaction
of business. An annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM”) shall be called by at least 21 days’ (and not less than
20 clear business days’) notice in writing, and a general meeting
of the Company, other than an AGM, shall be called by at least
14 days’ (and not less than 10 clear business days’) notice in
writing. A meeting of the Board or any committee of the Board
may be held by means of such telephone, electronic or other
communication facilities as permit all persons participating in the
meeting.

A Director shall not vote (nor shall he be counted in the quorum)
on any resolution of the Board in respect of any contract
or arrangement or proposal in which he or any of his close
associate(s) has/have a material interest, and if he shall do so his
vote shall not be counted (nor shall he be counted in the quorum
for that resolution).
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Set out below are details of the attendance record of each
Director at the Board, committee and general meetings of the
Company held during the year ended 31 December 2022:

LTH R EEHERE —E—— &+ — f
—+—BULEERRTNAAREESE S
ZEBRRRREANSHF AL

Attendance/Number of Meetings Held

HEE/ ERETRY
Regular Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Name of Directors ESH§3E EREZESE ENZEESE REZEEEE FMzZEEsR V-
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Li Chengjun FRERE 4/ - 17 - 1n
Mr. Xiong Bin R R 4/4 - - - 0/1
Mr. Li Hongxing TIERE 4/4 - - - 17
Mr. Guo Qinglin SEMEL 4/4 L _ i 1A
Mr. Wen Chuanchuan B4 4/4 - - - 1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BV F#1TES
Mr. Hung Wai Man REREE 3/4 2/3 - 11 0/1
Mr. Wong Kwan Kit BREARE 4/4 3/3 17 1 17
Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen BKREE 4/4 3/3 11 111 1
Ms. Tseng Chin | LEETL 4/4 - 17 1 17

The Board will make arrangements for holding at least four
regular Board Meetings in each financial year.

The Board has established three committees: (i) the audit
committee (“Audit Committee”); (ii) the remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”); and (jii) the nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”), for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All committees have been established
with defined written terms of reference, which were posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk) and the
Company (www.sprocomm.com). All committees should report
to the Board on their decisions or recommendations made. All
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expense.
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Audit committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 18
October 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Kwan Kit, Mr. Lu Brian
Yong Chen and Mr. Hung Wan Man. Mr. Wong Kwan Kit is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include ensuring
that an effective financial reporting, internal control and risk
management systems are in place and compliance of the
Listing Rules, reviewing the financial statements, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal
of external auditors and assessing their independence and
qualifications, and ensuring the effective communication with
external auditors.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee
held three meetings and the work performed by the Audit
Committee was summarised as follows:

1. reviewed the Company’s interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2022 and annual results for the year ended
31 December 2021;

2. reviewed the Company’s interim report for the six months
ended 30 June 2022 and annual report for the year ended
31 December 2021, which set out the Group’s accounting
policies, financial performance and position;

3.  reviewed the findings and recommendations from external
auditors and the independent internal control reviewer;
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4. reviewed the independence of the external auditors and
engagement of external auditors;

5. made recommendations to the Board regarding the change
of external auditors;

6. reviewed the audit plan, internal control plan, the
development in accounting standards and their effects on
the Group, financial reporting and risk management matters;

7. reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff in the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting functions; and

8. reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems.

Remuneration committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on
18 October 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance
with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee consists of four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung Wai Man, Mr. Wong Kwan
Kit, Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen and Ms. Tseng Chin I. Mr. Hung Wai
Man is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board in determining the
remuneration policy for and remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management, reviewing incentive schemes
and service contracts of the Directors and senior management,
and evaluating the performance of the Directors and senior
management.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to review and the work performed
by the Remuneration Committee was summarised as follows:

1. made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of Directors, senior management and employees
of the Group;

2. reviewed the appropriateness of the remuneration policy;
and

3. evaluated the performance of Directors and senior
management of the Group.
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Nomination committee
The Company has established a Nomination Committee on 18
October 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance
with CG Code provision B.3.1. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee consists of four Directors, namely
Mr. Li Chengjun, Mr. Wong Kwan Kit, Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen
and Ms. Tseng Chin |. Mr. Li Chengjun is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. In compliance with the Listing Rules, the
Nomination Committee is chaired by the chairman of the Board
and the other members are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include
assisting the Board in identifying suitable candidates for the
Directors and making recommendations to the Board, assessing
the structure and composition of the Board, preparing, making
recommendations to and supervising the execution of the board
diversity policy and nomination policy of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting and the work performed by the
Nomination Committee was summarised in the paragraph
headed “Nomination policy” of this corporate governance report.

Dividend policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) which aims to ensure sustainable development of its
business operations and to provide a favorable return to its
shareholders.

Declaration of dividend will be made at the discretion of the
Board and will be based upon the Group’s earnings, cash
flows, financial conditions, capital requirements, statutory fund
reserve requirements and any other conditions that our Directors
consider relevant. The declaration, payment and amount of
dividend will also be subject to the Company’s constitutional
documents including, where necessary, the approval of the
shareholders.
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The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
may exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time as the Board thinks
fit and necessary. There is no assurance that dividends will be
paid in any particular amount for any given period. The Dividend
Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment
by the Company that any dividend will be paid in any particular
amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time.

Whistleblowing policy

In compliance with the CG Code, the Group has implemented
whistleblowing policy to provide a well-defined and accessible
channel for reporting fraud, corruption, dishonest practices, or
other similar matters and guidance on how an investigation would
be initiated upon receiving a complaint. The policy also protects
employees who report fraudulent activities in good faith and
reasonable belief. A whistleblowing officer is elected to ensure
that any reported case is dealt with in an expedited manner.

Upon receiving the complaint, the Board decides the method
of investigation, which may involve appointing an external
consultant for assessment. The Board will monitor and review the
effectiveness of the whistleblowing policy from time to time.

Anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy

In compliance with the CG Code, the Group has implemented
anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy. According to the Group’s
anti-corruption policy, all employees shall abide by the laws
and regulations of the PRC and shall not engage in any illegal
activities. Employees shall uphold the code of ethics, advocate
fair competition and act against bribery. Any bribery, fraud,
money laundering and embezzlement are prohibited.

Employees must not accept or request any improper benefits
including banquets, gifts, securities, valuables and high-
expenditure entertainment activities from business partners,
suppliers and merchants, etc. When there is any alleged case in
violation of laws, regulations, code of conduct or Group’s policies,
the Group will investigate and impose disciplinary actions upon
offenders after verification. The Group also provides trainings to
directors and employees from time to time to ensure that they
comply and familiar with the anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy
of the Group.
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The Board will monitor and review the effectiveness of the anti-
fraud and anti-corruption policy from time to time.

Corporate governance function

The Board does not have a Corporate Governance Committee.
The functions that would be carried out by a Corporate
Governance Committee are performed by the Board as a whole
and are as follows:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The corporate governance policy is formulated with an emphasis
on the Board’s quality, effective internal control, stringent
disclosure practices and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Board strives to comply with
the code provisions and reviews its corporate governance policy
regularly in order to maintain high standards of business ethics
and corporate governance, and to ensure the full compliance of
the Group’s operations with applicable laws and regulations.
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Continuous professional development

Pursuant to the CG Code provision C.1.4, all Directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Company had arranged to provide trainings
to all Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Directors participated in the following continuous professional
development:

FEEXER
RIEEFEBTARXECIAG 2BES
R2EGEEXBERABUNERLREHNESF
ZRBR R BRRSHESSELAL
KA ER - ARRARBELZH RENIFI
TEERAEE AR BElBE - #E—
E__F+-A=+—"BLFE ARGEE
ZHAMBESREHEINI BE_F_—
TZAZ+-HLFE EF2ETIFE
BEXRE:

Training on
corporate
governance,
director’s duties,
environment, social

and governance, Reading
and/or regulatory materials
update updating on
(Note 7) new rules and
TE¥EER EERE - regulations
B HERERKN MERER
EIR REFHHRE HARGRRE
Name of Directors EENE (HfiE1) &
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Chengjun THEELE v v/
Mr. Xiong Bin BRI L& v v
Mr. Guo Qinglin MBEMITE v v/
Mr. Wen Chuanchuan EINNF & v 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BV FHTEE
Mr. Hung Wai Man HRREE v v
Mr. Wong Kwan Kit BEEANGLE 4 v
Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen BRI E 4 4
Ms. Tseng Chin | Bt v 7
Notes: Htat -
1. Professional training was arranged by the Company to update the Directors’ 1. ARG LZHEEEEINAEH == -
knowledge.

2. The Company received from each of the Directors the confirmations on
taking continuous professional training.

2. ARFRERERESRSESESSIENER -
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Auditor’s remuneration

The Company engaged Moore Stephens CPA Limited as its
auditor for the year ended 31 December 2022. There was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
auditor.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration
paid/payable to Moore Stephens CPA Limited is set out as
follows:

o B8 Bl 57 B

BE_ZT-_—_+-_A=+—HLEHFE K
RRAERBAESREGMEBABERAAF
REZHE EFEREGZBGHIE %

HE_ZE-__F+-_A=+—HBLEFE K
ESHESHMEBMERARANENJE
RErEZINT

Remuneration

Services rendered paid/payable
R RE BT AT A
RMB’000

ARETF T

Audit services EZ RS 816
Non-audit services IEEIZ RS -
Total HEt 816

Acknowledgement of responsibility for
consolidated financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2022. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors:

e assessed the reasonableness of preparing the consolidated
financial statements taking into consideration the Group’s
financial performance, position, cashflows and liquidity
ratios;

e  selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

e made judgements and estimates in a prudent, fair and
reasonable manner.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The statement
of the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” from page
115 to page 121 of this annual report.
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Internal control

Risk management and internal control

The Board emphasises on the importance of risk management
and internal controls on the Group’s business operations
(including environmental, social and governance (‘ESG")) and
development and acknowledges its overall responsibility for the
risk management and internal control systems and the review of
their effectiveness.

The Board evaluates and determines the nature and extent of
risks it is willing to accept, while achieving the Group’s strategic
business objectives. The Board also ensures implementation
and maintenance of effective risk management and internal
control systems; and oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems.

The Board has delegated the responsibility to physically
implement and maintain the risk management and internal control
systems to the management of the Company. The management,
under the supervision of the Board, has implemented and
maintained appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control system, which aims to manage and reduce (i)
risks associated with the Group’s daily operations (including
ESG); (i) risks of failing to achieve business objectives; (iii) risks of
asset misappropriation; and (iv) risks of making potential material
misstatements or losses. However, the risk management and
internal control system can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatements or losses.

The Group does not have an internal audit function. Taking into
account the size, nature and complexity of the Group’s business,
the Board have sufficient capacity to oversee the design and
implementation of the risk management and internal control
system and to assess its effectiveness, and accordingly there is
no immediate need to set up an internal audit function within the
Group.
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The process to identify, evaluate and manage risks are carried
out on a regular and on-going basis. These processes are
summarised as follows:

Risk identification
° Identify risks that may potentially affect the Group’s business
and operations.

Risk assessment
e  Assess the impact and consequence of the identified risks
on the business and the likelihood of their occurrence.

Response to findings of risk assessment
° Prioritise the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

e Determine the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk monitoring and reporting

° Perform ongoing and regular monitoring of the risk and
ensure that appropriate internal control processes are in
place;

e Enhance the risk management strategies and internal
control processes in case of any significant change of
situation; and

e Report the results and effectiveness of risk management
and internal control to the Board regularly.

In relation to the handling and dissemination of inside information,
the Group has implemented in information disclosure policy
to ensure potential inside information being captured and
confidentiality of such information being maintained until
consistent and timely disclosure are made in accordance with the
Listing Rules. The policy is summarised as follows:

° Designated reporting channels from different operations
informing any potential inside information to designated

departments;

e Designated persons and departments to determine further
escalation and disclosure as required; and
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° Designated persons authorised to act as spokespersons
and respond to external enquiries.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
engaged an independent internal control reviewer to review
the effectiveness of its risk management and internal control
system. The scope of review was determined by the Board.
The independent internal control reviewer submitted a report
of findings and areas for improvement to the management.
The management presented these findings and areas for
improvements to the Board and Audit Committee. Having
considered (i) the existence of the risk management and internal
control system; (i) the findings of the independent internal control
reviewer; (i) management will take into account the areas for
improvement suggested by the independent internal control
reviewer and further enhance the risk management and internal
control system, the Board and Audit Committee were of the view
that the Group had no material internal control deficiencies and
its risk management and internal control systems were effective
and adequate.

Company secretary

Ms. Jian Xuegen (“Ms. Jian”) was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 21 September 2019 and is
responsible for overseeing all the company secretarial matters
of the Group. In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Jian possesses
the necessary qualification and experience, and is capable of
performing the functions of a company secretary. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, Ms. Jian confirmed that she has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training as
required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ rights

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. An
AGM of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place
as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other
than an AGM, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting.
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Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, extraordinary general
meeting shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders of the Company holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisition(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the company secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by
shareholders at shareholders’ meetings
Shareholders of the Company are requested to follow article
64 of the Articles for including a resolution at an extraordinary
general meeting. The requirements and procedures are set out
above in the paragraph headed “Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting”.

Pursuant to article 114 of the Articles, no person (other than
a retiring Director) shall, unless recommended by the Board
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at
any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention
to propose that person for election as a Director and notice in
writing by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office of the Company or at the Hong
Kong branch share registrar and transfer office of the Company.
The period for lodgement of the notices required under this
Article will commence no earlier than the day after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting and the minimum length of the period during
which such notices to the Company may be given will be at least
seven days.
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The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a
person for election as a Director is posted on the website of the
Company. Shareholders or the Company may refer to the above
procedures for putting forward any other proposals at general
meetings.

Investors relations

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to its
shareholders. Information of the Company is disseminated to the
shareholders in the following manner:

° Delivery of annual and interim results and reports to all
shareholders;

° Publication of announcements on the annual and interim
results on the website of the Company and the website of
the Stock Exchange, and issue of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules; and

e The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and
shareholders.

The Company has in place a shareholder communication
policy to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to
ensure its effectiveness.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company’s head office.
The Company also maintains a website at www.sprocomm.com
where up-to-date information and updates of the Company’s
operations, performances and strategies are available to public
access.

Constitutional Documents

On 18 October 2019, the Company adopted an amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association which had
been uploaded to the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Save as disclosed above, there had been no changes
in the constitutional documents of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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About the Report

Sprocomm Intelligence Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) presents the Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) report, which contains
information on the Group’s business activities, ESG governance,
strategies, performances and ongoing commitment towards
sustainable development. This ESG report is intended to enhance
the confidence and understanding of the stakeholders towards
the Group.

About the Group

The Group is an ODM mobile phone supplier based in the PRC,
primarily engaged in research and development, designing,
manufacturing and sale of mobile phones, PCBAs for mobile
phones and loT related products, targeting emerging markets.
The Group operates two production bases in the PRC, including
one in Shenzhen that is responsible for the mobile phone
assembly and the other one in Luzhou that is equipped with SMT
lines for the production of PCBAs.

Reporting Period

This ESG report highlights the ESG performance of the Group
from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

Reporting Standard

This ESG report was prepared with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Reporting Guide”) as described in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules and Guidance set out by the Stock Exchange. An
assessment on the applicability and materiality of the relevant
key performance indicators under the ESG Reporting Guide had
been conducted.

Reporting Principles
The Group applied the following principles in this ESG report:

° Materiality: Material and relevant information to stakeholders
on different ESG aspects is covered in this ESG Report.
A materiality assessment was conducted to determine
material ESG issues with results reviewed and approved by
the board of directors (the “Board”).

56 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2022

BN | E

Sprocomm Intelligence Limited ([2N 2 8 ]) & E
MEAR (SEAIEAEER]) 2FIRE 1t &
NER(TRR - HEBRERDWME - EPHT
BRAKEERES RRE HLERER/EE -
R RERHUFEERNSERESHS
BWER « RIRIE HEREGWME 5 EILRFE
DEHRNEENEOR T -

FARAEE
AEBER— RN EODMF # A e -
TEWENE R HENHETH TR
R ENRIE SRR R B EREER - & N6
WA ELHG - AREN T BREEMEEERM -
BRAETFHRARNRIIEE M HELEE
B BE AR KE S ) B AR AR M RS ©

WA

ABRF - HEREAMEEMHANKEH
TR -A-HEZE-__%+-A
=T HERE HERERRR -
& 2 A

(=R a2
RRFE -HEREAMENZEBRIM LT
MAIRIESIMER - +ERE B RER
eI (TRE HERERREES]) Mk
e RRABDFHERERE L& MEIAESITH
PARRESIE SN ERERERE -

& R A
AEBRERE HEREABREFEAT
SRR -

s EHEWARE HELERABRERE
TRRR -HEREBTEHFNEN
EZRAENER - RETERHRR
HeREaEE NARETER R
HeERmEze ((EEg ) B0 RIE -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIR - HERERKRS

e  Quantitative: The relevant standards, methodologies and
assumptions used to prepare the quantitative information
are disclosed, as appropriate. Quantitative information is
provided with narrative and comparative figures, where
possible.

e  Consistency: Consistent methodologies are used to prepare
and present ESG data in this ESG report, unless otherwise
specified, to allow for meaningful comparisons.

° Balance: The information is presented without the
inappropriate use of selections, omissions or other forms of
manipulation that would influence a decision or judgment by
the reader.

Reporting Scope

Based on the principle of materiality, the scope of this ESG report
concentrates on the Group’s business in the PRC, where the
Group carries out its principal business operations and most of
its employees and assets are located. All the PRC entities of the
Group were included in the assessment of ESG performance for
the purpose of this ESG report. The Group’s operations outside
the PRC were not included in the scope as they do not have
significant environmental and social impacts.

ESG Governance

The Group views ESG commitments as part of its responsibilities
and are committed to incorporating ESG considerations into its
decision-making process. To achieve this goal, the Group has
developed a framework to ensure ESG governance is aligned
with its strategic growth, while advocating for the integration
of ESG into its business operations. The structure of ESG
governance mainly comprised of two components, namely the
Board and the management team.

The Board holds the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
strategy and reporting by overseeing the overall governance and
progress of the Group’s ESG management system, policies,
commitments, strategies and objectives.
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Management of the Group is responsible for the collection and
analysis of ESG data, implementation of appropriate strategies
to improve the Group’s ESG performance, assessment of
whether current ESG policies and improvement measures are
effective, compliance with relevant ESG laws and regulations
and the reporting of major issues to the Board. To assess the
effectiveness of the Group’s ESG policies, management sets
key performance indicators and compares the indicators of
current year with those of prior year. Based on the results of this
comparison, ESG reports and the feedback from stakeholders,
the Board reviews the progress made by the Group against its
ESG-related goals and targets. The relevance of ESG-related
goals and targets to the Group’s business operations are
determined by regular communications with stakeholders.

The data and information in this ESG report are sourced from the
relevant documents, reports, statistical data, management and
operation information collected by the Group.

Information relating to the Group’s corporate governance
structure and practices has been set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

ESG Strategies

The Group believes that it is essential to implement appropriate
ESG strategies in order to achieve sustainable corporate
development. Key ESG strategies of the Group are set out below:

e  Maintain regular communications with stakeholders to
identify ESG aspects that are material and relevant

e Maintain high environmental and social standards to ensure
sustainable development of the Group’s business operations

e  Comply with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to
the Group’s business operations including health and safety,
workplace conditions, employment and the environment

° Encourage employees, customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders to participate in environmental and social

activities that benefit the community as a whole

e Review the ESG strategies on an annual basis
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Stakeholder Engagement

The Group values the contributions from its stakeholders as they
can bring potential impacts to the Group’s business. The Group
maintains regular communications with its stakeholders from time
to collect their views on the ESG aspects that they regard as
relevant and important. Its key stakeholders include governments
and regulatory bodies, shareholders, employees, customers,
suppliers and the public society. The Group maintains an open
and transparent dialogue with its stakeholders through various
channels including meetings, trade exhibitions, surveys, seminars
and workshops.

The following table summarises the main expectations and
concerns of the key stakeholders identified by the Group, and the
corresponding management responses.

K ESH
AEETHERHEBBEERENRNE
BER-AEEEMEFSNHERR  TRHRER
ER/RERE HEREREBNERER -
AEENIERNECRBFREE#E
PR BB -EF HEBRLEEAR - XK
BEEe® BMERE #HE- IS RIE
hELERE  BRNELHEARN

TEREAAEERBFNEEHNENETER
HAANRRE DA K B IR fE AR FE A (B FE o

Management responses/

Stakeholders Expectations Communication channels
BHE FEH EEEOE BERE
Governments and regulatory bodies e  Compliance with laws and e  Compliance operation
B R EEHE regulations o SHEE
o  EBEEER e Tax payment in full and on time
e Tax payment in accordance o IRREFEMB
with laws
o HORMTE
Shareholders ° Financial results e Toimprove profitability
3 s MBXRE o  RARBFRE
e  Corporate transparency ° Regular information disclosure
o {EFH e TEHERKE
e Sound risk control e  To optimise risk management
o BiEREERE and internal control
o [BAb[E b E IR KA
Employees e  Career development platform e Promotion mechanism
== e BETBRTA o BETFTHH
e  Salary and benefits e  Competitive salary and employee
o HaekEH benefits
e Safe working environment s EHHFINFSRESETN

e ZTEIFRER

e  To provide trainings for
employees and strengthen their
safety awareness

o REESFI - MBRLEEH
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Management responses/

Stakeholders Expectations Communication channels
=0 " EEEEE BERE
Customers e Logistics and delivery service o To get delivery status through
LN standards product tracking system

o WIRKBLERISRLE

o Customer information
security

s ZEPERELE

e Customer rights and interests
protection

s XEFPERRE

Suppliers o Integrity cooperation
HEm e WMIEAE
e  Business ethics and
credibility

s HEERRKEE

Society and the public o Environmental protection
HEOR o IRIFRE

o Employment opportunities

e [ERE®E
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3B E o B M RS Rl AR
RE

Customer privacy protection
BERPLEBRE
Compliance marketing
BHE

To build a stable and responsible

supply chain
BUBERBEMMHER
To perform the contract
according to law
BEBITAH

To reduce environmental
pollutions

WA BRIR S

To put into use environmental
protection and energy saving
equipment
ERRRENBE R A

To provide equal employment
opportunities

REFERRES



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HEREARE

Materiality Assessment

During the year ended 31 December 2022, with reference to
the scopes as required under the ESG Reporting Guide and
taking into consideration of the Group’s business operations, the
Group identified the following environmental, social and operating
issues that are material and relevant to the Group’s business
operations. If the Group does not implement effective strategies
to monitor and solve these issues, these issues may affect the
Group’s financial condition or operating performance. Further, the
Group made a materiality assessment on these environmental,
social and operating issues by conducting interviews with its
stakeholders.

Environmental issues Social issues

BEEMTM
HE-_ZT-_—#+-A=+—HIEEE &K
SEZERE HERERRELESIRED
HEMEREEREE  #pI AT EASES
BHEBNERRE HEeREEEE - MASE
BRI AE SR AER R RZESRE
BIAREEBM SRR EERBA N EZENFE -
AEBBBEGEFOE  E—PHZEFRE
M REEREET T EEEFMG -

Operating issues

BRIRER HESHE EESIE

1. Greenhouse gas emissions 8. Local community engagement  15. Economic value generated
BERBHEN S2E 4 5 4t & EENRBEEE

2. Energy consumption 9.  Community investment 16. Corporate governance
BEIRH#E HERE TrRER

3. Water consumption 10. Occupational health and safety  17. Anti-corruption
KIRE#E BEERAZR RERE

4,  Waste 11. Labour standards in supply 18. Supply chain management
BE4 chain fHhpEgEE I

HpEgEss T AR

5.  Saving energy measures
B RE 5 bE 12.
5| B B R
6. Use of raw materials and

packaging materials 13. Employee welfare
R R B R R B K=V

7. Compliance with laws 14. Inclusion and equal
and regulations relating to opportunities
environmental protection Hppsa T Eg e

ETIRRAERRARIAR

The Group prioritised the above-mentioned environmental, social
and operating issues in terms of their importance to the Group’s
stakeholders and business operations.

Training and development

19. Customer satisfaction

EFPmEE

20. Customer privacy
BEFEME

AEBCRERAERELMERE HEREER
B AEENRAREREGELNERE -

ZEZZF4F3R Sprocomm Intelligence Limited 61



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HEREARE

Importance to the Group’s stakeholders and
business operations

HEKERNDERERLEENEREE

ESG issues
RE -HEREARBHE

High =
Medium $
Low &

Based on the results of the Group’s materiality assessment, the
Group would formulate and implement appropriate strategies to
monitor and solve the identified issues and to achieve sustainable
business development.

Confirmation and Approval

The Group endeavours to ensure that all the information
presented in this ESG report is accurate and reliable. This ESG
report had undergone the internal review process of the Group
and was reviewed by the Board. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group confirmed that it has established
appropriate and effective management policies and internal
control systems for ESG issues and the contents of this ESG
report comply with the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.

Contact Us

The Group welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions
and suggestions. You can provide valuable advice in respect
of this ESG report or the Group’s performances in sustainable
development by mailing to 5D-506, F1.6 Block, Tianfa Building,
Tianan Chegongmiao Industrial Park, Futian District, Shenzhen,
China.
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A. Environment A. RIE

The Group acknowledges its responsibility to protect

the environment and it has implemented policies to b
reduce emissions and improve the efficiency in the use of
resources.

The Group’s business operations are subject to certain A&
environmental requirements pursuant to the laws in the PRC RE
such as Environmental Protection Law of the PRC ({1 #& R

AR EMERIER#E L)), Evaluation of Environmental =
Effects Law of the PRC ((fh#E A R BB £ B V=D

7)), Prevention and Control of Water Pollution Law of the
PRC ({# # A R £ F1E K5 205 587%)), Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution Law of the PRC ({ &
ANERLFB ARSI E%)), Prevention and Control of
Environmental Noise Pollution Law of the PRC ({/ ZE A
RHEFBRIFRE)S 2 [H47%)), Prevention and Control
of Solid Waste Pollution Law of the PRC ({fr I A R £
n BERE W05 2 IRI[ P16 L)), and Regulations on
the Administration of Construction Project Environmental
Protection ({3518 B IR IR IR EE IR (E1)), and Promotion
of Cleaner Production Law of the PRC ({# ZE A R 70
BB EERHEERD).

TS

=

N2
N

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
complied with all applicable PRC environmental laws
and regulations in all material respects and had not been
subject to any material penalty in relation to environmental
protection.
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A.1 Emissions

During the Group’s production process, there are
certain wastage generated (sources of emissions)
including solid waste, water, noise and polluted air.
The Group has in place standard procedures to
manage, treat and reduce the pollution and wastage
in accordance with national and local requirements.
The Group also has in place facilities for air filtration
to ensure that the level of wastage or pollutants
generated during its production process is within
statutory limits. In addition, the Group has engaged a
professional waste disposal service company for the
disposal of hazardous wastes. To ensure compliance
with the latest environmental laws and regulations, the
Group has internal compliance manuals setting out its
goals and policies in relation to environmental matters.
The Group has been accredited with the ISO 14001
certification of environmental management system.

(i)  Air pollutant emissions

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
air pollutant emissions were mainly related to
petrol consumption for the use of the Group’s
self-owned vehicles, which contributed to the
emission of 10.71 kg (2021: 9.92 kg) of nitrogen
oxides (NOx), 0.19 kg (2021: 0.17 kg) of sulphur
oxides (SOx) and 0.79 kg (2021: 0.73 kg) of
respiratory suspended particles (PM).

Alr pollutant emissions reduction target

To better manage the Group’s ESG performance,
the Group decides to set quantifiable targets for
air pollutant emissions as follows:

A1 HER
AEFEREEBRPELESTED
(BERUR) > BIEERREY - BEK -
RERERSE - AEBEBIRIEE
RN B R RIIIZERE  E
B RENRLSERED K&
RBPELENEYSOSRD N BBE
EHE TEFEEEVEERS
RAEEEEEY - BBRETH
FRELAAEZEIR AEEXEADD
ARFM FAREHEBEHNEEZER
R - AEE IJRESFISO 14001 3R %

~ e
ERRARE -

() ZRIFEDEER
HE-_Z-_—_F+=-A=1+—
BIEFEE  ZR52WHERE
THALEFERE A REME
FOmBER  B8F1071TEA
SENON (=B = —%:9.92
F%) - 0.19 FmFia ¥ (SOx)
T —F:017F%) K%0.79
Fr A RALBIZHF PM) (ZF
T :073T®) -

ZERTRY BB IE

REFEREANEBENRE -
HekERRE AEERE
HEAT A 8L z=RTRY

B AR -

Environmental indicators  Reduction target Baseline year Status
RIEER gz A= HEF R
NOx emission intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2027 Year 2022 In progress
NOX BF R & ZEZEFRIREL 3% === T
SOx emission intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2027 Year 2022 In progress
SOxHERE —T LRI 8% —F== HEAT
PM emission intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2027 Year 2022 In progress
PM Bt iR B ERR L 3% —E—— 1T

Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2022



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERHRS ¥

(i)  Greenhouse gas emissions (i

For the year e
31 Decembe
BE-EC
t=pzt
Emission : | ‘
(intCOe)
BREIR

Scope of greenhouse gas emissions ~ BERBHKHEE  —S(REE) ]
Scope 1 Direct emission HE1EEER |
Combustion of petrol for mobile vehicles  J3Z 51 30.53
Consumption of refrigerant HRHEEE 81.4
Scope 2 Indirect emission #E2BEER

Purchased electricity EEE

Scope 3 Other indirect emission HEIHMEEER

Paper waste disposal BEREE

Water consumption FEK

Business air travel BHRT

Total @t

Notes:

(1) Emission factors were made by reference to Appendix
27 of the Main Board Listing Rules and their referred
documentation as set out by the Stock Exchange, unless
stated otherwise.

(2)  The above emission data does not include the removal of
CO, contributed by recycling of paper.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group’s activities contributed to 6,182.38
tonnes (2021: 6,741.48 tonnes) or 0.1 tCO,/m,
(2021: 0.1 tCO,/m,) of carbon dioxide equivalent
(carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide and
hydrofluorocarbons) emission. The decrease
in carbon dioxide equivalent emission for the
year ended 31 December 2022 was primarily
attributed to the successful implementation of the
Group’s measures to reduce the consumption of
resources, in particular electricity. Details of the
Group’s measures to reduce the consumption
of resources and the related emissions are set
out below. Same as the previous two years, the
Group did not receive any complaints or warnings
on greenhouse gas emissions during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Greenhouse gas emissions reduction target
To better manage the Group’s ESG performance,
the Group decides to set quantifiable targets for
greenhouse gas emissions as follows:

BHE-_T-_—F+=-A=+—
BIEFE AEEMNEEH
6,182.38MWF (=T = — 4F :
6,741.4818) 5¢0.1 M8 — & 1k #ix
BEE/FAHK(ZZE=Z—F:0.1
7= | 1= Cly s ) -}
fbhixEg 2 (Z& kx> B —
St-—amaamittay) - 8
EZE-F+=ZR=+—H
FEFEMN—S/REEHERE
WL EBRRKNERASE
ERLEREENER  LH
RBH - AEBRLERBEE
NMABBAEE M e rE B #E Y
TeoHBEMFE—H5 AEMH
HE-_S-_—_F+-A=+—
ALFETEZETMNEER
BEHERA IS SR S B L -

/i AR B IR
REFHMEREAREERE
HEREBRERE  AERERE
BN TR AR EREDH
MERE

Environmental indicators  Reduction target Baseline year Status
RIEEE BB B R HEEF k3R
Greenhouse gas emissions  Reduce 3% by Year 2027 Year 2022 In progress
BERE ZEZEFRIBAD 3% —T-= HE1T
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Petrol consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group’s motor vehicles travelled 143,334 km
(2021: 132,749 km), which consumed 12,936
litres (2021: 11,663 litres) of petrol (14.53 litres
(2021: 11.78 litres) of petrol per employee) and
contributed to 30.53 tonnes (2021: 27.52 tonnes)
of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions. To reduce
the emissions arising from petrol consumption,
the Group encourages its employees to use
public transport when they attend business
activities. For business activities that take place
within walking distance, the Group encourages its
employees to walk or cycle to the destination.

Refrigerant consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group consumed 45 kg (2021: 50 kg) of
refrigerant (0.05 kg (2021: 0.05 kg) per employee)
in connection with the use of air conditioning
during its daily production and office operations,
which contributed to 81.45 tonnes (2021: 90.50
tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions.
To reduce the emissions arising from refrigerant
consumption, the Group encourages its
employees to switch off the air conditioning when
they leave the office and production premises.

Electricity consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group consumed 6,516,763 kWh (2021:
7,130,284 kWh) of electricity (8,012 kWh (2021:
7,173 kWh) per employee) in connection with
its daily production and office operations,
which contributed to 5,865.09 tonnes (2021:
6,417.26 tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions. To reduce the emissions arising from
electricity consumption, the Group encourages
its employees to switch off the lights and other
electricity appliances when they leave the office
and production premises.

SR E FE
HE-_T-_—_F+=-RA=+—
HIEFEE AEBEAFEITE
143,334 R B (=T = — & :
132,749 2 E) + JH#12,936 7+
BH(ZEZ—%F : 11,6635
) (BE&EBEFE14.53F 5
H(ZE=——%F  11.73H5H)
N HERR30.53H8 (= Z = —4F :
27.52WF) —&/ILTIREE - B
DEHEREEANBEN A&
ExEEEFTRAXARBIA
AEEKEE T THER 2
NREBEBMS  AEBES
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i o
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AEEE AEBEEHEE
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Paper consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group consumed 1.3 tonnes (2021: 1.3 tonnes)
of paper (0.001 tonnes (2021: 0.001 tonnes) per
employee) in connection with its daily business
operations, which contributed to 0.01 tonnes
(2021: 0.01 tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions. To reduce the emissions arising
from paper usage, the Group encourages its
employees to conserve paper, review documents
on computers, send messages to customers via
emails, use recycled paper and adopt double-
sided printing.

Water consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group consumed 28,101 cubic metres (2021:
32,820 cubic metres) of water (31.6 cubic metres
(2021: 33.0 cubic metres) per employee) in
connection with its daily business operations,
which contributed to 28.10 tonnes (2021: 32.82
tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions.
To reduce the emissions arising from water
usage, the Group encourages its employees to
conserve water and remember to turn off the
water tap after use. As a result, the employees
have increased their awareness to reduce
water consumption. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group did not encounter any
problems in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.
Further, the Group did not consume a significant
amount of water that was and disproportional to
the scale of its business operations.

Business air travel

The Group’s business nature requires employees
to travel by air to other countries for meetings with
customers and suppliers. They would only travel
by air when necessary and the Group keeps
track of their business air travels. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, business air travels of
the Group’s employees had contributed a total of
177.16 tonnes (2021: 173.37 tonnes) of carbon
dioxide equivalent emission.
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(i)

(iv)

Hazardous waste

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group generated minimal amount of hazardous
waste. The major hazardous waste generated by
the Group was waste light tube. To minimise the
impact on environment, the Group has engaged
a professional waste disposal service company
for the disposal of hazardous wastes. The Group
will strive to reduce generation of hazardous
waste through upgrading technologies whenever
possible. Same as the previous two years, the
Group did not receive any complaints or warnings
on disposal of its hazardous waste during the
year ended 31 December 2022, and targets to
achieve the same performance in 2023.

Non-hazardous waste
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group generated a total of 1,450 tonnes (2021:
1,550 tonnes) of non-hazardous waste (1.63
tonnes (2021: 1.56 tonnes) per employee). The
non-hazardous waste generated by the Group
were packaging materials generated from the
Group’s production process. The Group regularly
reminds its employees to use resources efficiently
and try to avoid the generation of waste. As
a result, the employees’ awareness of waste
management has been increased. Same as the
previous two years, the Group did not receive
any complaints or warnings on disposal of its
non-hazardous waste during the year ended 31
December 2022, and targets to achieve the same
performance in 2023.

(it A (zR
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A.2 Use of resources

Reducing consumption of resources and enhancing
utilisation efficiency are the Group’s principles in
minimising adverse impact on the environment and
natural resources that may be caused by its business
operations. The Group has adopted a set of guidelines
to achieve efficient use of energy, water and other
resources for long-term sustainability.

The Group’s total consumption of resources during
the year ended 31 December 2022 together with the
relevant conservation measures adopted by the Group
are detailed in the section headed “A.1 Emissions”
above.

A.3 The environment and natural resources

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s
business activities did not cause significant adverse
impact on the environment and natural resources.

To further improve the use of resources, the Group
takes the following actions on an ongoing basis:

e  keep track of its consumption level of resources;

° review the effectiveness of its conservation
measures; and

e design improvement measures

As a result, the Group’s employees are more aware of
the importance of using resources efficiently.
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A.4 Climate change A4 RIRZ1L

The Group manages the climate change risk with
reference to the Recommendations of the Task Force
on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD),
which contains four major components: Governance,
Strategy, Risk Management and Metrics and Targets.
The Board overseas the governance and reporting of
the Group’s climate change risk.

Management of the Group regularly monitors and
identifies climate change risk that is relevant to the
Group’s business operations. Strategies will be
implemented on a timely manner to mitigate such risk.

Climate change is mainly caused by the release of
carbon dioxide into the atmosphere, resulting from
the use of fossil fuels for electricity generation and for
transportation. As mentioned above, the Group has
implemented appropriate strategies to use resources
more efficiently and reduce emissions to combat
climate change and reduce potential costs in the
future.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
identified the following climate-related risks that
may have material impacts on the Group’s business
operations:

Physical risks

The increased frequency and severity of extreme
weather such as typhoons, storms and heavy rains can
disrupt the Group’s operations by damaging the power
grid, and communication infrastructures, and injuring
its employees during their work, leading to reduced
capacity and decreased in productivity, or expose
the Group to risks associated with non-performance
and delayed performance. To minimise the potential
risks and hazards, the Group has flexible working
arrangements and precautionary measures during bad
or extreme weather conditions.
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Transition risks

The Group anticipates that there will be more stringent
climate legislations and regulations to support the
global vision of carbon neutrality. We acknowledge
the requirements to enhance the climate-related
information disclosures as a result of the recent update
of the ESG Reporting Guide in respect to significant
climate-related impact disclosures of an issuer. Stricter
environmental laws and regulations may expose
enterprises to higher risks of claims and lawsuits.
Corporate reputation may also be adversely affected
by the failure to meet the compliance requirements for
climate change. The Group’s related capital investment
and compliance costs may increase. In response to
the policy and legal risks as well as the reputation risks,
the Group regularly monitors existing and emerging
trends, policies and regulations relevant to climate and
be prepared to alert the Board where necessary to
avoid cost increments, penalties for non-compliance
and/or reputational risks due to delayed response.

B. Social

72

B.1 Employment and labour practices

(i) Employment
Total employees

The Group had 890 full-time employees in the
PRC as at 31 December 2022 (31 December
2021: 1,022). The Group did not have any part-
time employees as at 31 December 2022. During
the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
adjusted the number of staff according to its
actual business needs.
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Set forth below is the Group’s employee turnover
rate by gender, age group and geographical
region:

Geographical location: The PRC
For the year ended 31 Decem -‘;
BE-S-—F+=-A=+—F

I

Male
Turnover rate MEE . l I
30 or below 30K AT ‘
31-40 31 = 405%
41-50 412 505%
Above 50 508 A £
Total by gender g R R oE

Geographical location: The PRC

For the year ended 31 De '
BE-2-_—-%+=A

Turnover rate RER

30 or below 0mHKUT 000 676%  804%  729%
31-40 31 E408%

41-50 41 E508%

Above 50 50 %A

Total by gender R BIHI R A
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Set forth below are the distribution of the Group’s UMTRZZE=-=_F+=A4
employees as at 31 December 2022 by gender =T —RERURNNFERES S
and age group: KIS @ B B o1 -

DISTRIBUTION OF
EMPLOYEES BY GENDER

BURE SNBSS

DISTRIBUTION OF
EMPLOYEES BY AGE GROUP
BFRABTNES D

Above 50

41-50 5
412 505% 5139/0;%% A

74

12%
Female
it
49% 30-41 30 or
Male  soza1 below
B 419 30BRK
51% AT
46%

Employee benefits and welfare

The Group enters into employment contracts
with its employees and the employment contract
terms were stipulated under the principles of
fairness, voluntarism, mutual consent, integrity
and credibility. The remuneration package offered
to employees includes salary, bonuses and other
subsidies. In general, the remuneration package
is based on each employee’s qualifications,
position, seniority and work performance. The
Group carries out an annual review system to
assess the performance of its employees, which
forms the basis of decisions with respect to salary
raises, bonuses and promotions.

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group maintains social insurance for its
employees pursuant to the applicable PRC laws
and regulations by making contributions to the
mandatory social insurance and housing provident
funds which provide basic retirement, medical,
work-related injury, maternity and unemployment
benefits.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group complies with the Labour Law of the PRC
and did not experience any significant disputes
with its employees or any disruption to business
operations due to labour disputes. In addition,
the Group did not experience any difficulties in
the recruitment and retention of experienced core
staff or skilled personnel.

Labour standards

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there
was no child labour nor forced labour working
in the Group. The job application requirement
specifies that job applicants must be at least 18
years old. To ensure that job applicants can meet
the age requirement, identities of job applicants
are verified against their valid identity documents,
relevant permits and certificates.

The human resources department is required
to carry out background checks to authenticate
information provided by job applicants and
is required to fill in forms that confirm hired
employees have met the age requirement. If
child labour or forced labour is discovered, such
matter will be reported to the human resources
department and the senior management and
the Group will enhance the internal controls | ) :
immediately. No material non-compliance ; IEEbEY, — — — — % ‘
in relation to laws and regulations regarding : <
prevention of child and forced labour was
recorded during the year ended 31 December
2022.
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(i)

Equal opportunity

The Group provides equal opportunities for
employees in respect of recruitment, job
advancement, training and development, etc.
Employees are not discriminated against or
deprived of such opportunities on the basis of
race, nationality, religion, physical condition,
disability, gender, pregnancy, sexual orientation,
political status, age and any other discrimination
prohibited by applicable law. Employees shall
not act in discriminatory manner or they can be
subject to disciplinary actions.

Employee relations

The Directors consider that it is important to
maintain good relationship with employees.
The Group maintains regular communications
with its employees by arranging gatherings,
celebration activities and trainings. Through these
activities, the Group would collect feedback
from its employees on job satisfactions and
their expectations on the Group and would
implement appropriate strategies to improve the
work environment and its relationship with the
employees.

Employee health and safety

The Group places emphasis on occupational
health and work safety. It provides a safe
working environment and training sessions for its
employees to ensure that they can work safely. It
has also implemented a system of recording and
handling accidents. Further, the Group also has
dedicated personnel responsible for administering
the internal worker safety policies, providing
relevant training and education, and conducting
regular inspections. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group had not experienced
any material safety accidents or been penalised
for any non-compliance relating to work safety
laws and regulations.
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Occupational health and safety data
for the three years ended 31 December 2022

iﬁﬁ:g

=+-H

RERR

Work related fatality

Work injury cases >3 days
Work injury cases <=3 days
Lost days due to work injury

Development and training

The Group provides comprehensive training
and development opportunities to its employees
on a regular basis. The trainings are arranged
according to needs of employees, which were
identified annually by individual departments:

a. Orientation training — To familiarise
employees with the Group’s objectives,
culture, rules and regulations, safety and
product-related knowledge on the first day
of work;

H IS
BRI L
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=530k
ERmE

Pre-job training — To familiarise new
employees or transferred employees with
their new duties;

On-the-job training — To ensure that the
employees are familiar with the Group’s
products, to sharpen the sales technique
and customer service standard of sales
and marketing personnel and to ensure the
production and quality control personnel
perform proper quality control procedures.

Set forth below is the number and
percentage of training hours completed
by the Group’s employees by gender and
employee category:

b. & AT IR B X

EEESNETEBE

c. HEBIFI-HEREERE

AEBEMER RIHEE
REHABMHEERTTR
EERBGZE  EREE
FEREANBZERTERE
R e

AT RAEEREZMER
K 18 B H8 5 P 52 B #3591
RERADL

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_S__F+-A=1T-HLFE

% of training

hours by
employee
category
RESEHR
Employee category Male Female Total ElaickEl
BERA B prg i3 &t BENADL
Training hours Training hours Training hours
Xl & RAllE & Xl 2
Senior management 152 - 152 2.6%
mRERE
Middle management 448 256 704 11.9%
hREEE
Other employees 2,580 2,496 5,076 85.5%
HitESR
Total 3,180 2,752 5,932 100.0%
st
% of training hours 53.6% 46.4% 100.0%
by gender
RIE BB 7 B X A 2
BB
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B.2 Operating practices

U)

For the year ended 31 December

BE-_S--ft-A=t-AL

Employee category Male Female

EEER E]:d g3

Training hours Training h0ur§
LEl] =3 2

Senior management 46
SRERE
Middle management 552
FRERE
Other employees 5,992
HitER
Total 6,590
st
% of training hours 54.9%
by gender
BMRE DR IIEE
MEDL

Supply chain management
The Group purchases raw materials and
equipment based on its own needs,
specifications, quality and safety performance of
equipment, reputation, after-sales service and
delivery time of the supplier. The Group compares
different suppliers to select qualified suppliers
(based on their product specifications, product
compliances, production management, quality , &
management and also ESG performances) before
the Group enters into contract with the qualified
suppliers.

o

When selecting equipment, the Group would also
consider whether they are energy efficient and
environmental friendly. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group principally sourced
its major raw materials (including PCBAs, display
modules, camera modules and mobile chips) and
equipment from PRC suppliers.
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The geographical locations of the Group’s
suppliers of raw materials and equipment were as
follows:

AEERMF RREOHER
ZIUIBALEMNT

Number of suppliers

HEBHE
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BZE HE
—E-C —E-—F
Geographical locations of +=B=+—-H8 +=ZA=+—H
the Group’s suppliers rEBHEFNMENE LEFE IEFE
The PRC H 643 609
Hong Kong BE 72 102
Total &&t 715 711

The Group expects its suppliers to uphold the
environmental, social and governance principles
that the Group has adopted into the management
of its business operations. In order to ensure
that the components and raw materials meet the
requisite safety and quality standards, the Group
adopts stringent criteria in supplier selection
(including but not limited to whether they provide
high quality raw materials, whether they maintain
a high standard on environmental protection
and comply with relevant laws on environmental
issues, whether price is comparable to
market rate and location of their factories) and
continuously monitors existing suppliers on an
annual basis, based on criteria such as product
quality, product defect ratio, delivery punctuality
ratio and responsiveness.

Whether the supplier will continue to be included
in the Group’s list of approved suppliers depends
on the marks it achieved under annual evaluation.
The awareness of environmental protection is one
of the key criteria for the Group to evaluate the
suppliers.
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Product responsibility
Product assurance and recall

Product quality is crucial to the Group’s
continued success. The Group places strong
emphasis on achieving a consistently high quality
for its products. To achieve such purpose,
stringent quality control measures throughout
the production process were implemented to
ensure the quality and safety of our products.
The Group’s quality control department performs
regular inspections to evaluate the effectiveness
of the quality control measures and further
enhance these measures when necessary.

The Group’s quality management system has
complied with the standard of GB/T19001-
2016/1S09001:2015 Quality Management
Systems Requirements and awarded a certificate
for the design, development, production and
services of communication products, including
exportable mobile phone, on 18 January 2019,
which remains valid until 16 January 2025.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group did not experience any claims, litigations
and arbitrations or material adverse findings in
inspection by government authorities with respect
to product quality.

The Group only accepts product returns if
there is manufacture or design defect or the
product specification deviates from customers’
specifications During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group did not experience
any product recall, material non-compliance
with laws and regulations in relation to product
safety nor receive any material complaints from
consumers.
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(i)

Intellectual property rights and information
security

As a mobile phone supplier with strong design
capability, the Group registers patents to
safeguard the technologies and mobile phone
applications developed by the research and
development department time to time. The Group
relies on the relevant laws and regulations to
protect its brand names, trademarks and other
intellectual property rights.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group was not aware of any material infringement
(i) by the Group of any intellectual property rights
owned by any third parties; or (i) by any third
party of any intellectual property rights owned
by the Group. Further, there were no pending
or threatened material claims made against the
Group, nor had there been any material claims
made by the Group against third parties, with
respect to the infringement of intellectual property
rights owned by the Group.

Anti-fraud and anti-corruption

According to the Group’s anti-corruption policy, all
employees shall abide by the laws and regulations
of the PRC and shall not engage in any illegal
activities. Employees shall uphold the code of
ethics, advocate fair competition and act against
bribery. Any bribery, fraud, money laundering and
embezzlement are prohibited.

Employees must not accept or request any
improper benefits including banquets, gifts,
securities, valuables and high-expenditure
entertainment activities from business partners,
suppliers and merchants, etc. When there is any
alleged case in violation of laws, regulations,
code of conduct or Group’s policies, the Group
will investigate and impose disciplinary actions
upon offenders after verification. The Group also
provides trainings to directors and employees
from time to time to ensure that they comply and
familiar with the anti-fraud and anti-corruption
policy of the Group.
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The Board will monitor and review the
effectiveness of the anti-fraud and anti-corruption
policy from time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group complied with all applicable laws on
prohibiting corruption and bribery of the PRC
and there was no concluded legal case regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees.

Whistleblowing policy

The Group has implemented whistleblowing
policy to provide a well-defined and accessible
channel for reporting fraud, corruption, dishonest
practices, or other similar matters and guidance
on how an investigation would be initiated upon
receiving a complaint. The policy also protects
employees who report fraudulent activities in
good faith and reasonable belief. A whistleblowing
officer is elected to ensure that any reported case
is dealt with in an expedited manner.

Upon receiving the complaint, the Board
decides the method of investigation, which may
involve appointing an external consultant for
assessment. The Board will monitor and review
the effectiveness of the whistleblowing policy from
time to time.
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(iv) Data protection and privacy policy

The Group is committed to protecting the
privacy of its customers, employees, business
partners and suppliers by maintaining a safe
and secure data environment. The Group has
implemented appropriate policies to ensure that
all personal and business data collected during
the Group’s business activities are organised and
secured properly. Computers and servers are
protected from access passwords, Employees
are instructed of their responsibility to follow the
confidentiality code on the access to information
and to ensure the safekeeping of all personal,
customer and business data, trade secrets and
proprietary information. Employees are prohibited
from disclosing the information to unauthorised
parties.

B.3 Community investment

The Group acknowledges corporate social
responsibility and allocates resources to satisfy the
needs of the community. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group spent reasonable amount
of time and resources on environmental protection
as well as cultural and sport promotion. The Group
encouraged its employees to participate charitable
events. Going forward, the Group will continue to focus
on community needs and increase its investment in
community.
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The ESG Reporting Guide Content Index of &H&
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited e

Subject areas, aspects, Description
general disclosures and KPls
TEHE EE —REER it
BRENIER

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

BEIWERE

Governance Structure

E /l:l ?Eﬁ ,‘ |
A statement from the board containing the
following elements: !

MEFSRHNBA EPHETIIA

B
RE

(i)  adisclosure of the board’s oversigf
ESG issues;
REEESURE HgRER

HESE

(i) the board’s ESG management ap
and strategy, including the proce:
used to evaluate, prioritise and m
material ESG-related issues (in I
risks to the issuer’s businesses);
EEENRE HERERE
LR - BEE - RS
BEMBRE HEREAEHEED |
EH BT ALBHER) 1387 A -

(i) how the board reviews progress n
against ESG-related goals and t

the issuer’s businesses.
EEENAIRIRE %i

Eﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ'ﬁf»/,
TAEBERE -
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EH —REER
BRENER

Description

g

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

BRI -HEREBRREN
HERES BH

Reporting Principles
HERA

Reporting Boundary
HREEE

Aspect A1: Emissions
EBmEA : WY
General Disclosure

— IR

A description of, or an explanation on, the
application of the reporting principles in the
preparation of the ESG report.

M BEERERE HegkEomE

I 4 o] j& AR EE 3R R A ©

A narrative explaining the reporting
boundaries of the ESG report and describing
the process used to identify which entities or
operations are included in the ESG report.

If there is a change in the scope, the issuer
should explain the difference and reason for
the change.

RRERE HehEmENERDE -
&T APk AE WP LE B RS SN R TG AIRIE » 1t

KRERIMEH)BIE - HEREEAFPIE -

??}\FEM%%TI—JZJ‘E&“@JJ?I °

Information on:
BHEBERIBERBHN - MAKRTHHY
5 BEREEBREEMNEELESH

(@ the policies; and
BE R

(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and nonhazardous waste.
BIHETAGEAXLENHBER
NIROIEE R -
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPls
TEHE EH —REER
BRENER

Description

g

KPI A1.1
A AE BB IR AT

KPIA1.2
PR AN IRIRAL2

KPI A1.3

RS AEMIEIRA1.3

KPI A1.4

R EBIRIZAL1 4

KPIA1.5
FASAE IR IRALE

KPIA1.6
FARAE IR IRA1.6

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

e tE A AR R BRI -

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in to
and intensity.
/J:I:Il:l:ﬁ x_:%@ EFE&E (L/U]@E u-l-ﬁ) &f‘r—

Total hazardous waste produced (in ton
and intensity.

FEEAEREYRE (AN E) Kk

i

Total non-hazardous waste produced
tonnes) and intensity.
%Eiﬂ%@$%%zﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁf
Description of reduction initiatives an :
achieved. '

i L RLES 9 B BB Y i S AT AR PR

Description of how hazardous and 1
hazardous wastes are handled, red !
initiatives and results achieved.
WLREEENEBEERMHITE R
EEBMEBRRAGHKE - |

-
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EH —REER
BRENER

Description

g

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

BRI -HEREBRREN
HERES BH

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2: EREH

General Disclosure

— R ER

KPI A2.1
RS IE IR A2

KPI A2.2
RSB BUIEIZA2.2

KPI A2.3
FARAENUERA2.3
KPIA2.4

FASR AR R FE IR A2.4

KPI A2.5
FARENUERA2.5
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Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw
materials.

ERFEAER(BIEER  KEEMEME)
HIR °

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type in total and intensity.
REAESNEE R SREERREESE
REE -

Water consumption in total and intensity.
BFEKERTE -

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives
and results achieved.
i e R (5 FA AR s 5T &) R PTAS BCR ©

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
I SKEGER AR Er BEREE - A&
RIARAKB T8I R PAERER -

Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes).
X MATABEEMHEEE (AEEE) -
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A.2 Use of resources
A2 & JRE A

A.1 Emissions

ATHER

A.1 Emissions —

(i) Greenhouse gas emissions —
Water consumption
ATHER— (i) R EREHEM—
FAX

A.1 Emissions

ATHERR

A.1 Emissions —

(i) Greenhouse gas emissions —
Water consumption
ATHER— (i) R EREHEM—
FA7X

A.1 Emissions —
(iv) Non-hazardous waste
AAHER— (V) EEEY
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RE - HERERHRS

Subject areas, aspects, Description
general disclosures and KPls

TEER EFEH  —REER #Ht
BRENER

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
EBEA3 : BRERRAARER

f

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significé
— R EE impact on the environment and natural K
resources. N
BEZETAHRRRRAREREKNEXS
BHHEK - ‘
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of |
B AE BUIE IR A3 activities on the environment and natura I
resources and the actions taken to manage
them. I

R R EHHRFERRAEIRNE
ERCROEERBTENTE -

Aspect A4: Climate Change
EBHA4 : RIZFEt

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigatior
— B R significant climate-related issues whic

impacted, and those which may imp:
issuer. 5
BRI R EEH B AR AR H BT ‘
EHNEARGEAEEOBE -
KPI A4.1 Description of significant cIimate-reI
AR IE IR IR A4 issues which have impacted and/or
impact the issuer and the actions tak
manage them.
HABTEM KRR BT
RIRAEFARRE - AR AEHRHRE]
HEITE - pe
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RIR - HERERKRE

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EH —REER
BRENER

Description

g

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

BRI -HEREBRREN
HERES BH

Aspect B1: Employment
BEB1: EE

General Disclosure

— R ER

KPIB1.1
RS AIE R B

KPIB1.2
B RIERB1.2

90

Information on:

BRI RERE - BEREA - TIERE -
RE - TE#E  ZFuf REGSUERH
b5 aE R Aa Y

(@ the policies; and
mE &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.
BIFHETAGEAZENHBER
RIROIEE R

Total workforce by gender, age group and
geographical region.

BRI FieARI Mt EEI O WIES AR -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group
and geographical region.

BRI - FEAA R KRR Bl B E B K
E 30
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B.1 Employment and labour
practices

BARERSETER

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (i) Employment —
Total employees
BAEMRNSE TER—

() E1E—1E B2

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (i) Employment —
Total employees
BAEMR NS TER—
VER—EEEH
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RE - HERERHRS

Subject areas, aspects, Description
general disclosures and KPls

TEER EFEH  —REER #Ht
BRENER

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2: #ERZ2

f

General Disclosure Information on:
— MR R ERRHE2TIERERREES & 2]
) I

(@) the policies; and

128 3

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impa
on the issuer relating to providing :
working environment and protecti
employees from occupational ha
BFTHETABEATENER
KRG EHY - i

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatali
R E IR IRB2.1 ATEEEMIETHAB KX -

KPI B2.2 Lost days due towork injury. ~ B.1 Employment and labour
BSEAEMIEIRB2.2 TERIKRE -
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational --;; d 3
PR E IR IEB2.3 safety measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

= ] T / #’7
ETRERT2EE - ARMAHT R
B EE MR :

-
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RIR - HERERKRE

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EH —REER
BRENER

Description

g

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

BRI -HEREBRREN
HERES BH

Aspect B3: Development and Training

BEEB3: BREKIEI
General Disclosure

—RIEE

KPI B3.1
AR IR R B3

KPI B3.2
FAS AR MIE 1R B3.2

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : & T#8|
General Disclosure

—RIKER

KPI B4.1
BB AR AIE R BAA

92

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
BRRTEEETIIERE N MBI RKEE
BVIR o IR FIEE -

Percentage of employees trained by gender
and employee category.

RUEFIREERNESNZIREBDL -

Average training hours completed by gender
and employee category.
IR REE RIS S
P EE -

BRREBTKE

Information on:

B BRI 1 Tk s Ty -

(@ the policies; and

B &

(o) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labour.
BITHETAGEAZENHBER
KARBIE RS -

Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

it te s EREMOERAREET N
Hl55 T e
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B.1 Employment and labour
practices —

(iv) Development and training
BRI RS TEHR—

(iv) BB R IEF

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (iv) Development and
training

BAEMBRSE ITEHR—

(IV) %E &iu DJ”

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (iv) Development and
training

BlEBERSIHER—
(IV)%E prgsil

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (i) Employment

BAERBENMS TER—()ERE

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (i) Employment

B1REEMLIERE—()ERE
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B HEREARE

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EH —REER
BRENER

Description

R

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

B HEREARBEN
HEREDS BH

KPIB4.2
FABAAAIERBA.2

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.

IR IR E R BN ER A B IE R PTER
HRE) 28R o

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[BEB5: HEEERE
General Disclosure

—RIKER

KPI B5.1
RASE AR R B5.

KPI B5.2
FABAEIERB5.2

KPIB5.3
RIS A RIERB5.3

KPI B5.4
BB AE IR R B 4

Policies on managing environmental and
social risks of the supply chain.
EIRHEENRE M ERARBUR
Geographical locations of major suppliers.
T2HERMIELE -

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers.

AR B EEEAIER -

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

it A B e S AR E R R IR At
SRREER - ARBERITRERGE -

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

M EBRE R BRI R EEZ BRERERK
RRISEVIE G - ARABRAMAIT REER A °

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EmEB6: EmEIE

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (i) Employment

BlEEES TER—()ER

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Supply chain management
B2 & EH () EEEE

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Supply chain management
B2 FH—(VEEEER

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Supply chain management
B2REFH—(VHEEER

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Supply chain management
B2EEFER—()HEEE R

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Supply chain management
B2 R —(EEE R
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RIR - HERERKRE

Subject areas, aspects, Description Relevant section in the ESG
general disclosures and KPIs report/Declaration
TEHE EH —REER #Ht B HEREARBEN
BRENER HEEH BH
General Disclosure Information on: B.2 Operating practices —
— MR EHMRHERNRGORESEELZS &S + (i) Product responsibility
BHELALBERE AR AR B2 EH—(\EmEE
(@ the policies; and
BE &
(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of
redress.
BIFHETAGEAXLENBBER
KRB ERL -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped B.2 Operating practices —
B 4B 512 B6.1 subject to recalls for safety and health (i) Product responsibility
reasons. B2iE& g —(\EMEEL
EERCEXERBAHT R 2 EERE
BB E DL -
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related B.2 Operating practices —

B4 45 IR 1R B6.2

KPI B6.3

FAEAE N E15B6.3

KPI B6.4
AR 4B RIS B6.4

complaints received and how they are dealt
with.

BREEREDRRBHIRFEE A RES
TV e

Description of practices relating to observing
and protecting intellectual property rights.

fih B E RIS AN B ERE R BB -

Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures.
HilEsRTRAEERBRKIERF -
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(i) Product responsibility
B2 EEHR—(EmEE

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Product responsibility
B2 EE R — (i) EmEE

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Product responsibility
B2EEEMR—(EmMEIE
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPls
TEHE EH —REER
BRENER

Description

g

KPI B6.5
RABARIEIRB6.5

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : RES
General Disclosure

— R

KPI B7.1
BB AR RIE R BT 1

KPIB7.2
RS NIRIRBT .2

KPI B7.3
S MIEIEBT.3

Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

W B E ERRE RALBBER - ARA
BT RERTA -

Information on:

BRI BERE - 91K - EEREREN -

(@) the policies; and

HER &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to brik
extortion, fraud and money laundei
BTHETABEARZENAH
KRB EHL - -

Number of concluded legal cases rege
corrupt practices brought against the
or its employees during the reporting p ‘
and the outcomes of the cases. .

RBEHNERITAREESRHTES
REHESHRARUNEE RFDRER -

Description of preventive measures and
whistleblowing procedures, ar1 w they are
implemented and monitored
By S 45 b R AR -
NEEERTIE

Description of anti-corruption tr
provided to directors and staff.
MimEERE TRENRESE
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RE - HERERKRE

Subject areas, aspects, Description Relevant section in the ESG
general disclosures and KPIs report/Declaration

TEHE EH —REER #Ht B HEREARBEN
BRENER HEEH BH

Aspect B8: Community Investment
EEB8: HEBRE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to B.3 Community investment
—fRIREE understand the needs of the communities B3fitEIEE

where the issuer operates and to ensure

its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

RN E2ERT FREITASERER
EEENBREERSDHGE BT RN

HYBRER o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, B.3 Community investment
A $E 45 3B 1Z B84 environmental concerns, labour needs, B3tEIEE

health, culture, sport).
LEAREE (FINRE - REMNE - ST
Bk R L BE) o

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) B.3 Community investment
B A N I51EB8.2 to the focus area. B3tt@miE

EEIHRBMPAER(MEEREH)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
e

The directors present to the shareholders the annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022.

Principal activities

The Group is an ODM mobile phone supplier based in the PRC,
primarily engaged in research and development, designing,
manufacturing and sale of mobile phones, PCBAs for mobile
phones and loT related products, targeting emerging markets.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement”, “Management and Discussion and Analysis”,
“Corporate Governance Report”, “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” and “Financial Summary” of this annual
report.

Principal risk factors and uncertainties

The following sets out the principal risks and uncertainties
encountered by the Group in its business operations:

Rapid technological changes

The Group operates in the mobile phone industry characterised
by rapid technological changes with short product life cycle, and
the Group may not be able to maintain its revenue growth and
any delay by us in rolling out new and competitive mobile phones
will adversely affect its financial performance.

Thin net profit margin

The Group has a relatively thin net profit margin and hence are
highly sensitive to any unfavorable change in the cost of sales,
selling price and sales volume.

Concentration of customers

The Group has a concentration of customers and any decrease
or loss of business from these major customers could adversely
and substantially affect its business operations and financial
conditions.

EEMREREHE_ZT_—_F+ A
=+ —HIEFERNTFRREEEZGRATHRE

FEXR®
AREES—EUR P B ODMF#AEFER
TERENE R  RENHETHE  FH
MEIRIERRER LB EEEER T2
HAFETE - ARABEEWNEB R ANFFIS
BN AWM RRMIFES9

¥ O RE
AEEBE_T_—_F+_A=+—HBLHF
EREKDBERAFERIEFERE] [
Brmkott]  [DEESHERE] - [FRE &
GRERAREIRIMEHE ] K& -

FTREBREERTRERR
TXRIAEEEBLEARNEZARR
THRERE

ity 25 4 PR R

REEN TR LT TR0 R R
R ERESBEE - AEEERAREK
HEEARMAEH ST RART HOTH
B B R RS R AR RIS -

AR RBE
AEEN AN RBEWE - FULHHERA
HEBRLHEEMNEA TN CEIER R -

BEE&KH
AEEFEEPETNERARKEZEEE
PR EBR DMK AT B IR R B
BRMBARNEEBER PN E
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Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials
Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials may affect the Group’s
cost of sales and adversely affect its business operations and
profitability.

Future prospect and development

The Group’s business growth is expected to be driven by (i) the
huge population and the increasing disposable income of the
Group’s target sales locations; (ii) increasing demand for loT
products; and (i) the roll-out of 5G telecommunication network.
In order to capture the potential market opportunities, the
Group will continue to expand its production capacity, enhance
its research and development capability, enrich its product
portfolio and increase its sales and marketing effort to diversify its
geographical locations.

Major suppliers and customers

During the year ended 31 December 2022, sales to the Group’s
largest customer and five largest customers accounted for
20.8% and 47.3% (2021: 23.6% and 54.3%) of the total revenue,
respectively.

On the other hand, purchases from the Group’s largest supplier
and the five largest suppliers during the year ended 31 December
2022 accounted for approximately 11.9% and 38.0% (2021:
10.0% and 23.7%) of the total purchases, respectively.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Key relationships with employees,
customers and suppliers

Maintaining good relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers is critical to the Group’s business success. The Group
creates a decent working environment for its employees, where
they can work comfortably and achieve a work life balance. The
Group rewards its employees based on their performance and
also provides training to enhance their skills and knowledge. No
strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace accidents are found
in the reporting period under review.
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The Group believes that it is important to listen to customers’
needs and feedbacks on its products in order to maintain
sustainable relationship with customers. The Group collects such
information from various channels and performs detailed analysis
on how to improve existing products and develop new products
that would satisfy its customers.

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to
meet our customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner.
The departments work closely to make sure the tendering and
procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just
manner.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During the year ended 31 December 2022, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Group has complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group. The Group also complied with (i) the requirements
under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) for the
disclosure of information and corporate governance; and (i) the
ordinances relating to occupational safety for the interest of its
employees.

Business activities in countries subject to
international sanctions

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
Group did not sell any products to countries that are subject
to international sanctions. The Group would not enter into any
transactions to finance or facilitate, directly or indirectly, activities
or business with, or for the benefit of, the countries subject to
international sanctions or sanctioned persons where this would
be in breach of the international sanctions.

The Directors believe that the Group has a reasonably adequate
and effective internal control framework to continue to assist the
Group in identifying and monitoring any material risk relating to
international sanctions laws so as to protect the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders.
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Environmental policy and social
responsibility

The Group understands the importance of environmental
sustainability and protection and has adopted policies on
pollution prevention, preservation of natural resources and
adherence to environmental laws and regulations. Please refer to
the ESG Report on pages 56 to 96 for details of the Group’s ESG
performance.

Results and dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on page 122. The
directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022
are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Closure of the register of members

For the purposes of determining the shareholders’ eligibility to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting to
be held on 30 May 2023 (Tuesday), the register of members of
the Company will be closed from 24 May 2023 (Wednesday) to
30 May 2023 (Tuesday), both days inclusive. The latest time to
lodge transfer documents for registration will be at 4:30 p.m.
on 23 May 2023 (Tuesday). During the above closure period,
no transfer of shares will be registered. To be eligible to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer
forms must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m.
on 23 May 2023 (Tuesday).

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, redemption or sale of listed
securities of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

Reserves and distributable reserves

The movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of this annual report. The
distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Tax relief and exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption
available to the shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.
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Charitable donations

The Group did not make any donation during the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: RMB nil).

Management contracts

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company or its
subsidiaries were entered into or existed.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Chengjun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Xiong Bin (Vice-chairman)

Mr. Guo Qinglin

Mr. Wen Chuanchuan

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Hung Wai Man

Mr. Wong Kwan Kit

Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen

Ms. Tseng Chin |

In accordance with article 109(a) of the Company’s articles of
association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The Company
at the general meeting at which a Director retires may fill the
vacated office.
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In accordance with article 113 of the Company’s articles of
association, the Board shall have power from time to time and at
any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional Director, provided that the number
of Directors so appointed shall not exceed the maximum number
determined from time to time by the shareholders in general
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
the Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed under this
article shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors
or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at an
annual general meeting.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation as required by
the Company’s articles of association, and the code provisions of
CG Code.

In accordance with 109(a) of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Li Chengjun, Mr. Wong Kwan Kit and Mr. Lu
Brian Yong Chen will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

Biographical details of directors and senior
management

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 21 to 29 of this annual report.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

REAAREEERAUF 18K EFEH
BT LESERETMALIRES  NEMH
BEZRAMEES  ETEBBERRNK
RARETHEENEZTARLR - BE=S
ZENEHERERNEAESNEHES
EZAERNARAERABERAE /L  AIR
A LEEEE REZSRENEMAR
FEFeRENEENEHEZREZEED
ARATEBRRBFRER/L  AIRZRE
EEEREE - EARBENGARERENE
FHEEERSRBEREFAE LHEREINE
EXRESZAHETEHETA °

REALBABERMAA REXEERTAW
SRR - FREE S ARERT

RBEARFEBZERMAIE109@) 5k - FTHAE
T4 BEEARERBKREERNARA
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Emoluments of directors and senior
management and five highest paid
individuals

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and senior
management and the five highest paid individuals of the Group
are set out in note 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report. The remuneration of the senior
management of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 falls within the following band:

Remuneration band

B <& % =

EE SREEBEAEBRAEEESH
AT HEN =

AEFES  SHTEAERAZESHFALT
M S BRRNAFRES T HRERMEN
K12 BEZE-—F+-A=+—HIFE "
AEBEREEAENMEN TUTEHE :

Number of senior management
SEREEAEBYE

Up to RMB1,000,000
A% AR 1,000,000 70

Directors’ service contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 13 November 2019, until terminated by enter party giving not
less than three months’ notice in writing to the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 13 November 2019. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors has renewed the appointment letter with
the Company on 13 November 2022 and such appointment
will be until terminated by either party giving not less than three
months’ notice in writing to the other; and in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company and the Listing Rules.

Apart from the foregoing, no Directors proposed for re-election at
the AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
or compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Permitted indemnity provision

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every
Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities (to the fullest extent
permitted by the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands) which
he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company
has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.
As of the date of this annual report, such insurance coverage is
currently in force for the benefit of the Directors.

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures

As at 31 December 2022, interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO, which have been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been
entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
are as follows:

BB ERX
RIEARFAMSRZMA  SE=0 (EF=
BHERARDAER TEAR) MR BARTH
BEAEMELBEEMXZABHNMAE R
AREXEFUALARAEEFELNREE - &
RANBAERBEERSRBERFRAEDN
EENSEBEEERR RAFHREM - B
EENSRBENRRE -

EERESTRAERKG - HE
BRORBESZEBRKRE

RZZE-_—FE+-_A=+—H E=KkES
TBRABRARARSEFREZE (EXERESH
MEREEBIZEXVE) MRk ~ HERG REFH
FHRERBEESFRBEEAEXVIETRED
HAEME ARG RERETHMERS AR (B1F
BIEFFRAEKRABBEEXEEERRR
BB ERRXE) IBEEF R AEIRAE
352 IR B AR R RITF B A= 50 M A0 4 25 SOk
B RBEBEEESFRANE AR A KRBT
MRS BOKAR I ¢

Interest in the Company RAERB] 2
Percentage of
shareholding in
Number of the Company
Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest shares held RAERBFR
EEnR B, Rt E FREE BatE
(Note 1) (Approximate)
(BtaE1) (BE49)
Mr. Li Chengjun (“Mr. Li”) (Note 2) Founder of a discretionary trust 369,967,204 (L) 37.0%

FRERE(FEE]D) (Hit2) RREEFERIIEA

Mr. Xiong Bin (“Mr. Xiong”) (Note 3) Founder of a discretionary trust 305,032,256 (L) 30.5%

RRi e ([RR B4 L) (A1723) 2HREFAIMA
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Notes:
1. The letter “L” denotes long position of the shares.

2. Leap Elite Limited is legally owned as to 100% by Mr. Li for the benefit of
the beneficiaries of the family trust found by himself. Accordingly, Mr. Li is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Leap Elite Limited pursuant to
the SFO.

3. Beyond Innovation Limited is legally owned as to 100% by Mr. Xiong for the
benefit of the beneficiaries of the family trust found by himself. Accordingly,
Mr. Xiong is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Beyond
Innovation Limited pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company had registered any interests or short positions
in any shares and underlying shares in, and debentures of, the
Company or any associated corporations as at 31 December
2022, as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code.

Arrangement for directors to purchase
shares or debentures

Saved as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2022 were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director of the Company or their
respective spouses or minor children, or were such rights
exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures)
of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Substantial shareholders’ and others’
interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares of the company

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2022,
the following corporation/persons (other than the interests of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company as disclosed
above) had interests of 5% or more in the issued shares which
fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

FEREE
B R A
g ,

BLEEFTA
T5EE,/
=TT

53 H1 5% 8%
EXVESE
¥ 5&E ok /A
336 1%25\_ ;

Name Capacity/nature of interest
= 5/ REEME

Leap Elite Limited Beneficial owner
SBREBERRT BEanEn

Beneficial owner
B e 4db L
EniEm

Beyond Innovation Limited

HBHBERDA

Ms. Sui Rongmei (Note 2)
FEg i I (1aE2)

Interest of spouse
[

Ms. Yan Xue (Note 3)
BE 224 (f7:#3)

Interest of spouse
Fe B

Beneficial owner
ExnEn

JZ Capital Limited (Note 4)
JZ Capital Limited (4752 4)

Mr. Ko Hin Ting, James (Note 4)
SEFRES A (Mt 4)

Interest in a controlled ¢
ERERL L £

Ms. Chu Wing Yee, Vaneese (Note 5)
RexEz L (H725)

Interest of spouse
B (B i
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Notes:
1. The letter “L” denotes long position of the shares.

2. Ms. Sui Rongmei is the spouse of Mr. Li Chengjun. By virtue of the SFO,
she is deemed to be interested in the same number of shares held by Mr. Li
Chengjun.

3. Ms. Yan Xue is the spouse of Mr. Xiong Bin. By virtue of the SFO, she is
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares held by Mr. Xiong
Bin.

4. JZ Capital is owned as to 99% by Mr. Ko Hin Ting, James. As such, Mr. Ko
Hin Ting, James is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by JZ Capital
Limited pursuant to the SFO.

5. Ms. Chu Wing Yee, Vaneese is the spouse of Mr. Ko Hin Ting, James. As
such, Ms. Chu Wing Yee, Vaneese is deemed or taken to be interested in the
Shares in which Mr, Ko Hin Ting, James is interested pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the
Company has not been notified of any other relevant interests or
short positions in the issued share capital of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

Directors’ interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No Director or his/her connected entity has or had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party subsisting during
or at the end of the year ended 31 December 2022.

Directors’ and controlling shareholders’
interest in competing business

Apart from the Group’s business, none of the Directors, the
Controlling Shareholders (including Mr. Li, Leap Elite Limited, Mr.
Xiong and Beyond Innovation Limited) or any of their respective
close associates was engaged in or had any interest in any
business that competes or may compete with the principal
business of the Group, which would require disclosure under
Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules. or has any other conflict of interest
with the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up
to the date of this report.
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Share option scheme

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 18 October 2019 (the “Adoption
Date”), which become effective on 13 November 2019. The
purpose of which is to motivate the eligible participants to
optimise their future contributions to the Group and/or to
reward them for their past contributions, to attract and retain or
otherwise maintain on-going relationships with such participants
who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the performance, growth or success of the Group.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers, directors, advisers,
consultants, suppliers, customers and agents of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; and such other persons who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to the
Group.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme,
the maximum numbers of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at 13 November 2019 (i.e. 100,000,000
shares) unless approved by the shareholders of the Company.
Such limit also represented 10% of the of the total issued shares
of the Company as at the date of this annual report.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in general
meeting in the manner stipulated in the Listing Rules, the
maximum entitlement for each eligible participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the total number of shares in issue.

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted
by the grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer
document constituting acceptance of the options duly signed by
the grantee, together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by the Company on or before the relevant acceptance
date.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which
the option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to
the expiry of ten years from that date. The minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no
option may be exercised more than ten years after it has been
granted.

The exercise price of share option granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board
and shall be at least highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of grant of the option; (b) the average of the closing prices
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant of the option; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Directors, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years from the Adoption Date. As
at 31 December 2022, the remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme was approximately six years and 9.5 months.

For further details on the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme, please refer to the paragraph headed “Statutory and
General Information — Other Information — 1. Share Option
Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus.
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() Outstanding options
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
did not grant any share options and no share options were
exercised and 2,500,000 share options were lapsed. Details
of the Company’s share options from 1 January 2022 to 31

December 2022 are as follows:

QOutstanding
asat
Date of Exercise Vesting Exercise 1 January
grant price  period period 2022 |
RZBZZf
-A-B
REAH i%E 5RE fit:&] HALTE
Category: Employees
-]
Tranche 1 14 April 2020 HKS051 14 Aprl 20200 1Juy 2021 to
30 June 2021 13 April 2025
Ea ZRC%F 0518 —BC%fE It S
MA+mA MATHAZ tA-AZ )
=== “ZCRf 3
~AZTA MA+=A
Tranche 2 14 April 2020 HKS051 14 Aprl 20200 1July 202210
30 June 2022 13 April 2025
228 2% 0518 —BC%fE it Sl
MA+mA MATHAZ tA-AZ
It St 2 “ZCRf
~AZTH MAt=A
Tranche 3 14 April 2020 HKS051 14 Aprl 202010 1July 202310
30 June 2023 13 April 2025
=4 ZRC%F 051%T —E-%F It St
MA+mA MATHAZ tA-RZ
“5-=% “E-R%
~AZTA MA+=A
Total @ ~

As at the date of this annual report, the number of shares
of the Company available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme upon the exercise of all above outstanding share
options was 24,900,000, representing 2.49% of the total

issued shares of the Company.

p

1
l
8,220,000 l
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(ii) Valuation of share options

(i) BRENMEE

mE RS X
Expected dividend yield
FAET IR B X

112 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited ~ Annual Report 2022

(1) The following significant assumptions were used to (1) ZEBREZAFEDERA-_EAH
derive the fair value of the share options using the BEEENX UFEFATIEZRE
Binominal Options pricing model: 5

Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3

£—H £ E=H

Date of grant 14 April 2020 14 April 2020 14 April 2020

I H —E-FF —T-EF —ET-FF

MA+mA rMA+mA /MA+mAE

Fair value at grant date HK$0.211 HK$0.220 HK$0.227

REHBEATE 0.2113%8 T 0.22078 7T 0.227 7% 7T

Share price HK$0.51 HK$0.51 HK$0.51

P& (B 0.517% 7T 0.5187T 0.51 %7

Exercise price HK$0.51 HK$0.51 HK$0.51

1T1EE 0.517 7L 0.51%7T 0.51 % 7T

Expected volatility 53.00% 53.00% 53.00%
& B R 0

Expected life 5 years 5 years 5 years

FEETFHA 54 5% 54

Exercise period 1 July 2021 to 1 July 2022 to 1 July 2023 to

13 April 2025 13 April 2025 13 April 2025

TEHER —T-—F —T_—F —E=F

tHA—RZE tA—RA=% +tHA—RAZ%

ZTRHF —ZEZRF il TS

MA+=H MA+=H MA+=H

Risk-free rate 0.58% 0.58% 0.58%
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(2) Expected volatility was determined by calculating the
historical volatility of the price of listed companies
with businesses similar to the Group. The expected
dividend yield is determined by the directors based on
the expected future performance and dividend policy
of the Group.

(8) No share-based payment expense was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil) in
relation to share options granted by the Company as
the performance condition was not satisfied.

Connected transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has not
entered into or conducted any connected transactions, which
were subject to the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements as required under the
Listing Rules.

Related party transactions

Details of the Group’s related party transactions during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party
transactions are connected transactions which are subject
to the reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the
company’s listed securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Corporate governance practices

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

Equity-linked agreements

Other than the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained a public float of no less than 25% of
the issued shares for the year ended 31 December 2022 and up
to the date of this report.

Review of audited annual results

The Company’s audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2022 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Model code for securities transactions by
directors of listed issuers

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions. All Directors of the Company have
confirmed that, following specific enquiry by the Company, they
have compiled with the required standard set out in the Model
Code for the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date
of the report.

Auditor

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated
18 October 2022. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited has resigned as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 18 October 2022 and the Company
appointed Moore Stephens CPA Limited to fill the causal vacancy
following the resignation of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited and to
hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited, the auditor of the Company,
will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM of the
Company and be eligible to offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to be held on 30 May
2023 to seek Shareholders’ approval on the appointment of
Moore Stephens CPA Limited as the Company’s auditor until
the conclusion of the next AGM and to authorise the Board to fix
their remuneration.

By order of the Board
Sprocomm Intelligence Limited
Mr. Li Chengjun

Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023

1 1 4 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2022

RARNRERE
BEAARGAMASENRRAESERA
ﬁ§_§::¢+_ﬂ_+ AL R A
BEZEH FARNERBTORERTR
19 25% K D FIRE -

BREERFERR
ERZERCEMNAARABE T
t- AT ALFENEERTEEM -

MBITAEZSETESFREIW
= 3 o

NEERM TR R+ FrE 2 iR

B EBEEHMESETESRR %Zﬂﬁﬁ
%°w$27¢ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁé FTEARRAE
ERRAFFHE_E-__F+=-_A=+—H
HFEEAREAYH —HETIZETAAH
ZIREZER -

%qﬁah

DII

EEm
ZRMAARBHE-_ZE__F+A+/\H
MAsE REE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—H
iif BB (BB SETMEHKTER
NEEBREARBZEM 82T -__F+
A+ \BREKR  BERARFREZERESHE
EeMmEBAERA Tﬁﬁﬁﬁ¢ﬂuﬁﬁ)
GEREBFTBR AR B ERAREZ
BEEREERRBFRGERAL -

$QTV%%ﬁ¥%muaﬁ%$ﬁﬁﬁ@

R AR B R JE B R N8 4R R
E'ﬁéﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁoﬁ%ﬁ%%%mig
__¢£E_+Emﬁm%$ﬂ¢KAtfm’

SRERUEREREFTHESMNER
%ﬁ@ ARARAZEN BEET—EK
RBFARGERIE UREEESETEHFTMH -

R E

El FID
Sprocomm Intelligence Limited
FTERHTEF
FHRERE
B8 —E_=F=A-+NhH



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB R &

K| MOORE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SPROCOMM INTELLIGENCE LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sprocomm Intelligence Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 122 to 220, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited % X
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BN =

Expected credit loss (“ECL”) of trade and
bills receivables

Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies in Note 3.

The key audit matter
BRETER

BESE
FEEE
B2HRA

B -

B(EHEESRED

R 1B I FE WL R 5 2 TR
ABTISMAM 19 R I FE3 M & &t

b 11

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEREFHPNMEEEBER

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of trade and bills
receivables amounted to RMB191,704,000, representing 14% of
the Group’s total current assets.

ECL for trade and bills receivables is estimated based on lifetime
ECL model, which is estimated based on historical credit loss
experience and forward-looking information at the end of the
reporting period.

We have identified impairment of trade and bills receivables as
a key audit matter because the impairment assessment of trade
and bills receivables involved a significant degree of management
estimation and may be subject to management bias.

RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H EFEKFERERZEN
%E@?%Aﬁwgmmzl,oooﬁ%ﬁ EEEREELEDN
BHERWFAREEEZERELNAAESEHE (AHEE
BB G EREE mESREEEBINERREHR
NBTEEGEELERAAEEEREEST -

HNE S EUGRIE R EREBRBENHP REREE G R
EEERHIRRE E52RESRBEERERZEDN
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Our procedures were designed to review the
management’s judgement and estimates used
in assessment process and challenge the
reasonableness of inputs and assumptions
used in estimating the ECL of trade and bills
receivables.

We obtained an understanding of how the ECL
of trade and bills receivables were assessed by
the management.

We have challenged management’s assumption
and judgement in determining ECL on trade and
bills receivables as at 31 December 2022, the
reasonableness of management’s grouping of
the trade debtors in the provision matrix, and the
basis of ECL rates applied, adjusted for forward
looking information including both current and
forecast general economic conditions.

We have tested, on sample basis, payment
history, past due status of the trade and bills
receivables, and the settlements subsequent to
the end of the reporting period.

We have tested the accuracy of the historical
default data and tested trade receivables past
due ageing analysis as at 31 December 2022,
on a sample basis, by comparing individual
items in the analysis with the relevant supporting
documents.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BN =

Valuation of inventories
Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies in Note 3.

The key audit matter
HRETER

FEME
FL2HRAY I RERM IS RMNFEINE
B o

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENEIPOAEEHEBSEE

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of inventories
amounted to approximately RMB187,428,000, representing 14%
of the Group’s total current assets.

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit matter
due to the use of judgements in identifying obsolete and slow
moving inventories and determining the net realisable value which
are based on conditions and the marketability of the inventories.

RZIEZ-F+-A=+—H FENREAEIRARK
187,428,0007T * 16 BEREMRBEEALE14% °

EERFEMA R ABREFE AR EHIRE N H
FE UEREFEHREREHEEEENERFEFSER
b - EENBIARFEETEHERBHRENMBHFTEMN
MBI G - YREEFENEMGERR o

Our audit procedures were designed to evaluate
management’s assessment of the conditions
and the marketability of the obsolete and slow
moving inventories and identify any valuation risk
of inventories.

We have assessed the net realisable value and
subsequent sales of inventories on a sample
basis and inspected the utilisation report and
sales contracts entered into between the Group
and its customers on a sample basis.

We have discussed with the management in
respect of the adequacy of the allowance made
by the management based on subsequent
usage and sales, ageing analysis and current
market conditions.

We have challenged the assumptions and
judgements used by the management by
assessing the reliability of the management’s
past estimates.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BN =

Other information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report of the directors, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors and the audit
committee for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit

Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of Group’s internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statement
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan King Keung

Practising Certificate Number: PO6057

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

LeBmRkHEMPEEER

For the year ended 37 December 2022 &2 —FE - —&F+ _-H=4+—HIFFZE

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARMT T ARET R
Revenue g 5 1,450,377 2,000,104
Cost of sales SHE R A (1,246,747) (1,827,867)
Gross profit EF 203,630 172,237
Other gains and income H bz R UgA 7 52,170 44,444
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HEAX (38,754) (41,188)
Administrative and other expenses 17 K& E b 57 52 (64,885) (65,928)
Research and development EF 2
expenses (124,075) (118,956)
Finance costs B 7% & A 8 (18,261) (6,468)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBADRF, (BE) 9,825 (15,859)
Income tax expense Frisfifx 9 (3,464) (2,200)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREAN(FE) 10 6,361 (18,059)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Hib2m (FAx) e
income
Items that may be reclassified H & R[fEE T 7 A2 1875 A
subsequently to profit or loss: EH
Exchange difference arising on MEBINETBEER
translating foreign operations T i =& (2,186) 671
Total comprehensive income/ FRZEWE(BAX) B
(expense) for the year 4,175 (17,388)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: VAR & 75 FEAESm ], (E518)
Owners of the Company FiN/NETEF SN 6,506 (17,754)
Non-controlling interests JEE RS (145) (305)
6,361 (18,059)
Total comprehensive income/ LWT&FEERE
(expense) attributable to: Wz, (BA) 48 %8 -
Owners of the Company ViN/NSIET SN 4,298 (17,083)
Non-controlling interests eI i = (123) (305)
4175 (17,388)
Earnings/(loss) per share BRERM,(Ei8) 14
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) ERXR#EE(ARED) 0.65 (1.78)

1 22 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2022



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PC
R IR R

At 31 December 2022 R —E - —#F+_-H=+—H

2022
—E-

Notes RMB’000

Hf T ARMTF T

Non-current assets kRBEE

Property, plant and equipment Y - E K 5 103,614

Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 5,649

Intangible assets EREE 17 7,659

Long-term prepayment REFFE(S IR 18,280

Deferred tax assets REFIBE B 248
135,450

Current assets REEE

Inventories FE 187,428

Trade and bills receivables B 5 EWGTE & W E T 191,704

Prepayments and other receivables 81 3t 78 & H b & W 5k 18 139,048
Amounts due from shareholders JE U IS BR FR B 6,341

Pledged bank deposits BHEMIEITER 764,383
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 36,635
________________________________________________________________________________ 1,825,539
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and bills payables Z 5 A RIE R RN B 940,627
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R H b B IR 76,702
Contract liabilities EHaE 30,251
Borrowings B 37,006 [N IEPZORNG 0
i
Lease liabilities HEAE 5,855
Deferred income PRFEU A 3,490
Income tax payable AT 5,952
Net current assets RBEEFE




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR AR

At 31 December 2022 R —ZE - —#F+_-A=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Bt ARBT T ARETT

Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred income EIEY A 27 12,096 15,680
Deferred tax liability FEERIBEE 28 13,484 15,634
Lease liabilities HEBE 16 - 7,903
Borrowings &R 26 14,817 16,006
40,397 55,223
Net assets EEFRE 320,709 315,837
Capital and reserve EXR#E
Share capital A A 29 8,945 8,945
Reserves [ 30 311,277 306,979
Equity attributable to owners of the AR QA& %A AL
Company 320,222 315,924
Non-controlling interests FEIE R R 2 487 (87)
Total equity A 320,709 315,837

The consolidated financial statements on page 122 to 220 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

29 March 2023.

Li Chengjun
FEE
Director

EF
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REERBEIR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —4F+=-H =+ —HIF/Z

NSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN

Attributable to owners of the Company
LN LN

Share Shae  Statutoy  Transhation Verger
capitel premium resenve feserve fesene
BE  RBEE  ARBE  MERE SR
RMBOOO ~ RWBOOO  RMBOO0O  RMBOOO  RWBIOO
AEETR  ARETR ARETR ARETL ARETR

Moo 29 Note 30)) Note 300))
(Hi29) (i3 (Hitaom)

A vy 200 WE-E-A-R s o0 DEB BE) m)
Loss for the year EpER - - - -

Other comprehensive income £k 2Bl - - - 671

Totd compehensieicome/ ER2ENE/

(expense) for the year (Fx)es - - - 71

Acouiston of non-contoling - A 3F R B %

terests rote ) (ia) = = = .
Disposd ofasubsiiay ~~ HE-TEHEAT

fotel) () = g . =
Appropiation o satutoy ~ EAZETEE

[EServe

= - 6,862 =

At 31 Dec

ember 2021 NoEo-f
t2A=1-R 8045 89439 2040 2.48)

Notes:

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group acquired 33.3%
equity interest in Chengdu Sprocomm Cloud Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Chengdu Sprocomm”), a subsidiary of the Company from the non-
controlling interests shareholder for a consideration of RMB2,383,000. /@
Upon the completion of the transaction, the Group held 100% of Chengdl
Sprocomm. 4 /i“" '/

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group disposed of 70% of
its equity interests in Shanghai Hai Huan Ming Chong Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company for a consideration of RMB1. Upon the completion of the
transaction, the Group did not hold any interest of Shanghai Hai Huan Ming
Chong Limited.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REEmBER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;

EoE A= —HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KOAERARL
Non-
Share Share  Statutory  Translation Merger Other  Retained controlling
capital ~ premium reserve resene resene resenes profts ~ Sub-total interests Total
Bx  ROEE  EREE  BERE  AKER  EMRE  REEW Nt FERER a3t
RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMBOO0  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR
(Note 29) (Note 30)) Note 30f)) ~ Mote 30/if)
(i) (i) (Wit ()
At1 January 2022 H-BZZE-R-H 8,945 89,439 240 (2,486) (26,744) 85,809 181,541 315,924 ) 3583
Proft o the year ERER - - - - - - 6,506 6,506 (145) 6,361
Other comprehensive 2028 (R ha
(expense)/income - - - (2.209) - - - (2.209) 2 (2,186)
Total comprehensive fexpense) A2 (5%)/
income for the year YagE - - - .28 - - 6,506 4,298 (123) 4,175
Coptelcontrbuonfoma~ FHERREHEE
non-controling shareholder - - - - - - - - 697 697
Appropration o statoy — ERZETRE
165618 - - 3346 - - - (3,346) - - -
At 31 December 2022 uk bt 3
tZh=1-8 8945 89,439 3,766 (4,6%) (26,744) 85,800 134,701 320,222 97 320,709

1 2 6 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited ~ Annual Report 2022



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

AEHEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F - —4F+ = H =1+ —HIF/E

Notes

B iE

2022

—=E-=
RMB’000

AREF

Operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax
Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Amortisation of government grant

Bank interest income

Written off of property, plant and
equipment

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Loss on early termination of leases

Amortisation of intangible assets

Reversal of loss allowance recognised in
respect of trade and bills receivables

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

REEE
PR A 7, (B 1R)
LA T BRI
A
MBER
BT 178 B 8 55
RITASHA
WIEE - BB &
g
HEWE - BE K&
REEE
REKILHEEEBE
B EESH
B FEWRIA R
W B AER A
B ol E R
UER VL
nE
EREEERE
HE—FHMEAT
Y 25

9,825

18,261
(6,488)
(12,227)

~N N @

10 -

Operating cash flows before working
capital changes

Decrease in inventories

Decrease in trade and bills receivables

Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from
shareholders

Decrease/(increase) in prepayment and
other receivables

Increase/(decrease) in trade and bill
payables

Increase/(decrease) in accruals and other
payables

Decrease in contract liabilities

BIEESEFALE
HERE
FERL

B 5 el EkIE & E Uk
ZER D

RE Uk A% R BB
B, (3 )

TE S 308 N H A i U
R, (380)

B 5 R R RN
ZgEm, ORd)
FEET B A K E e
KEE M, OR)
EHEERS

7

-

48,546
93,882

31,465

3,134

N

Cash generated from operations LERESES
Income tax paid EATSEL
Net cash generated from operating BEIBDFBRS

activities

FE




CONSOL|DATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
n‘/j—\ IE%/)ILE%%

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F - — 4+ _-H=+—HIFFE

2022 2021
—E-= — T —4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® T ARBFT
Investing activities RETH
Payments for purchase of property, HEEWE  BER
plant and equipment BLANEN 15 (8,495) (3,122)
Payments for purchase of intangible asset ~ #t¥8 & #E & E MK 17 (783) -
Development cost capitalised for intangible &t & 2 & & & AL 8Y
asset i 25 A AR 17 - (4,006)
Placement in restricted deposit 7 A Z PR HI4F 5 - (93)
Withdrawal of restricted deposit IRHUE IR $I1F 5% - 16,303
Placement in pledged bank deposits FABEHRRIT
T (1,238,500) (222,502)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits M2 EHRT
73 693,569 254,337
Government subsidies received BIERBUT L 274 6,611
Prepayment for acquisition of leasehold PUIEEE L IERS
land A 20 (18,280) -
Interest received B Y F B 4,362 5,859
Net cash (used in)/generated from REZTE (FA)
investing activities FBH&THE (567,853) 53,387
Financing activities AEEE
Payment for acquisition of additional I —=x Fﬁ%
interest of a subsidiary RE YN 7 B TR IE - (2,383)
Capital contribution from a non-controling ~ — & FEIZEREIE R
shareholder HEE 697 -
New borrowings raised MESEN 239,723 284,457
Repayments of borrowings EEER (248,948) (279,205)
Payments for capital element of HEBBEARILSH
lease liabilities (g (9,147) (13,754)
Interest paid =EEESS (18,261) (6,468)
Net cash used in financing activities RETETARS
FE (35,936) (17,353)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and IEQ&IEQ%F /)]
cash equivalents W), R (47,933) 57,385
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning S£#RERBREE
of the year B 82,904 26,327
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes KEHH L 1,664 (808)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FREERESE 23
the year B9 36,635 82,904
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %2 —%F — —F+ - H=4+—HIFFZ

1.

GENERAL

Sprocomm Intelligence Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as combined and revised)
of the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability on 15 August 2018 and its shares have
been listed on Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 13 November
2019 (the “Listing”). The ultimate controlling parties are
Mr. Li Chengjun and Mr. Xiong Bin (the “Controlling
Shareholders”), who are also executive directors of the
Company.

The address of the registered office is located in P.O.
BOX 31119, Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay
Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands and the
principal place of business of the Company is located in
5D-506, F1.6 Block, Tianfa Building, Tianan Chegongmiao
Industrial Park, Futian District, Shenzhen, China.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are designing,
manufacturing and sales of mobile phones and printed
circuit board assembly (“PCBA”) and Internet of things (“loT”)
related products and investment holding. Particulars of the
subsidiaries have been set out in Note 39, the company and
its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the "Group".

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“"HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB
which is also the functional currency of the Company, and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousands, except
when otherwise indicated.

1.

— &R

Sprocomm Intelligence Limited ([ 2 & |)
RZEBE-NFNATHAARBERSES
ERFRERRE(—AA—FEH= -
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BREBERAR  HRORZZF—NLF
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al (B ERET(TLEH]) - &K
ERTATERERERERIKEE (R
BR]) BEDBARRRNTES -

AAREMPEERMU AP.O. BOX
31119, Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802
West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1205, Cayman lslands & = Z & % i 25 &
FERIMEERERLEAFILERK
& KNEF1.61R5D-506 = °

ARAR—HAREZBREAF - EHBA
FANEEXHED SR RERHEE
FH - BNl B B8 AR A0 &< (T EN i 28 25 AR AR
K1) LS (TWBA]) 18R E M A
AR EZER - BB QAR FBHN
BYFES9 - AN A M H Y B A R A [ A
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REMBRRCRELKAEERE -
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AAPEEE 2 EMARESARE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —EF = — 4+ =-H =+—HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new and amendments to

HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied the
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022 for
the preparation of the financial statements:

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual
HKFRS 3 Framework

Amendments to COVID-19-Related Rent
HKFRS 16 Concessions

Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment

HKAS 16 — Proceeds before Intended
Use
Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of
HKAS 37 Fulfiling a Contract
Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the new and amendments to
HKFRS in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and position for
the current and prior year and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIRKME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —FE - —#F+=-H=1+—HIFZE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(o) New and amendments to HKFRSs not yet
adopted
The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 and
Amendments to
HKFRS 17

Insurance Contracts and related
Amendments'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between in Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities
HKAS 1 as Current or Non-current

related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5(2020)
Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause'

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting
HKAS 1 and Policies!
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to Definition of Accounting
HKAS 8 Estimates’
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets
HKAS 12 and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction’




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —EF = — 4+ =-H =+—HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs not yet
adopted (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The directors of the Group anticipate that the
application of the new and amendments to HKFRS will
have no material impact on the financial statements in
the foreseeable future.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and (jii) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group

obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary.

1 32 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2022

FERHFIE B EREZER
(EAMBHREED ] REE
HE:NC )

(b) MAREMNFTEBBERK
HER R EEFT AR @)
! RIE-_=F—A—HZERHBENFE
EHEAR AR -
2 R-_ZT-_NFE—A— B2 BFABNE
EHEAR AR -

8 RFFE R EIsk 2 (R FItRR F EEAR A A

AEEEEFRHRRAMITREMB
HEER R EBFT AR AT AR KRR
TEHMBERREXNEATE -

ETREREE
IERHBERIIMT -

mEEE
RARBHRRBEBEADARAADEA
HHH B R RS0 B RO R -

HAKE: VBHIREHKRHERES ()8
SEREHREBMIGHEEREGF
BEHw: R(i)BENARLHREHRE
BAOZEAREELRESER  RIBSEHIHE -

WMEEERBRBT - bt = {2 F) #
TEAE-HEFALHERE  AEEE
ERAHEE SRR E T R R -

BN B S B A A R AR B
BRAAMGEGEE AR e AKRSR
REBREMEB R R OIZEHIER KL



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIRKME ’

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 —F - —F 1+ = H =41 —HILFJ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. £E
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the
Company and non-controlling interest.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
entities of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries in preparing the consolidated
financial statements to bring their accounting policies in line
with the Group’s accounting policies.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —EF = — 4+ =-H =+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods and services to customers at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services to a customer.
Specifically, the Group uses a five-step approach to
recognise revenue:

e  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group
satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligations is
transferred to customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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TEg

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued) Uy 22 .
A performance obligation represents a good (or a bundle of E
goods) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods that are &) 3k~

substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e The customer simultaneously receives and consumes o
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

e The Group’s performance creates or enhances an o
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

e The Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected
on behalf of third parties, discounts and sales related taxes.

Contract liabilities
A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to - af i
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the /“"a ﬁ%ﬂ’] R A%

Group has received consideration from the customer. & RE - >

5t

&
P =

r?é‘ﬂ?:‘ﬁ':ﬁ)iﬁﬁ ‘




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2 —F - — 4+ _-H=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sales of goods

The Group produces and sells mobile phones, PCBAs for
mobile phones, loT related products, and other products
related to mobile phones. Revenue from the sale of goods
is recognised when control of the product is transferred
to the customer. Control of the product is considered
transferred to the customer generally on delivery of goods
to the customer’s specified location and when customer
acceptance has been obtained, which is the point of time
the customer has the ability to direct the use of these
products and obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits of these products.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered
and accepted by customers as this is the point in time that
the consideration is unconditional because only the passage
of time is required before the payment is due. Payment of
the transaction price is usually due within 30-90 days of
the date when control of the products is transferred to the
customer.

The Group normally received 5% to 30% of the contract
value as deposit from customers when they signed the sale
and purchase agreement for sales of products. For certain
sale orders received from customer relating to loT related
products, the Group received 80% of the contract value
as upfront deposit when they signed the sale agreement.
These deposits are recognised as contract liabilities until the
goods have been delivered to the customers.

The Group provides warranties for general repairs of
defects to ensure that the products comply with agreed
upon specification and they are therefore assurance-
type warranties and the Group accounts for the warranty
in accordance which HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —FE - —#F+=-H=1+—HIFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FE®

(Continued) ]
Lease HE l
Definition of a lease HENT
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys i & 49 & H
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period 22 il /]

of time in exchange for consideration. BB ET
The Group as lessee REE
The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a RERE

lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with
respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee,
except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). For these leases,
the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
assets are consumed.

LB 3 B D)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted by
using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot 3
be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental | -
borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability represents the fixed lease payments (including in-
substance fixed payments).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)
The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
(using the effective interest method) and by reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at amounts
which comprise the initial measurement amount of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or
before the commencement date and any initial direct costs,
less lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. They are
depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful
life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the
commencement date of the lease.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a right-
of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss as described in the “Impairment losses
on tangible assets and intangible assets” policy as stated
below.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of
a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

As a practical expedient, HKFRS 16 permits a lessee not to
separate non-lease components, and instead account for
any lease and associated non-lease components as a single
arrangement. The Group has used this practical expedient
for all leases.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve.

3.

FESEBUER |
PTHREZSHNARITD

HREEs—HMEER—HKA LBEINE
EYFHEENIZEL AEBEERHE
SRR MEE B ERRIFEEH
DB ERENIEANRKEZSH

SHKED °

EREREEL FAMBREELS
1658 ERFABAT OB IFEER D
M EREERARFEEELDERE
AZHAR - AKEERMAEHREES
AEREEE -

S

REBHNEEEBZMBRERE - A%
ERIEEBAINZER OMNE) PrETT
ZRGDEXGERAZBRITERAZA
MMERR (NERBKEMENEREE
REMEH) AR - RIMEHR - AINE
B2 EBER N RZAZEREXS
HipE o WINEELR A ENIETE
BB TMEEHMINE -

AeEEER R RERLEEREEM
EEXCEREZ®R REELHMRERR
M EERR

REINGEMBRRMS  AKEZE
SIEBHNEERBBRRBSHRZEANT
EXMmESAEBRZ2EE (AR
%) - MARRAXEFRATFHERRE -
PRELZEREZH (I0H) N E M2 ER
AR A HEES T ARE X B RET e

ZZTZZFFH® Sprocomm Inteligence Limited 139
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the subsidies will be
received.

Government subsidies are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related cost for which the
subsidies are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government subsidies whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred
to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government subsidies related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

1 40 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2022

3.

FESFBEK @)

&R A

W 2EXEEREREE(AIRE—
BERETAMEREREGNEE) BEE
HZBHREA MAKEEENKA
BEEEEARBMLEAEREREILEZ
RS LE -

FRBERMERKRAGEELHR 2B

B Rb

A B RE RSB S8 < BT 7 B A B
IR AR S 2 SRR B R - BT R
778 T IARER

BT TR A S B 5 X iR A TA Y
BN Al T 1K 55 O AR BE A A HA R 4R R AL
MEERBaEPERZ - AEBME  UE
KAEERE ZEIUBIRDEE
ST BIRM A BT 8 RE TR AR A B ISR
MRERRBBETERA - YRBBEEDN
ARFEFHRAER AN EAEEREE
s e

B ABBOBAMBERKSEEDE
ERXHBEXE ERAEEREHAE
B 7% S 4% (T B R SRARBE R AS) 2 e UK
THEYHAfR AL 18 2t P AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 —F = — 4+ —

3.

e TSR R MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefits cost

Payments to the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick
leave in the period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right- of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at
initial recognition due to application of the initial recognition
exemption.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method as follows:

Leasehold 5 years or over lease term

improvements whichever is shorter
Plant and machinery 3 years to 5 years
Furniture and fixture 3 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment 3 years
Ownership interests in land 20 years

and building

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
buildings

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIRKME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —FE - —#F+=-H=1+—HIFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Internally-generated intangible assets — research
and development expenditure

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

. the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e  how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and

other resources to complete the development and to

use or sell the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure

attributable to the intangible asset during its

development.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —EF = — 4+ =-H =+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research
and development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition,
internally-generated intangible asset is reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets acquired
separately. Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Development costs and patents are internally generated.
Capitalised development cost represents the cost in
relation to the self-developed feature for IT products. All of
the Group’s computer software were acquired from third
parties. Such intangible assets are amortised on a straight-
line basis over the following periods:

Computer software 10 years
Patents 10 years
Development costs 3 years

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash as defined
above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B IS RAREE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 — &~ —F+ - A=+—HI F/Z

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using weighted
average method. Net realisable value of inventories
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value, except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place (regular way trade) are
recognised and derecognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the assets.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets. The
Group’s financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them.

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets subsequently at
amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —FE - —#F+=-H=1+—HIFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XEs

(Continued)

. I - 1
Financial instruments (Continued) £m. :
Financial assets (Continued) g i
Amortised cost and effective interest method # g
The effective interest method is a method of calculating E J
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating KB RH

interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments, the effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding ECL,
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount
of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at
which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other
hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any
loss allowance.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Amortised cost and effective interest method
(Continued)

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently
at amortised cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included
in the “other gains and income” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS
9 (including trade and bills receivables, pledged bank
deposits, restricted deposits, other receivables, amounts
due from shareholders and bank balances and cash).
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instruments.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and bill
receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well
as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience and forward looking information including
both current and forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9 for trade and bills receivables.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to RMB5 millions ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

()  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Company considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

U

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; or

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) the financial instrument
has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic
and business conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of
‘investment grade’ as per globally understood definition
or if an external rating is not available, the asset has an
internal rating of ‘performing’. Performing means that
the counterparty has a strong financial position and
there is no past due amounts.

1 52 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited ~ Annual Report 2022
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

U

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

e when there is a breach of financial covenants by
the counterparty; or

° information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
and bills receivables, when the amounts are over 24
months past due, whichever occur sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

3.

FESEBUER |

£RI A @
TREE (B
BRFEFABR 2 HEE (B)

U

(i)

(i)

1= B B B E 0 (4R)
AEBEHEERUEEEERR
RLBERNNFEEMNRE AR
EERIRIEHRER  EMmiERA M
BREEHNNRABBAEEEER
REREIRIN

EXNHER
AEERB/SATERSABEER
REERERSBRENSHNET
Z ARBERBRBTIAAUTE
ERRYHIFERTE T RKE -

s EYUFHERVBRE K

o REMELHSIMERNEF R
RMEB AR BEEAMAEEREA
(BREAKE) BHEMAR(EhL
Bt RANE B PR A R EATE
) °

HSHER R
EREMBTIRSETFRAREY
TR 2 - B30 8 B R B A AT BE
B (Pl 58 FEFENEARE
BF B S RWFENERRR
BEMBEEAEA (ANRERLEER
) AEEEMEEREE-C
MENEREEDIREBEASEDN
Yo [m 72 Fr B e 08 BT - EE RS
MATEZEBERER - (FIKREFKIA
SRERPER -

ZEZZF4F3R Sprocomm Intelligence Limited 153



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —EF = — 4+ =-H =+—HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

1 54 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2022
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of expected credit losses is a
function of the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this
is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at
the reporting date.

For the financial assets, the expected credit loss is
estimated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —EF = — 4+ =-H =+—HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTHE®@
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) @I A @
Financial assets (Continued) TRIEE (§)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(vi) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

1 56 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2022
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XER®

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade and bills
payables, accruals and other payables, borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to retained earnings.

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generation units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

1 58 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as immediately in profit or
loss as income.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses reported and disclosures made in
the consolidated financial statements. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment (including right-of-use assets) and
intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) and intangible assets are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation, amortisation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The estimated useful
lives reflect the Company’s directors’ estimate of the periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
(including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets, based
on various factors. The estimation of useful lives impacts
the level of annual depreciation or amortisation expenses
recorded.

1 60 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets with
finite useful life

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of a
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets with finite useful life may not be
recoverable, the asset may be considered impaired, and
an impairment loss may be recognised in profit or loss.
These assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When a decline
of the assets’ recoverable amounts below the carrying
amounts has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. It is difficult to precisely estimate fair value less costs
of disposal because quoted market prices for the Group’s
assets are not readily available. In determining value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to level of sales volume and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections
of sales volume and amount of operating costs. As at
31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of right-of-
use assets, property, plant and equipment, and intangible
assets were RMB5,649,000, RMB103,614,000 and
RMB7,659,000 (2021: RMB21,132,000, RMB121,866,000
and RMB9,183,000) respectively.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade and bills receivables

The impairment for trade and bills receivables is based
on assumptions about ECL. The Group used judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the number of days
that trade and bills receivables are outstanding as well
as the Group’s historical experience and forward-looking
information at the end of the reporting period. Changes in
these assumptions and estimates could materially affect the
result of the assessment and it may be necessary to make
additional impairment charge to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying values of trade
and bills receivables is approximately RMB 191,704,000
(81 December 2021: RMB226,014,000) net of allowance
for doubtful debt of approximately RMB2,505,000 (31
December 2021: RMB2,581,000).

Allowances recognised in respect of
inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis
at the end of each reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving items identified that are no longer
suitable for sale or use. The Group makes allowance for
inventories based on the assessment of the net realisable
value. The management estimates the net realisable value
for inventories based on subsequent usage and sales,
ageing analysis and current market conditions. As at 31
December 2022, the carrying amounts of inventories were
approximately RMB187,428,000 (2021: RMB280,485,000)
and no impairment loss has been recognised for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F+=-HA=+—HIF/E

5. REVENUE 5. W&
Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods ek
in the normal course of business, net of discounts and e
sales related taxes. The Group’s revenue for the year is ARE|

recognised on a point in time basis.

An analysis of revenue from contracts with customers
disaggregated by major product types is as follows:

2022
—_EgE-=
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Mobile phone F ik 1,029,754
PCBAs EN Il S B& 1 48 2 28,758

IoT related products VB A AR R EE 296,514
Others Eith 95,351

1,450,377

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations

The sales contracts are with an original expected duration
of less than one year. Accordingly, the Group has elected
the practical expedient and has not disclosed the amount
of transaction price for the performance obligation that is
unsatisfied as of the end of respective reporting period.

-
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information is reported on a regular basis to the executive
directors of the Company, being the chief operating decision
makers, for their review of the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources. The
Group is principally engaged in designing, manufacturing
and sales of mobile phones and PCBA and IoT related
products. Information reported to the chief operating
decision makers, for the purpose of resources allocation
and performance assessment, focuses on the operating
results of the Group as a whole as the Group’s resources
are integrated and no discrete operating segment financial
information is available. Accordingly, no operating segment
information is presented.

Geographical information
The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC (the
place of domicile of the Group’s operation).

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers presented based on the location of customers is
as follows.

6.

2 EER

ARABIATES (AIXTBEERKE)E
HIKRBFE2HRNER  AERFRAI R
SERNABENTERBALDEER °
AEBETENER RERKEEFTH
ENFIERRIRAER R B EEEESR - @
TREERRELBUAREBERD B MK
Bz ERFEINAEERRELER
B ARAKBZERCIEREA L E
BYZEED YT BER - Bt - A &
ENEETEHWER -

1 32 B
AEEOEEEERRE (REEEBH
1EH) HEAT

BREFUEZIHNAEEINBEF Wt
BRI -

Revenue from external customers

SEBEF Uz
2022 2021
—_s=-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT T ARETF T
India ENE 757,814 962,219
The PRC H 509,101 791,076
People’s Republic of Bangladesh @ ilHz A R AN 95,368 199,241
Algeria Fr B8 N2 A1) 58 27,917 25,132
Republic of Korea RegRE 26,802 -
United States of America EFEAER 20,377 -
Other regions H b @ 12,998 22,436
1,450,377 2,000,104

The Group’s non-current assets, excluding deferred
tax assets, amounted to RMB135,202,000 (2021:
RMB152,181,000), and are all located in the PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —FE - —#F+=-H=1+—HIFZE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DHEBE
Information about major customers EH
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total =0

revenue of the Group are as follows: )=§!

2022

—s-=
RMB’000
ARET T
Customer A ZEA 302,167
Customer B EFEB N/A 738 A *

* The customer did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group in 2022.

OTHER GAINS AND INCOME 7.

2022

—E-=
RMB’000
AR¥TT
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & W B A 7 Uz -
Bank interest income RITHEWA 12,227
Exchange gain, net b H s F 58 15,892
Reversal of impairment loss on EERE 5 MEYRIE R EK
trade and bills receivables SERREEERE
recognised 76
Government subsidies (Note) R # Bh (AT 2E) 16,234 | ION |EFE 5/
Amortisation of government grant B T 48 Bh # $5 (4722 27)
(Note 27) )

Indemnification for litigation loss TR AR SR EE AR R FA Z S
from the controlling shareholders 38 (4752 471)
(Note 41)

Sundry income HMIEWA

Note: The government subsidies represent the one-off government grants
that were received from local government authorities of which the
entitlements were unconditional and were therefore immediately
recognised as other income.
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MERA
2022 2021
—E-C—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARMBF T
Interest on: THFEZHE
Lease liabilities HEBE 914 1,221
Discounted bills financing and ZERMEMBERREER
factoring loans 16,429 4,384
Borrowings BN 918 863
18,261 6,468
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. MEHMAX
2022 2021
—E-_-F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREET T
Current tax: BVERFR IR -
— Hong Kong profit tax —BBNER 416 -
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax —F B EMEH 4,300 912
— United States enterprise income —3B DTSR
tax 749 -
— Under/(Oven)-provision in prior ~ —@FFEBEE T,/
year (R EE) 172 (320)
5,637 592
Deferred tax (Note 28): RIERLIR (H15228)
— (Credit)/charge to current year ~ —RAEE (5t A) /KB (2,173) 1,608
Income tax expense FriSFif X 3,464 2,200
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= A
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0.

B R L

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

U)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British
Virgin Islands and Cayman Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in these jurisdictions.

The statutory tax rate of subsidiaries in Hong Kong is
16.5%. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of
Hong Kong Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of profits
of qualifying group entity are taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million are taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rate regime are to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries established in
the PRC is 25%.

Two of the Group’s subsidiaries, Shenzhen
Sprocomm Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Sprocomm”) and Shanghai Sprocomm
Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Sprocomm”), are recognised as a High and New-
technology Enterprise, which have been granted tax
concessions by the local tax bureau and are entitled to
PRC EIT at concessionary rate of 15% from 2020 to
2022 and 2021 to 2023 respectively.

The India taxation was calculated based on the rates
applicable in the relevant jurisdiction on the estimated
assessable profits. The applicable tax rate is 30%.
No provision of overseas profits tax in respect of India
taxation has been made, as the Group did not have
any assessable profits subject to such overseas profits
tax for both years.

In 2022, the Group is subjected to Federal Income
taxes. The United States enterprise income tax rate
has been provided at the applicable rate of 21% for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

o

—E - —F+= 5 =S

Z= )

T/

X

FrEFie X @

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

REXBRAEENRASEHSHA
RO NEBBEAEZTREE
BB EAMEHR -

BAEMBRRZEERER16.5% °
IR F B F 1S B 80 M AR 7S B R
HE - AEREEERAE 2,000,000
7B T i M 12 8.25% B Bt E H T
i 2 38 2,000,000 78 7T 9 4 A Bl 32
16.5% B Bt KA - A1 A ™ A
MERHEHEERNERERN
i N A 12 16.5% BV Bt — TR R B -

REFBEEEMERE ((REHRE
Bk RERMABBIZERES -
RPBEKIHHERARNRER
25% °

AEBREMNBRARFIREBE
BREAERAR (GRINKE]) kLS
AEBERMEARAR ([LEXRE])
BERTE FBm it - Wigh s
BHERETHEESR HHR=_F
CEFETFRIFT—F
ET_—FHFRUEEFE15%
AP BEPERMET o

ENE #1228 T oh £ 51 FE AR s A1) 2 AR
HAREEERMER 2HEFE -
AR F30% > BN AR ER W
FHELE BN BINMER 2 EMA
J& RR T8 A - B I L ENE AR IR A
HAINS T

R-FB__F AEBEABRMAKF
EH - BE_EaF +~f
=t BULFE ECERGHR
HEBREMTE 21 %R R (=
T )

—T = — &% Sprocomm Intelligence Limited 167

—=



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i

BB ERRMIEE
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9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9. FREHiH X @)
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARMBF T
Profit/(loss) before tax BRI ATE T (BE) 9,825 (15,859)
Tax at PRC statutory tax rate R BEDE TR E25%
of 25% STEETIE 2,456 (3,965)
Tax effect of expenses not TAMBRI G2
deductible for tax purpose 1,333 2,931
Tax effect of non-taxable income  FERRF N 25 MO T 75 52 2 (1,216) @)
Utilisation of tax losses not A AR IEEE
recognised (46) (206)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERBIIABENBRE 2
recognised 19,057 15,326
Additional deduction arising from it 8 5 X & 4 B FB YN
research and development
expenses (16,379) (10,730)
Effect of different tax rates of 75" Lt B A R A S R BT B
subsidiaries operating in other NEINTRAREZE
jurisdictions (647) (98)
Under/(Over)-provision in prior years B FEEBE T E
(FREERE) 172 (320)
Withholding tax on undistributed ~ — [ B B A Bk 9K &
earnings of a PRC subsidiary FIeFBHOEL (41 5E28)
(Note 28) (1,090) 570
Tax effect of tax exemption/ IS HBARL IE FA S HI R A
deduction from tax authority s 2 (Ka290v)
(Note 9(iv)) (176) (1,306)
Income tax expense for the year ~ FRATEBFEHX 3,464 2,200

Details of deferred tax are set out in Note 28.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —FE - —#F+=-H=1+—HIFZE

10. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 10. & A%

2022
—E—-=
Note RMB’000
Bt & ARBT T

Profit/(loss) for the year has FRRF, (E8)

been arrived at after charging/  &31% (5t A) T3

(crediting): FIBEER
Directors’ emoluments E=WS 11 2,204
Salaries, allowances and other ~ #r& - =B & H {th 42 7

benefits (excluding directors’ (TREEEHS)

emoluments) 121,406
Contributions to retirement RIRREFIET B LR

benefits scheme (excluding (TEIEESEHS)

directors’ emoluments) 17,843
Total staff costs BT A48 %E 141,543
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B 357 B 816
Amortisation of intangible assets % 12 & 7= # § 17 2,307
Amount of inventories recognised Z R AR X HNFE

as an expense -] 1,246,747
Net foreign exchange (gain)/losses [& 3, (W 25) /B8 %58 (15,892)
Depreciation of property, W BERZEBTE

plant and equipment 1® 24,612 ) :
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {# FA#E & E T & 16 10,194 REEIG 004 R
Reversal of impairment loss BEME ZEBGRIE R

recognised in respect of FEW EE R AR E

trade and bills receivables 518
Written off of property, plant and #3440 % - BiE K&

equipment
Loss on litigation R Z B 4
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BENRE

plant and equipment Z BB '

Loss on early termination of leases 2 R 4 I A& ~ E518
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —EF = — 4+ =-H =+—HIFFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11.ZEZB &
Details of directors’ emoluments are as follows: BEEMESFBUOT

Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement

and other benefits
Fees benefits scheme Total
e
)=4:9 3 BAREF
we HAiER sTEIER st

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTIT AREBTT AREBTT ARETET

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -

+=-—A=+—H
IEFE
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Li Chengjun (Chief FERELEE
Executive of the Company) (RRBTEABRE) - 552 28 580
Mr. Xiong Bin AR S - 420 18 438
Mr. Wen Chuanchuan I - 420 12 432
Mr. Guo Qinglin SEMEAE - 420 12 432
Independent non-executive BB ITEE
Directors
Mr. Wong Kwan Kit sEENEE 103 - - 103
Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen =K BRI A 103 - - 103
Mr. Hung Wai Man HRREAE 103 - - 103
Ms. Tseng Chin | Rzt 103 - - 103
412 1,812 70 2,294
Year ended 31 December 2021 B E T~ —4
+=ZA=+—H
IEFE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Li Chengjun (Chief THRELA
Executive of the Company) (RRBTEARE) - 552 26 578
Mr. Xiong Bin AR S - 420 15 435
Mr. Li Hongxing' TR AE - 229 48 277
Mr. Wen Chuanchuan' B S A - 241 6 247
Mr. Guo Qinglin SEMEAE - 420 11 431
Independent non-executive B ITEE
Directors
Mr. Wong Kwan Kit sEEANEE 100 - - 100
Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen =K BRI A 100 - - 100
Mr. Hung Wai Man rAEREAE 100 - - 100
Ms. Tseng Chin | Rt 100 - - 100
400 1,862 106 2,368
1 Mr Li Hongxing has resigned as an executive director on 1 June 2021. 1 FAEAABER T =—F A —BEHEHT
Mr Wen Chuanchuan has been appointed as an executive director on EERIIEEER T =_—FA—BE
1 June 2021. ZERNTESE -
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11.

12.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The executive directors' emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors' emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.

The amounts disclosed above represent remuneration
paid or payable to the directors of the Company (including
emoluments for services as employee/director of the group
entities prior to becoming the directors of the Company) by
entities comprising the Group.

None of the chief executive nor any of the directors of the
Company waived or agreed to waive any emoluments paid
by the Group for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021. No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors of the Company as an incentive payment for
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during both years.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, one (2021: one) was the director (including chief
executive) of the Company, whose emoluments are set out

MEEME @

EXHRRATESNHEEEREFIE
HEEEARARAKEEHEBNR
Be LA RBUIIFATESTNHNS -
EBRBEFERARBDESTARE

EXHBESEARAKEE AR M
ENARABEZZHH EREER
AzEE " EEERA/AAREFRM
Hie £ AR 755 1O A B o B o

HE-_ZE_—_FFK_ZT=-—F+=A
=+ —HLEFE BEARAEEZTH
ABREMNEEREXRERELEE
A B9 (A B & o PR AR RS & R A )
ARRMERNESZHMESEAMARE
E K B S e R B E -

12.EEME

AEBREERFALH  —R(ZF
TF - R)RARAEF(BEEE
TTBAR)  EBS &N LXK - 87

in Note 11 above. The emolument of the remaining four THE(ZEZ—F:NE) &ZaFALT
(2021: four) highest paid individuals were as follows: BT
2022 2021
—=-= =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARKTT
Salaries, allowances and other e ZRREAMET
benefits 1,744 1,854
Contributions to retirement benefits & #R 12 F 5+ & 4 5%
scheme 472 484
2,216 2,338

Their emoluments were within the following band:

BENBE T T EHE :

2022 2021

—E-CF =

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE AE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = % 1,000,000 7T 4 4

—Z——44% Sprocomm Inteligence Limited 1 7 1
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12.EEBME @)

12. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five
highest paid individuals of the Group including the directors
of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

13. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid, declared or proposed during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period.

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earmnings/(loss) per share during
the years is based on the profit/(loss) attributable to the
owners of the Company and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue.

13.

14.

HE-_Z-_—Fk=-Z=-—F+=HA
“t+—HLEFE AEEBERLAEER
TRRAZHZeHFAL (BEARAES)
AT € 1B B W S| A0 A B0 A AN 5 B B

B R S E S RE B A 1E -
Hﬂ‘z%\

HE_ZT-_—_Fk=Z=-—F+=H
T —HLEFE BELIN FRIE
EEREMRE  BmEAREITERE
HEEIREMRE -

BREFN,(BR)
ERERERRF/ (BE) DERKD
AEEE NS FE AT (B18) RE ¥
178 B AN T 49 Bt 4 -

2022 2021
—E-CF B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F ARBTTT
Earnings/(loss) for the purpose of st E&FREAEF, (Fi8)
basic earnings/(loss) per share FRNARARIEES AE(L
profit/(loss) for the year attributable 48 3% F|, (E518)
to owners of the Company 6,506 (17,754)
Number of Number of
share share
& E 8 E
’000 ‘000
T Fh%
Weighted average number of ATEERELRRF(EBE)
ordinary shares for the purpose of  {# F #) & 38 A% N 7 15 8¢
basic earnings/(loss) per share 1,000,000 1,000,000
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14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)  14. 8 % :

Diluted (loss) earnings per share

The Company’s potentially dilutive ordinary shares comprise
share options. Performance-related employee share options
are treated as contingently issuable shares. Contingently
issuable shares are considered outstanding and where
applicable, included in the calculation of diluted earnings/
(loss) per share as if the conditions of the contingency
are deemed to have been met, based on the information
available, at the end of reporting period.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2022, none of the
performance conditions of the share options were met, and
thus the dilutive potential ordinary shares are not included
in the calculation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share. As a
result, diluted earnings/(loss) per share is the same as basic
earnings/(loss) per share for the year ended 31 December
2021 and 2022.

-
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —EF = — 4+ =-H =+—HIFFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. )% - BMERRE

Ownership
Fumiture interests in
Leasehold Plant and and Motor Office land and
improvement machinery fixture vehicles  equipment building Total
Rith
HENE FRR REFH
£6  BEREES BE%E hE BogE  FERER @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETLE  AREfR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Cost HA
At 1 January 2021 R-E-—F-F—H 31,741 90,374 3938 1415 9958 64,840 202,266
Additions AE 502 2017 - 19 484 - 3122
Writen off il - (306) - - - - 306)
M31December 2021 HZE=-F
T-A=f-H 32,243 92,085 3,938 1,534 10,442 64,840 205,082
Additions NE 3,892 2972 49 216 1,366 - 8,495
Disposal i - (3,933) (148) - (1,427) - (5,508)
Witten off i (6,548) - - - - - (6,548)
At31 December 2022~ W=B=Zf
+-A=t+-8 29,587 91,124 3,839 1,750 10,381 64,840 201,521
Accumulated ZiiE
depreciation
At 1 January 2021 A\-2--F-A-H 18,253 26,510 3,115 728 6,048 8,048 62,702
Charge for the year R 3912 12,550 202 181 790 3,080 20,805
Witten off i - (291) - - - - 291)
M31December 2021 R-E--F
T-A=f-H 22,165 38,769 3,407 909 6,838 11,128 83,216
Charge for the year ERF 11,309 8,240 238 260 1,485 3,080 24,612
Disposal il - (1,980) (123) - (1,270 - (3373
Written off s (6,548) - - - - - (6,548)
At31 December202  W=-E=Zf
TZRZt-H 26,926 45,029 3,522 1,169 7,053 14,208 97,907
Canying values BEE
At31 December2022  W=B=Zf
TZR=t-H 2,661 46,095 317 581 3,328 50,632 103,614
M31December 2021 WZE-E
T-A=f-H 10,078 53,316 531 625 3,604 53,712 121,866
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15. 15. 1% - B

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Ownership interests in land and building situated in the PRC
with remaining lease term of 41 years. Carrying value of
approximately RMB50,632,000 as at 31 December 2022
(2021: RMB53,712,000) have been pledged to secure the
Group’s mortgage loan.

iz 7 R B
BTHE
IZI=
T(ZE=

30 A

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES

(i) Right-of-use assets

16. £/ 1

i) 6

A

2022
—E=-=
RMB’000
AR®T T
Machines 128 -
Leasehold properties HEEF 5,649

5,649

The Group has lease arrangements for buildings and
machines. The lease terms range from one to three
years (2021: one to six years).

During the year, additions to right-of use assets were
RMB304,000 (2021: RMB27,389,000). This amount
primarily related to the capitalised lease payments
payable under new tenancy agreements. The Group
also terminated a contract, resulting in derecognise of
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of approximately
RMB5,593,000 and RMB5,590,000 (2021: nil)
respectively.

In respect of lease arrangements for machinesf'
which are under hire purchase, the ownership of the
machines will be transferred to the Group by the end of
the lease terms. The Group’s obligations are secured
by the lessors’ title to the leased assets for such
leases.
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16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 16. FAEEEREEEE @
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(i) Lease liabilities (i) HEAE
2022 2021
—E-C B —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTTT
Non-current portion EMmENEB - 7,903
Current portion ENE S 5,855 12,385
5,855 20,288
Amounts payable under lease HEBBETHENMNKIE :
liabilities:
Within one year —FR 5,855 12,385
After one year but within two years — & M4 - 7,903
5,855 20,288
Less: Amount due for settlement  J& : 1218 3 AR 4 E
within 12 months FIE (R &
(shown under current H7R)
liabilities) (5,855) (12,385)
Amount due for settlement after 1218 A 1& B B 45 H 508
12 months - 7,903
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates HEAGEEAMNEIHERES
applied to lease liabilities range from 4.2% to 9.0% FIENF42%E9.0% (ZE=—F:

(2021: from 7.0% to 9.0%). H7.0%%E9.0%) °
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16. (£ A

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (Continued)

(iii) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

(iii) “

2022

—_s=-=
RMB’000

AR¥T

Depreciation expenses on right-of- {# fA# & E BT &£ 5
use assets
— Leasehold properties —HEEF
— Machines — M zs

Interest expenses on lease liabilities 2 & & & 2 5 5%
Expenses relating to short-term EETHEAEER X
leases

9,606
588
914

Others

During the year ended 31 December 2022, total
cash outflow for leases amount to approximately
RMB10,061,000 (2021: RMB16,677,000).

(iv)

Restrictions or covenants on leases
As at 31 December 2022, lease liabilities of RMB5,855,000
are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
RMB5,649,000 (2021: lease liabilities of RMB20,288,000
are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
RMB21,132,000). The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not
be used as security for borrowing purposes.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR AR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —EF = — 4+ =-H =+—HIFFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
Computer Development
software Patents costs Total
EREH =5 MEEAR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTL AREFT AREFT ARETTL
Cost RA&
At 1 January 2021 R-E-—%—f—H 8,913 632 - 9,545
Additions NE - - 4,006 4,006
At 31 December 2021 RZTZ—%F
+ZA=1t—H 8,913 632 4,006 13,551
Additions NE 783 - - 783
At 31 December 2022 R-E-Z%§
+=ZA=+-H 9,696 632 4,006 14,334
Amortisation e
At 1 January 2021 R-E-—-%—f—H 3,074 238 - 3,312
Charge for the year FREH 930 126 - 1,056
At 31 December 2021 RZTZ—%F
+ZA=1t—H 4,004 364 - 4,368
Charge for the year FRTH 909 63 1,335 2,307
At 31 December 2022 R-B-Z§
+=B=+-8H 4913 427 1,335 6,675
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2022 R-B--%
+=A=+-H 4,783 205 2,671 7,659
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—%
+-A=+t—H 4,909 268 4,006 9,183
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18. INVENTORIES

18. £ &

2022

—s-=
RMB’000

AR®T T

Raw materials R
Work in progress R
Finished goods RIRK M

78,693
59,657
49,078

187,428

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

2022
—s=-=

RMB’000

AREFT T

Trade receivables B 5 E R TE 190,849

Bill receivables FEW = 3,360
Less: Loss allowance R R EE (2,505)

Trade and bills receivables B 5 E G TE & E W E g 191,704

The gross amount of trade and bills receivables arising
from contracts with customers amounted to approximately
RMB194,209,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB228,595,000).

An aging analysis of trade and bills receivables (after loss
allowance) based on invoice date is as follow:

RMB’000
ARBT

128,352
%

Within 30 days 30 KR

31-60 days 31E60K 4
61-90 days 61 290K

Over 90 days 90 KA E

Total Fe

No interest is charged on the trade and bills receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —EF = — 4+ =-H =+—HIFFE

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 10. E5 RN EREREE &

(Continued)

EAREBEEERREEN —FnH &

SEEEFPETABEETR - KME
HAEERREH2ZEHEABRT AR
éfﬂ BEBEEEBEBAD A=

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its customers. The
debtors are grouped under a provision matrix into three
internal credit rating buckets based on shared credit risk

characteristic by reference to past due exposure of the AERE A SRR - FFRBMT -
debtor, and the ratings are outlined as follows:

— Low risk Customers with good credit standing —EKRkR EBREAFTHNER
—Medium risk  Customers with normal credit standing —F AR BLEFEAFTANER
— High risk Credit-impaired customers —=RER ERAXBENEP

EET R A FEEHNERNBRL E
BE AEEREZEEFTELERE
BEMNKE,SERERNEHEREE

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the current year. The
Group recognised lifetime ECL for trade and bills receivables

individually and/or collectively as follows: EIBInT
Weighted
average Gross
expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
IniEFHH HBEREE BiERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARETF T ARBT T
As at 31 December 2022 RZ-ZT-—4F
+=-—A=+—H
Low risk &= B 1.29% 194,209 2,505
As at 31 December 2021 R ZZT=—4F
+=-—A=+—8H
Low risk (9N 1.13% 228,595 2,581

The estimated loss rate are estimated based on historical
default rates and adjusted for forward-looking information
(for example, the current and forecasted economic growth
rates in PRC, India and other countries, which reflect the
general economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate) that is available without undue cost or
effort. Such forward-looking information is used by the
management of the Group to assess both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date. The grouping is regularly reviewed by the management
of the Group to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated.
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19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 10. E5 RN EREREE &

(Continued)
B 5 FE WK TE & B W R IR Y R 1B IS 18

Movements of impairment loss allowances of trade and bills

receivables are as follows: BEHHNT :
RMB’000
ARET T
As at 1 January 2021 RZE=—F—H—H 4,998
Reversal of credit loss for trade B 5 WA K&
and bills receivables FEW Z= = B &1 # 0 (2,417)
As at 31 December 2021 RZE=Z—F+=ZHA=+—8H 2,581
Reversal of credit loss for trade B S RrRWNFEIER
and bills receivables JEREEEEEIERR (76)
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-—-F+=-HA=+—H 2,505

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the current reporting
period.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group discounted and
factored trade and bills receivables in aggregate amounts of
approximately RMB24,006,000 (2021: RMB38,351,000) to
banks and factoring company for short term financing.

Transfers of financial assets

The following were the Group’s trade and bills receivables
as at 31 December 2021 and 2022 that were transferred to
banks and factoring company by discounting those trade
and bills receivables on a full recourse basis. As the Group
has not transferred the significant risks and rewards relating
to these trade and bills receivables, it continues to recognise
the full carrying amount of the trade and bills receivables
and has recognised the cash received on the transfer as
secured borrowings (see Note 26). These trade and bills
receivables are carried at amortised cost in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

RAREMRE - [t T EARAIEERR
RIA WL o

RZBZ—F+ZA=+—8 ' K&H
A H AR E M R1T R RE QA BA IR KR
IR A H N R ¥ 24,006,000T (=
——fF: AR%38,351,0007T) & 5 &
W R IE & e 2 4% o

TRIEEEE
TXHINAEERZE_—FR=F
&+ -RA=+—HBHNESEKRE
FEWERE MzEE FRWKIERE
WERFERZEHEBREREMFDE
ETRITEREAR - ARAAEE I &
EEZEESERREREREIEIERM
MEANRBRMESR EEEERZEE
SREEREBERERZENETRAE I
EEEEMKIINREERAEE KA
BB (RHiE26) - %ZEZ 5 ENKHE R
FEUR R T 4R & B 751k 0 AR B S K AR
HIIHR ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —EF = — 4+ =-H =+—HIFFE

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 19. EZRFERERERE @
(Continued)
Transfers of financial assets (Continued) tRMEEEE @)
The trade and bills receivables discounted and factored to BEEETEREAGBERRIEREAS
banks and a factoring company with full recourse are as MERENE ZRUGERBKERNT
follows:
2022 2021
—E:== T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Carrying amount of transferred BEELEEMNERA
assets 24,006 38,351
Carrying amount of associated HHEEENREE
liabilities (24,006) (38,351)
Net position EAER - -
Note: The maturity dates of bills receivables have not yet due at the end of Hiat - EREBROD B EREHRHARZE - HR
the reporting period. As the Group still exposed to credit risk on these AEETREARDAGZSEEBEEERNEER
receivables at the end of the reporting period, the cash received from B ERITEEB N RBERIINIRSES T8
discounted bills discounted to bank are recognised as current liabilities BHRARFERAREEE -

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

20. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 20. AR RIBE R H A E W FRIE
RECEIVABLES
2022 2021
—=E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTTT
Non-current portion FEREN IS
Prepayments for property, W BB R FAE KRR
plant and equipment and EEMTENKIE
land use right 18,280 -
Current portion RENE o
Prepayment to suppliers ) 4 P TEL S SRR 56,320 65,132
Lease deposits and other deposits T &1z & R H LS 21,093 1,995
VAT recoverable (Note) AU BB E R (A7 aE) 51,384 62,572
Interest receivables FEHA S 7,865 -
Others EAh 2,386 2,663
139,048 132,252
Note: VAT recoverable includes the input VAT and prepaid VAT that is Kt a7 e U [e] 3 (A 62 15 T8 HRAE — F U3 H0 /0 ik TR 3
expected to be deducted within one year. BERREFEER
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20. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 20. 78 1 FRIE [ H 2 FE WK TE ()
RECEIVABLES (Continued)
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, there was no significant RZEBEZZFRZZTEZ—F+ = A
impairment for the prepayments and other receivables. =+—H - BRRIERE A E KRBT
EEARE °

21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM SHAREHOLDERS 21. FE W iR 3R 5K 18

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and non-trade in ZEAERE RERIEEZHHEE -
nature. Details of the amounts due from shareholders are FEU AR R TB R BB R KIEE41 o

set out in Note 41.

Expected credit loss risk of amounts due from shareholders FE W IR 3R /) TR HA (5 B B 18 R B 4 5T B iR
is assessed to be remote as there is no significant change in W AAEBRERIES VR ERE
the credit risk on the amounts due from shareholders since EERR I ESENEF -

initial recognition.

22. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 22 BIKHBITHER
As at 31 December 2022, bank deposits of approximately NI E = S SRS =
RMB758,989,000 (2021: RMB216,092,000) were pledged B L AR 758,989,000t (==
by the Group for the purpose of securing bills payables ——F: AR#¥216,092,0007T) KR 1T
(Note 24) and approximately RMB5,394,000 (2021 TR UBRSENRE (fE24) - AR
RMB3,073,000) were pledged by the Group for the trade SEEEELHARYES5394,000T (==
loan (Note 26). ——%F: AR¥3,073,00070) * AERE

BHEF(MsE26) -

As at 31 December 2022, approximately RMB764,383,000 R_E-__§+-_A=+—H ' EEH
of the pledged bank deposits carried floating interest rates RIT1F 349 A R 764,383,000 TT 1% )% B)
which ranged from 0.05% to 3.1% (2021: 0.3% to 2.05%) FEFFENT0.05%ZE31% (=T ——
per annum. F:0.3%E2.05%) &8 °

As at 31 December 2021, RMB54,791,000 of the pledged RZEZ—F+ZH=+—H"  B#&if
bank deposits carried fixed interest at 4% per annum and SR 1717 ;XA R % 54,791,000 7T #%2 & 7E 7
RMB164,374,000 of the pledged bank deposits carried BFERMELA%E B & A R%164,374,000
floating interest rates which ranged from 0.3% to 2.05% per TCIRF B A B F F ENF0.3% E2.05%
annum. FTE o

23. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 23. RITHEBRRRAE

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, bank balances carry N = N T e
interest at floating rates from 0.05% to 0.35% (2021: 0.01% =+—0B - RITEBRERRITFERA =R
to 0.3%) based on bank deposit rates. 2 EF|E0.05% E0.35% (=T =—4F:

0.01% Z0.3%) st 8 °
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24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

24. B RAFREARENRE

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBF ARBFT

Trade payables =y AN eE] 132,735 291,125
Bills payables FEEE 807,892 233,006
Trade and bills payables B S BN FIERENEE 940,627 524,131

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables

RBERR BHERNFBRERB Y
E]

presented based on invoice date at the end of the reporting IEVAREC AT IAT o
period.

2022 2021
—EB-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREF T
Within 30 days 30RIA 68,049 185,819
31-60 days 31E60X 49,145 69,400
61-90 days 612 90K 8,435 16,341
Over 90 days Q0K 7,106 19,565
Total st 132,735 291,125
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24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued)

The average credit period on purchases of goods is
ranging from 30 to 60 days. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables are
settled within the credit timeframe.

The following is an aged analysis of bills payables at the end
of the reporting period.

24. E 5|
ER S
A
A

2022
—_EgE-=

RMB’000

AR®TT

Within 30 days 30K A 34,415

31-60 days 31 E 60K 30,910

61-90 days 61 E 90K 39,307

Over 90 days 90Kk 703,260

Total 1T 807,892

All the bills payables of the Group are not yet due at the end
of each reporting period. Bills payables as at 31 December
2022 were secured by pledged bank deposit amounts of
approximately RMB758,989,000 (2021: RMB216,092,000)
(Note 22).

-




r e SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 8t 2 —F - —4#+_-H=+—H

25. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E At B 4 FRIR BA R

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF R ARETF T
Salaries payable ENEHE 54,769 47,762
Other payables H b < 50E 6,612 10,268
Government subsidies in advance 8 Y B FF # BE (4752 ())
(Note (i) 12,357 12,357
Other tax payables H M RE S IR 2,964 4,215
76,702 74,602
Contract liabilities (Note (i) ARBE W 0) 30,251 69,458
Notes: Bist -
[0) Government subsidies in advance included in accruals and other 0] FIAFEFTE A I H 4t B {5 FRIE A T8 UK BT 1 B

payables are mainly related to the capital expenditure incurred for
property and equipment, leasehold improvement and subsidies
for recruitment of certain number of workers for factory operation,
before fulfilling certain conditions under the terms of the government
subsidies. The government subsidies received may need to be
refunded if the subsidiary failed to fulfill the attached conditions within
the stipulated time. Upon fulfillment of those conditions, government
subsidies related to compensation of operating expenses are credited
to the profit or loss in the year the Group complied with the conditions
attached to the subsidies, whereas assets-related subsidies are
reclassified to deferred income and credited to the profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

(i) Contract liabilities as at 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
RMB30,251,000 (2021: RMB69,458,000), which represented receipts
in advance from customers.

Significant changes in contract liabilities

The significant decrease in contract liabilities as at 31
December 2022 was mainly due to the advances from
customers as at 31 December 2021 had been recognised
as revenue upon transfer of goods during the year ended 31
December 2022.

Revenue recognised in relation to contract
liabilities

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December
2022 that was included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year is approximately RMB57,706,000
(2021: RMB71,654,000). There was no revenue recognised
in the current year that related to performance obligations
that were satisfied in prior year.
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BRI AR

i) RZTZ=—F+-—A=+—H AEEAE
HARH30,251,000L (ZE=—F : AR
69,458,0007T)  HEEWE P EN

BHAEBENEXRE(L
R-ZB-—f+-A=+—BWMANE
ERERD  EBHR-B-—F+=

A=+ BWNEFERERBEE_-F
T CHET A=t BLEFERNERE
BRER SN -

HEeNEBEAANERRAKS

REE-_T-_—_F+-_A=+—HItF
ERERANWETFAFTVNEHNEE 4
BAREES7,706,000L (ZE=Z—F : A
R 71,654,0007T) ° ANFEIW L F—
FECERNBORLE BN ERRE -
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26. BORROWINGS 26. AR

2022
—E—-=
RMB’000
ARET
Bank borrowings, secured RITER - BIER
Secured (Note a) BEM (MiFa) 41,823
Unsecured (Note b) EIEA (M aEb) 10,000

51,823

Carrying amount repayable (based on scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements):

2022

—Z==-=
RMB’000
AR® T
Within one year —FR 37,006
More than 1 year but less than —F LA FERF AR
2 years | 3,000
More than 2 year but less than MENAEEBERFENR
5 years 9,000
More than 5 years BBEAF ‘ 2,817
»+
51,823
Carrying amount repayable on RBBETHIRMZERE
demand or within one year B —FRNEENKREE 3
shown under current liabilities 37,006 '
Amount shown under non-current  JERFBE TIIRMESEE 2
liabilities / 14,817

2

A ‘/
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26. BORROWINGS (Continued) 26. & 7 (&)

Notes: Bist -

(a) As at 31 December 2022, the borrowing of approximately @ R-ZE-_—F+_A=+—-—H HARK

RMB17,817,000 (2021: RMB19,817,000) are secured by the Group’s
ownership of land and buildings and borrowing of approximately
RMB24,006,000 (2021: RMB38,351,000) are secured by the Group’s
bank deposit of approximately RMB5,394,000 (2021: RMB3,073,000)
and trade and bills receivables of approximately RMB24,006,000 (2021:
RMB38,351,000). The effective interest rates from these variable-rate
borrowings range from 4.55% to 7.86% (2021: 3.62% to 4.42%).

As at 31 December 2022, the unsecured term loan carried interest
rate at a fixed rate of 4.15% per annum and repayable within one year.
The unsecured term loan of approximately RMB10,000,000 was joint

17,817,00070 (=T =—%F : AR#¥ 19,817,000
T M B FRARE B A B+ i RIEFEEF
M # A R # 24,006,000 THER (T = —
& AR™38,351,00070) W AR EBRITE
HHANRES394,000L (ZE=—F: AR
3,073,000 7T) 1 & 5 fE 4 5k 18 B U 3R 4R
#) AR 24,006,000 (ZTZ—F: AR
38,351,0007T) fEHE IR - ZF)F B FI R ERH
BEBRFENT455%2E7.86% (ZF = —F:
3.62% E 4.42%) °

R-TB-_—F+-A=+—0  EEBERN
BERIRTFEA415% EE:ME TR —FNEE -
A E BB F A A R % 10,000,000 7T T B 12

MRAR R AT e A MR R E AR T -

guaranteed by the controlling shareholders, Mr. Li Chengjun and Mr.

Xiong Bin.
The amounts of borrowing facilities and their utilisation at RmERR EXRESBRHABR
the end of the reporting period are set out as follows: BT
2022 2021
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTTT
Facility amount MERE 152,188 159,265
Utilisation BABR
Secured bank borrowings BEBIRITER 41,823 38,351
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27. DEFERRED INCOME

27. R FE

2022

—Z:=-=
RMB’000
AR®T
At the beginning of the year REA) 21,800
Received during the year FAE W 274
22,074
Amortisation of government grant B 4 Bh# 8 (4752 7)

(Note 7) (6,488)
Balance as at the end of year FRES 15,586
Analysed as: AHTA

Current liabilities mErafE

Non-current liabilities e EIN=N

Note: Deferred income consists of government subsidies provided by the
relevant PRC government authorities for the purposes of financing
the purchase of plant and machinery and the expenses related to the
leasehold improvement. The amounts are recognised as income to
match with related expenses and cost incurred on systematic basis
over the useful lives of the relevant assets upon completing inspection
by the related government authorities. During the year ended 31
December 2022, government subsidies released to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income amounted
to approximately RMB6,488,000 (2021: RMB7,600,000).




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —EF = — 4+ =-H =+—HIFFE

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 28. EERIBEBEE, (AE)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax asset/ LNTARMBERENZEEHREE
(iabilities), after set off certain deferred tax assets against E/(BE) S KEEERRHER
deferred tax liabilities of the same taxable entity, for financial ZETREHBEEELRERIBEAE

reporting purposes:

2022 2021
—E-CF —EC—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F ARBTT
Deferred tax asset R IEE B 248 225
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEE (13,484) (15,634)
(13,236) (15,409)
The followings are the major deferred tax asset/(liabilities) TXEHINNFRNERNERRELEHIEE
recognised and movements thereon during the years: E/S(ag) RE@EE
Withholding
taxon
undistributed
profit of
aPRC  Impairment Accelerated
subsidiary loss on tax
(Note () receivables depreciation Total
H—EhE
HEAR
R REF
HmAENH B R MEHE
(@) REEE e @t

RMB'0O0O ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTR ARETT AREBTR

At 1 January 2021 R-Z-TF-A—A (12,295) 795 (2,301) (13,801)
Charged to profit or loss (Bt ABE (570) (570) (468) (1,608)
At 31 December 2021 and WZZE-FF+-A=+-HBER

1 January 2022 “E-—f#-f-H (12,865) 225 (2,769) (15,409)
Credit to profit or loss MBEH 1,090 23 1,060 2,173
At 31 December 2022 R=B-=f+=-A=+-H (11,775) 248 (1,709) (13,236)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —FE - —#F+=-H=1+—HIFZE

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
(Continued)

Notes:

@

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax of 10% is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by a PRC subsidiary from 1
January 2008 onwards. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied
if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. The directors determined that the management
of the Group can control the quantum and timing of distribution of
profits of their PRC subsidiaries. Deferred tax liability is only provided
to the extent that such profits are expected to be distributed in the
foreseeable future. Deferred taxation has been provided in respect
of the temporary differences associated with the undistributed profits
earned by a PRC subsidiary, Shenzhen Sprocomm at the applicable
withholding tax of 5%.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately RMB265,456,000 (2021: RMB188,811,000) available
for offset against future profits. These unused tax losses mainly
arose from (i) the preferential tax treatments of the research and
development expenditure which resulted in additional tax deductions
related to qualified research and development costs of Shenzhen
Sprocomm; or (ji) losses incurred by Chengdu Sprocomm, Sprocomm
Technologies Co., Ltd. (“HK Sprocomm”), Guizhou Sprocomm
Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd. (“Guizhou Sprocomm”)
and Guizhou Mars Exploration Technology Co., Ltd (“Guizhou Mars”).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the unused
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams for these
subsidiaries. Included in unrecognised tax losses are PRC tax losses
of approximately RMB265,456,000 as at 31 December 2022 that will
expire in the next five years (2021: RMB178,827,000). The remaining
Hong Kong tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

28. JE A

HiaE -
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29, % A
Number of Share Equivalent
shares capital amount to
R&BEA [N LESHE
’000 HK$'000 RMB’000
iR FAL  AREBTR
Ordinary shares of FR0.01 B TR EmA
HK$0.01 each JETE
Authorised:
At 31 December 2022 R-IEBE-—FK
and 2021 —E -4
+=—A=+—H 10,000,000 100,000 86,213
Issued and fully paid: BT RS -
At 31 December 2022 R-ZEBE-Z—FK
and 2021 —E -5
+=-—A=+—8H 1,000,000 10,000 8,945

All new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all
respects.

30. RESERVES

i)

Statutory reserve

According to the PRC Company Law, companies
in the PRC are required to transfer 10% of their
respective after-tax profits, calculated in accordance
with the relevant accounting principles and financial
regulations applicable to entities established in the
PRC, to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
relevant subsidiaries. The statutory surplus reserve can
be utilised, upon approval of the relevant authorities,
to offset accumulated losses or to increase registered
capital of these companies, provided that such fund
is maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered
capital of the relevant subsidiaries. The statutory
reserve is not distributable as cash dividends and
must be made before distribution of dividend to equity
owners.
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30. RESERVES (Continued)

A=+—HIFE

30. &4 (@)

(i) Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents the difference between
the consideration and the carrying amounts of the
assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the group reorganisation.

(iii) Other reserves

The amount represents (i) the amount paid by an equity
holder in excess of registered capital of Shenzhen
Sprocomm, (i) the deemed capital contribution
pursuant to the reorganisation of the Group in 2018;
and (iii) the difference of the consideration paid for the
acquisition of the additional equity interest in Chengdu
Sprocomm and the carrying value of the additional
equity interests of the subsidiary acquired during the
year ended 31 December 2019; and (iv) the difference
of the consideration paid for the acquisition of the
additional equity interest in Chengdu Sprocomm and
the carrying value of the additional equity interests
of the subsidiary acquired during the year ended 31
December 2021.

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS

Share-option scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) upon Listing. The Share Option Scheme is a
share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions that the eligible participants,
including (i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives
or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; (ii)
any Directors (including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; (iii) any advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers and agents to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries; and (iv) such other persons who, in the
sole opinion of the board of directors of the Company, will
contribute or have contributed to the Group. The Share
Option Scheme shall remain in force unless otherwise
cancelled or amended.

(i) &6t E
B B R IR 15 £ B S 48 B T B
ARBERBBENRERETEY
bR

(i) EtfEE
ZLERIERBEAZNNEE
BEENRESFMEAR - () BB A
EEN T \EHEARITHOR
YESEE 5 (i) U B AR B R i b R A2
MERREERRE-—Z—AF+=
A=+—B I EERENKER
Hib R BE m A 25 kv
B AL DR 1 2B ANRE T X A AR (E
ke el — 2= - W 5| 1 —
1 4 FEE Uk B B BT B 2 ) 88 S IR AR B
AR TE{E A 248 o

31. RO NRZ

BRESE
HEZZT—NE+ZA=+—HIEFE "
RARBER EMEFEMERER S (88
BESTE) - BRE S A—HRKRHE
Bird TARBERETRENE LY
AEBEHERMEERZEE - £15:
() A 5 s B AE R T B A R E (] 2 B sk 3k
BES TRAESNSARE  ()AA7)
sk AT BRI EE (BEIENT
EERBIUERNTES)  (i)A A Ak EH
ERFHEARMNTMER  BAA - H®
Bl BEEERE: RVVEARAEES
2HERENEMA L BIBERUEIER]
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31.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Share-option scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The
maximum number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to Directors, chief executives,
substantial shareholders or any of their respective associates
are subject to approval by the independent non-executive
directors (excluding the independent nonexecutive directors
who are the grantees of the options). In addition, any grant
of share options to substantial shareholders or independent
non-executive directors or to any of their respective
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue on the date of offer with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the Company’s shares quoted on
the Stock Exchange at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million made within any 12-month period from the date of
grant (inclusive) would be subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option
Scheme may be accepted within on or before the relevant
acceptance date, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
board of directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i)
the HKSE closing price of the Company’s shares on the date
of grant of the share options; (i) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the share options; and (iii) the
nominal value of shares of the Company.
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 31. k3 -
TRANSACTIONS (Continued) ‘
Share-option scheme (Continued) B AR R

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme of the Company
adopted in 2019, the Company granted share options
to subscribe for an aggregate of 69,100,000 shares (the B M
“Share Options”) on 14 April 2020 to certain directors 69,100,
and employees. The options have a validity period of five BERR S
years from the date of grant. The Group has no legal or Fo .-
constructive obligations to repurchase or settle the options
in cash. These options vest in tranches over a period of up
to 3 years.

The options are to be vested in three tranches, subject to
the Group achieving its profit target and the directors and
employees meeting their service conditions as well (the
“Performance Conditions”). The directors and employees
should remain in the Group’s employment until those
Performance Conditions are satisfied. Subject to the
fulfilment of the certain financial performance targets by the
Group, the three tranches of options are exercisable in the
following manner:

() 30% of the Share Options will be exercisable
commencing from 1 July 2021;

(i) 30% of the Share Options will be exercisable
commencing from 1 July 2022;

(i) the remaining 40% of the Share Options will be
exercisable commencing from 1 July 2023.
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT M. BRI ARZ @
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Share-option scheme (Continued) MBI RE ST 8 (@)

TRENEBEEZE T -_—F+=-_A=+—
BEFEEENEEHEAR A BERE

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options held by directors and employees during the

year ended 31 December 2022: BEE
Qutstanding Transfer Lapsed Outstanding
at 1 January during during at 31 December
2022 the year the year 2022
Option type BREER R-E-ZF R-E-ZF
—A—-H +=ZB=+—-H
i R AT FREEE ERBEK i R AT
Employees 3 27,400,000 - (2,500,000) 24,900,000

Exercisable at the end of the  Hi R AI{T4#

period - - - -
Exercise price TR fE HKO0.51 % 7t - - -

TREBEEHZE_E-_—F+_A=+—
AtFEEERESMEAR A ERE

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options held by directors and employees during the

year ended 31 December 2021: HEEIEMN -
Transfer
Outstanding during Lapsed Outstanding
at 1 January the year during  at 31 December
2021 (note) the year 2021
Option type SRR RZEZ—F RZEZ—F
—HA—H FRERE +-A=+-A
HARITHE (FizE) FRERK WARITHE
Directors £ 12,500,000 3,500,000 (16,000,000) -
Employees EE 53,300,000 (3,500,000) (22,400,000 27,400,000
65,800,000 - (38,400,000 27,400,000
Exercisable at the end of the  HAFRA[47(&

period - - - -
Exercise price TR E HK0.51 77T - HKOS1BIL  HKOS1THETT

M ARRINIEER T Z—FA—AEED
RPTES  HBERERZBANRERIFHNE
MBREEE]EH -

Note: As Mr. Wen Chuanchuan was appointed as an executive Director on 1
June 2021, his share options were then reclassified from the category
“Employees” to the category “Directors” on the even date.
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Share-option scheme (Continued)

The total fair value, which was determined by using Binomial
option price model, of the options granted under the share-
option scheme as at the grant date are approximately
HK$15,209,000 (equivalent to RMB13,812,000) on 14 April
2020. The significant inputs into the Binomial Model are as

follows:

+ Hltg:/z
31. ROZHARZ @)
%Hﬁﬁéf—ril

i = 25 —l=s EE)%LE B REZEER
A EBEHBERENEREZ A
FEKA-ZEHANETERELEE)
#515,209,0008 L (BHER AR
13,812,0007T) - ZIHARA K E Z8 A
£ SONNE

Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3

F—#t St E=4t

Exercisable period (subject to vesting conditions
being fulfilled)
R BB 1TE HA R (HEZR A & 55 B 151 )

Share price at the grant date
R HBRE

Exercise price per share
BRRITEE

Expected volatility

& B R 08

Expected life of options
REAR TR ST F HA

Expected dividend yield
TEEH AR B

Annual risk-free interest rate

42 L 02 2

1July2021to 1 Jduly2022to 1 July 2023 to
13 April 2025 13 April 2025 13 April 2025

= — 43 s = e A
=l ElE =S e B = 2l =
=og — 4 —E_hF —T-REF
MA+=H MA+=H MA+=H
HK$0.51 HK$0.51 HK$0.51
0.51%7T 0.51 87T 0.51 %87
HK$0.51 HK$0.51 HK$0.51
05187 0.51 87T 0.517%&7T
53.00% 53.00% 53.00%
53.00% 53.00% 53.00%

5 years 5 years 5 years

54 5% 54

0% 0% 0%

0% 0% 0%

0.58% 0.58% 0.60%
0.58% 0.58% 0.60%

The expected volatility is determined by calculating the
historical volatility of the price of listed companies with
businesses similar to the Group. The expected dividend
yield is determined by the directors based on the expected

future performance and dividend policy of the Group.

The Binomial Model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on
the director’s best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
no share-based payment expense was recognised as the
performance conditions for all tranches were not satisfied.

TR IE TS et B SN 5 B %5 A
B EmAREBEERKIEETE - A
BREETREEREBFHRRREARE
SEEREBRRETE -

Eﬁ%%ﬁ‘ﬂ@?ﬁfbﬁﬁﬁ:lﬁfﬁi‘ﬁﬁﬂ

A ERBEEATEMRNEE
TE““JE%EA%$E’JE—1$1$#° B
BEERETIBRENTAEEMHE
FTRR -

RnNBEE_T__—_gk=== - H

=ST-ALEEE ARSEALRREE
PR IR GR I - BRI R AR D SR 2
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32. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN 32, BIRERFHEI

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs, capped at HK$1,500 per month, to the
MPF Scheme, in which the contribution is matched by the
employees.

The subsidiaries established in the PRC contribute based
on certain percentages of the salaries of the employees to
defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by
the relevant government authorities in the PRC on a monthly
basis. The government authorities undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations payable to all existing and
further retired employees under these plans and the Group
has no further obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond
the contributions made. Contributions to these plans are
expensed as incurred. Assets of the plans are held and
managed by government authorities and are separate from
those of the Group.

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
RMB17,097,000 (2021: RMB12,432,000) represents
contributions paid and payable to these schemes by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was
no forfeited contributions (2021: nil) under the defined
contribution schemes and no utilisation of forfeited
contributions. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no
forfeited contribution available to reduce its contribution to
the retirement schemes in future years (2021: nil).
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33. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 33. £ =1
At 31 December 2022, the Group had pledged or R=-Z
discounted the following assets to secure banking and BT 7 E
borrowing facilities and factoring loan granted to the Group: o AEE

2022
—==-=
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Trade and bills receivables (note 19) & 5 & WA K fE Ik 2= i
(Bt 19) 24,006
Pledged bank deposits (note 22) 2R ITIER (H:£22) 764,383
Ownership interests in land and T RIEFREEER
building (note 15) (H1a15) 50,632
839,021
34. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 34. 57 : II
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of reporting ;

period are as follows: i

2022
—_s=-=

RMB’000
AR¥T T

Capital expenditure in respect of ~ REF A M EHRE D 5T L1ME R !
the property, plant and AEBEOME - BE LK
equipment contracted for not BEARAX
provided in the consolidated
financial statements
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35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35. EAE ke B

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from period year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings,
net of bank balances and cash and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising share capital and
reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
of the Group periodically. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
capital injection as well as raising of additional borrowings
as additional capital or the redemption of existing debt.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 36. £ @ P
(@) Categories of financial instruments (@) J-

2022
—=E=-=
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Financial assets ERMEE
Amortised cost (including bank B A (BFERTT
balances and cash) EHREIRE) 1,030,407
Financial liabilities SHAsE
Liabilities at amortised cost RN AFTTE 2
BfE 1,059,686

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and bills receivables, other receivables, pledged
bank deposits, amount due from shareholders, bank
balances and cash, trade and bill payables and other
payables and borrowings.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments included credit risk, market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk

()

(i)

Currency risk

The Group’s major operating subsidiaries have
foreign currency sales, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

As the Group had no material foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, no
significant impacts on the results of the Group
would arise from the changes in foreign currency
rates, accordingly sensitivity analysis in this
respect is not presented.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed rate borrowings (Note 26)
and certain pledged bank deposits (Note 22).
The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary actions when significant interest
rate exposure is anticipated.
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36. &7

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to certain variable-rate pledged
bank deposits (Note 22) and bank balances (Note
283) and variable-rate bank borrowings (Note
26). The Group aims at keeping borrowings at
variable rates. The Group manages its interest
rate exposures by assessing the potential
impact arising from any interest rate movements
based on interest rate level and outlook. The
management will review the proportion of
borrowings in fixed and floating rates and ensure
they are within reasonable range.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of PBOC benchmark lending
rate arising from the Group’s variable-rate bank
borrowings which are denominated in RMB.

-

(b)
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36. @ T B @)

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative financial instruments at
the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis
point (2021: 100 basis point) increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. If the interest
rate on variable bank borrowings had been 100
basis points (2021: 100 basis points) higher
or lower and all other variables held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended
31 March 2022 would decrease or increase by
approximately HK$398,000 (2021: post-tax loss
would increase or decrease by HK$582,000). This
is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 = F = —4F 1+ _=-H =+ —HIEFE
36. &R T A @)
(b) BRI EEEERBE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties provided by the Group is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

In determining the ECL for trade and bills receivables,
the management of the Group has taken into account
the historical default experience and forward-looking
information and concluded that credit risk inherent in
the Group’s outstanding trade and bills receivables are
insignificant.

The Group applies the simplified approach to assess
the expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected credit
loss for all trade and bills receivables. The Group
determines the ECL on an individual basis and/or
collectively by using a provision matrix, estimated
based on historical credit loss experience, as well as
the general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtors operate. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

(#8)

EERR
RZBEZZFF+=ZA=+—H" 'K
EERBFHARERBITEE (AEE
BBt Y B %) M Al Bt T B B 75 8
BHNEaEERR RELKE B
MARFASERREBREENR
HE -

REEERBREERE AKEE
BEECZREREEEEEERE
EEEHREMERIEZRF AR
REUR 5 i W EE H TS o

EHEREGKARERRBREER
HEEERN AKBEEEECH
EBERNKRRAELEER R
RAREEREEE 5 RKHRIENE
WERENEEEERBRTERK -

AEBRELSWHHREEREIR
RERABCTAFLEBEES
1B ZEREFFLATE B 5B WK
EREREERAHEREES
B-AEEERRBEEE(ENBE
EEEBREBRUNRBEBARETR
B B B8 A OB AR i R 3R (B B
R/ REEEEEERPEERSE -
RIS  ARAREERRAEE
MiEEREREAERD -

ZZTZZFFH® Sprocomm Inteligence Limited 205



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —EF = — 4+ =-H =+—HIFFE

36. €@ T A @)
b) HEEMESEEERBE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

For other receivables, the Group has assessed whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. If there has been a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group will measure the loss
allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.

Management considered amount due from
shareholders to be low credit risk and thus the
impairment provision recognised during the year was
limited to 12-month ECL.

The credit risk on liquid funds is considered minimal as
such amounts are placed with banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is mainly in China, which
accounted for 67% (2021: China 52%) of the total
trade and bill receivables respectively as at 31
December 2022.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 37%
(31 December 2021: 18%) of the total trade and
bills receivables was due from the Group’s largest
trade debtor as at 31 December 2022 and 83% (31
December 2021: 65%) of the total trade and bills
receivables was due from the Group’s five largest trade
debtors who are in telecom and technology industries
as at 31 December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIRKME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —FE - —#F+=-H=1+—HIFZE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. £ T

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BF#%
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. In addition, the Group
relies on borrowings as a significant source of liquidity.
The management monitors the utilisation of borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities and lease liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for non-derivative financial
liabilities and lease liabilities are prepared based on
the agreed repayment dates. Specifically, borrowings
with a repayment on demand clause are included in
“Less than 1 year or on demand” band regardless of
the probability of the financial institution choosing to
exercise their rights.

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
curve at the end reporting period.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIREME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —EF = — 4+ =-H =+—HIFFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T A @)
(b) Financial risk management objective and (b) MEREBEEBZERBEK
policies (Continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (Continued) MEE SRR (@)

More than More than

Lessthan 1yearbutnot  two year but Total

fyearor  exceeding notexceeding More than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand two years five years fiveyears  cash flows Amount
SR-F5 -EHE AENL AR

REX ETREME BTERZF  IENL RERESR RERE
RMB000  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBIO)
ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARRTR

Asat3 December2022 ~ W=ZF-ZE+ZB=1-R

Trade and bil payables BIAEMNZERENER 940,627 - - - 940,627 940,627
Accruals and other payables 3T B A R E {1 EFFUR 61,381 - - - 61,381 61,381
Lease liabities HEafk 6,046 - - - 6,046 5,85
Borrowings & 38,600 3137 12,355 - 54,182 51,823
1,046,744 3,137 12,355 - 1,062,236 1,059,686
More than More than

Lessthan  1yearbutnot  two year but Total
1 year or exceeding  not exceeding Morethan  undiscounted Carmying
on demand two years five years five years cash flows Amount

SR-F3 —EE FEL L REER

BEX BTEEME BTEERF  IFNL REREEE FEE
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO
ARRTR  ARBTR  ARRTRL  ARRTR  ARBTL  ARETR

As at 31 December 2021 RZE--£+ZH=1-H

Trade and bil payables ERENTARENSE 524,131 - - - 524,131 524,131
Accruals and other payables  EFFE R RE R FUR 70387 - - - 70,387 70387
Lease liabiities HEEE 13473 8128 - - 21,601 20,088
Borrowings &3 43127 3850 10,563 3955 61495 58168

651,118 11,978 10,563 3955 677,614 672974
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIRKME |

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —FE - —#F+=-H=1+—HIFZE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. £WMT

(b) Financial risk management objective and (b) B
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) e
Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
is included in the “less than 1 year or on demand”
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at
31 December 2022, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these borrowings amounted to
RMB37,006,000 (2021: RMB42,162,000). Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors
of the Company do not believe that it is probable that
the financial institutions will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
of the Company believe that such borrowings will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of reporting period.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair value due to
their immediate or short-term maturities.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR AR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —EF = — 4+ =-H =+—HIFFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37.BHAERS
Compensation of key management personnel FEEBEASZHMH
The remuneration of directors of the Company and other ARFEERAMERERABRASF
members of key management during the year was as FEEFBT -
follows:
2022 2021
—E-_-F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF R ARBTTT
Short-term benefits EHAEF 2,434 2,681
Post-employment benefits BEER 12 1R A 81 116
2,515 2,797
The remuneration of directors of the Company and key ARBIEERFETHRAENF A
executives is determined by the remuneration committee FZEeEEEARBRMBBEE
having regard to the performance of individuals and market EBE -
trends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIRKME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —FE - —#F+=-H=1+—HIFZE

38. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 38. 54~
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION '
OF THE COMPANY

2022

—s-=
Notes RMB’000
B 5 AR®FT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN NS (a) 61,851
Current assets REEE
Bank balances and cash RITEBEE S 259
259
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals and other payables fE&t % Fj K H b fE <
RIE 1,429
Amounts due to subsidiaries  FE B B A & 7IA 3,061
4,490
Net current liabilities REBEETEE (4,231)

Total assets less current #EEERRBERE

liabilities 1 o007 i ;
Capital and Reserves EXRFEE
Share capital [N
Reserves fi 85
Total Equity A

*

Represent amount less then RMB1,000 ;,



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR AR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —EF = — 4+ =-H =+—HIFFE

38. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 38. BERAA A RAMBMRRROER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (#&)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
(@) Interests in subsidiaries (@) RHB QTR
2022 2021
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#T T ARETF T
Unlisted investment, at cost EETIRE (R A) = =
Amount due from a subsidiary JEUCP B A B FRIE (A75E)
(note) 61,851 59,856
61,851 59,856
* Represent amount less than RMB1,000 * feeREIEN AR 1,0007T
Note: The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free Kt R B AR IEAEEE 28 NA
and repayable on demand. The directors of the Company do RERER -ARRERTTHEAMB R
not expect repayments from subsidiaries within next twelve AERMERERET ZBEARER -

months from the end of the reporting period.

(b) Reserves of the Company (b) xATHEE
Share Accumulated
premium loss Total
R 1EE Rt EE wat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFT ARBTT
At 31 December 2020 RIZZEZTF
and 1 January 2021 +=—A=+—8k
—E-—F—H—H 89,439 (36,910) 52,529
Loss and total FABELEE
comprehensive B
expense for the year - (4,967) (4,967)

At 31 December 2021 WRZZTZ—%F
and 1 January 2022 +-—A=+—8xK

—E--—#—A—H 89,439 (41,877) 47,562
Profit and total FRRNEEE
comprehensive income W5 4858
for the year - 1,113 1,113
At 31 December 2022 HRZ-E=—F
+=-RA=+—H 89,439 (40,764) 48,675
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBIRKME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F+=-HA=+—HIF/E

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. i -
(a) General information of subsidiaries (@) P
place of v
incorporation Issued and
and operation fully paid
and date of share capital/
Name of subsidiaries incorporation registered capital
SRR
EEBUR BRTRAR
WEAR LR ALY H BA/EREE
Directly held
HERE
Grace Kirin' BVI/Hong Kong
28 June 2018
KB ERRAES
—E-N\E
~NAZtTNR
Indirectly held
BERE
Sprocomm Intelligence (HK) Hong Kong
Limited? 27 August 2018
AEBREREBRAR? &R
—E-)N\F
NA=F+H
Shenzhen Sprocomm*® PRC
16 September 2009
=
FYIRHS Gl ARH55,556,0007
ZETNE @ﬂk
MATRA '
Shanghai Sprocomm’ PRC 100%
24 November 2009
LERE HE
ZTTNE

+—A=+mA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. M B A B 2 518 (@)
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(Continued)
(@) General information of subsidiaries () MEBARIKN—RER (@)
(Continued)
place of
incorporation Issued and Equity interest and
and operation fully paid voting power
and date of share capital/ attributable Principal
Name of subsidiaries incorporation registered capital to the Company activity
M ILR
BEBUR ERTRER FAREERE
WEARER B AR RE/EMER BERRRE TEXH
2022 2021
—E--F —E-—
Guizhou Sprocomm’ PRC RMB5,000,000 100% 100%  Researchand
8 June 2016 development of cloud
computing and related
technology
LUIN:R e AR #5,000,0007 100% 100% HEEHERERRE
“E-RE
~ANR
Chengdu Sprocomm’ PRC RMB15,000,000 100% 100%  Researchand
2 August 2017 development of cloud
computing and related
technology
RERE e AR 15,000,000 7 100%  6667% HEEHEREBR
ZE—tF
NAZR
HK Sprocomm? Hong Kong USD50,000 100% 100%  Trading of features
15 January 2016 phones and smart
phone
BERHE? B 50,000% T 100% 100% BEREFHEREMN
ZERF T
—AThA
Sprocomm Technologies India® India INR145,647 82.03% 82.03%  Customer service and
24 August 2016 technical support
Sprocomm Technologies India® 0E 145647 ENEEL  82.03% 82.03% EBPRBREMZE
“T-RF
NAZ+mA
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F+=-HA=+—HIF/E

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. fit /& -

(Continued)
(a) General information of subsidiaries

(Continued)

place of
incorporation Issued and
and operation fully paid
and date of share capital/
Name of subsidiaries incorporation registered capital
MR LR
EEBYR BRARME
WEARER AR A BA/ERER
2022 I
“EB-CE -
Guizhou Mars™* PRC RMB5,000,000 ! 100%
29 June 2016
EMAE: HE ARH5,000,00070
ZERF
~AZTAA
Liuzhou Sprocomm’ PRC RMB100,000,0!
(former known as “Liuzhou 1 September 2017
Spiking”)

EMAE (A7
PEMBERE])

Sprocomm Intelligence
Technologies Limited*

Sprocomm Intelligence
Technologies Limited*

HE
“E—+fF
NA—H

PRC
24 December 2019

HE
“T-NE
+ZA=+mA

RMB20,000,00: =
pe|
7

\/
\ﬂ‘*

- computing and related
il




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

~ — % — —
==

Fr_HA=1—HIFFEZE

30. B AT 2 1E @

(Continued)
(@) General information of subsidiaries () MEBARIKN—RER (@)
(Continued)
place of
incorporation Issued and Equity interest and
and operation fully paid voting power
and date of share capital/ attributable Principal
Name of subsidiaries incorporation registered capital to the Company activity
ALK
BEBUR ERTRER KAREERE
WEARER AL A RE/AMER BERREE TEER
2022 2021
—E--F —E-—
Shenzhen Fengma New Energy PRC RMB 3,000,000 100% 100%  Researchand
Technology Co., Ltd.® 1 December 2021 development of cloud
computing and related
technology
A BB R RER AR hE AR #3,000,0007 100% 100%  EEtERERRIHE
—T-—F
+=A—A
Windhorse Technologies LLC"® USA USD500,000 80% N/A  Trading of automobile
10 May 2022
Windhorse Technologies LLC"8 xH 500,000% 7 80% THA MBEHHLH
RATH
Shanghai Hexiangron intelligent PRC RMB30,000,000 100% N/A Research and
Building Technology 23 March 2022 development of cloud
Co., Ltd.* computing and related
technology
Shanghai Hexiangron inteligent EF AR %30,000,0007C 100% TER  EHEREERGHE
Building Technology B
Co., Ltd* =AZ1+=H
Xiaohe Growth Shenzhen PRC RMB2,000,000 70% N/A  Trading of education
Technology Co., Ltd.* 25 May 2022 tools
Xiaohe Growth Shenzhen i AR 2,000,007 70% T#R #HEIAES
Technology Co., Ltd.* S
FAZTEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEME!
mEMBIRKME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 —F = —4F+=H=+4—HIF

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 39.

(Continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries
(Continued)

*

The English name is for identification only.

Company with limited liabilities incorporated in British Virgin
Islands.

Company with limited liabilities incorporated in Hong Kong.

Wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC.

Company with limited liabilities established in the PRC.

Company with limited liabilities incorporated in India.

The subsidiary was established during the year ended 31
December 2021.

Company with limited liabilities incorporated in the United States
of America.

The subsidiary was established during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —EF = — 4+ =-H =+—HIFFE

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 40. MEEEREE 2 AEHE
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRFLAEEREFTHEENEEE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and B pREBeRIBSEH -MEFTD
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities EEMNAGERERESRENKRKIBELT
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows ERERARERERTHOEARES
will be, classified in the consolidated statements of cash PRETEMNAE -

flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Borrowings Lease liabilities Total
S HEEE @
(Note 26) (Note 16)
(Hrit2e) (Bt 16)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT AREFTT
At 1 January 2021 RZE--5—H—H 53,518 6,653 60,171
Non-cash movements FREBH
New lease arrangement HHERH - 27,389 27,389
Exchange realignment [E 5 A% (602) - (602)
Finance costs incurred (Note 8) BEARERA(HZS) 5,247 1,221 6,468
Financing cash inflows BERSRA 284,457 - 284,457
Financing cash outflows BERS RN (284,452) (14,975) (299,427)
At 31 December 2021 RZB-Z—-F+-A=+-A 58,168 20,288 78,456
At 1 January 2022 RZE-__%—F—H 58,168 20,288 78,456
Non-cash movements FRELH
New lease arrangement HHERH - 304 304
Exchange realignment [E i % 2,880 - 2,880
Early termination of lease RAKILHEE - (5,590) (5,590)
Finance costs incurred (Note 8) BELERERA(MES) 17,347 914 18,261
Financing cash inflows BERERA 239,723 - 239,723
Financing cash outflows BERS R (266,295) (10,061) (276,356)
At 31 December 2022 RZZZZF+-A=+-H 51,823 5,855 57,678
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — & — —F+ - H =+ —HIFFZ
41. LITIGATIONS 41. 5F &2

During the year ended 31 December 2019, an independent
factoring company (the “Plaintiff’) filed a lawsuit at Beijing
Haidian District People’s Court (the “District Court”)
against Shenzhen Sprocomm and a customer of Shenzhen
Sprocomm owing the factored accounts receivable (the
“First Defendant”) for the repayment of the outstanding
accounts receivable under the factoring agreement.
Provision for litigation loss of approximately RMB1,766,000
was made during the year ended 31 December 2019 with
reference to legal opinion obtained and the then available
information.

In December 2020, Shenzhen Sprocomm has received
the judgement of the first trial from the District Court ruling
it to repay the factored loan amount at approximately
RMB26,805,000 and the relevant interest at approximately
RMB3,303,000.

The directors of the Company, with reference to the
updated legal opinion and the then available information,
had made further provision for loss on litigation of
approximately RMB327,000 during the year ended 31
December 2020. Accumulated provision for loss on
litigation of RMB2,093,000 (being the sum of the provision
for litigation loss in 2019 and 2020) was included in other
payables in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Shenzhen
Sprocomm filed an appeal (the “Appeal”) to the First
Intermediate People’s Court of Beijing Municipality (the
“First Intermediate Court”) and received the judgement
of the second trial from the First Intermediate Court which
dismissed the Appeal and ruled that the District Court’s
decision remains effective. The judgement was executed
by the District Court on 30 August 2021 and subsequently,
Shenzhen Sprocomm paid an aggregate amounts of
RMB31,138,000 (which comprised of the principal,
interest and legal cost of approximately RMB26,805,000,
RMB4,019,000 and RMB314,000 respectively) to settle the
litigation claim.

HE-ZT-hF+-A=+—HLFE
—EBEIREAR (R&E)RIERTE
R ARER (i BkBR ) 352 R
1 38 18 T R M8 B B WR RS SR IR &
K — 2 RRENEERKNRYIRE R
FUS-—#®EDREFRAN -2ZEEE
MZERERAMERASMNERR BN
HE-_T-NF+-_A=+T—HILFE
FHERAAE B EEL AR 1,766,000 7T °

RZZE-_ZTE+—-F  FIKREE KD
HEERE —FBHAE  BEHAEER
BEERERH AR 26,805,0007T & 18
8 F) 2 49 A R % 3,303,000 7T °

RARAREZRERTNEEZERARE R
ASHER ERBE_ZE_ZTF+ =
A=Z+—HILFERFREERE — Tt
REEH AR 327,000 © 5t 5F A
E5 18 B 8 A A R 2,093,000t (B ==
—NWER T -_TFHAEEREZM)
HAZE-_ZEE+Z A=+ BHES
B SR 2R R B E b FE S 5RIE A o

REE =T = F i A hregltils

FEGRINRERUERTE -PRAR
A ([ —h&ER DR (L

) WU E|E — R ZFH R
£ HIREE EFF - X E R A BT A
HREZFER  HIRER —BE=—FN
A=+HBamEERHNT  EBFIK
BX A £ AR 31,138,000t (B
Re FERERZBASNNEBARK
26,805,0007C * A R % 4,019,000 75 & A
FR#314,0007T) @ AER ZFARE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 - & — —F+ - H=+4+—HIFFZF

41.

LITIGATIONS (Continued)

The aforesaid litigation settlement of RMB31,138,000, net
of the prior receipt in advance from the First Defendant of
approximately RMB21,663,000 which Shenzhen Sprocomm
was legally entitled to offset against the litigation claim.
Accumulated provision for loss on litigation in prior years
was approximately RMB2,093,000, additional amounted to
RMB7,382,000 was recognised as loss on litigation included
in administrative and other expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
during the year ended 31 December 2021 (Note 10).

In addition, pursuant to a deed of indemnity with the
Controlling shareholders signed on 18 October 2019,
which entitled the Group to all claims including legal costs
and expenses incurred in relation to the relevant litigation,
the Group recognised indemnification for litigation loss of
approximately RMB9,475,000 by mutual consent from
the controlling shareholders in other gains and income in
the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, upon the settlement of the
aforesaid litigation during the year ended 31 December
2021.
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41. SRR )

i FREAR AR £ A R #31,138,0007T
EMBRIATFELE —RENRBBHOAR
# 21,663,000 7T ORI KRB HFREBEAE
BEFAREIE) - BAEFE RFTFHFNRE
KB AR 2,093,000T ' REZE—
T-—F+-_A=t+—HBIEFE B
M AR 7,382,000 L E FER B FFFAEK -

AAGAEEMEMEEEERANTT
B R A 7 32 (BEE10) ©

AN RER-F-AFTATNAR
FHy M HxHx%EI’HHWU%TF RAEEHA
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